

## **NHS Framework Agreement for the Supply Of Goods**

The Authority	Supply Chain Coordination Ltd whose registered office is at Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London SE1 8UG.
The Supplier	
Date	
Framework Agreement Name	Project_1001 - Patient Temperature Management
Framework Agreement Number	2023/S 000-004569

This Framework Agreement is made on the date set out above subject to the terms set out in the schedules and appendix listed below ("**Schedules**"). The Authority and the Supplier undertake to comply with the provisions of the Schedules in the performance of this Framework Agreement.

The Definitions in Schedule 4 apply to the use of all capitalised terms in this Framework Agreement.

### **Schedules**

Schedule 1	Key Provisions	
Schedule 2	General Terms and Conditions	
Schedule 3	Information and Data Provisions	
Schedule 4	Definitions and Interpretations	
Schedule 5	Specification and Tender Response Document	
Schedule 6	Commercial Schedule	
Schedule 7	Ordering Procedure, Award Criteria and Order Form	
Schedule 8	Service Levels	
Schedule 9	Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking Remedial Proposal	
Schedule 910	Social Value Reporting Metrics	
Appendix A	Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods	



### Signed by the authorised representative of THE AUTHORITY

Name:	 Signature:	
Position:		

### Signed by the authorised representative of THE SUPPLIER

Name:	 Signature	
Position:		



### Schedule 1

### **Key Provisions**

### **Standard Key Provisions**

### **Application of the Key Provisions**

- **1.1** The standard Key Provisions at Clauses 0 to 0 of this Schedule 1 shall apply to this Framework Agreement.
- 1.2 The optional Key Provisions at Clauses 0 to 0 of this Schedule 1 shall only apply to this Framework Agreement where they have been checked and information completed as applicable.
- **1.3** Extra Key Provisions shall only apply to this Framework Agreement where such provisions are set out at the end of this Schedule 1.

### Term

1.4 The Term of this Framework Agreement shall be two (2) years from the Commencement Date and may be extended in accordance with Clause 15.2 of Schedule 2 provided that the duration of this Framework Agreement shall be no longer than four (4) years in total.

### **Contract Managers**

- **1.5** The Contract Managers at the commencement of this Framework Agreement are:
  - 1.5.1 for the Authority:

Category Manager

1.5.2 for the Supplier:

### Names and addresses for notices

- **1.6** Notices served under this Framework Agreement are to be delivered to:
  - 1.6.1 for the Authority:

Category Manager

1.6.2 for the Supplier:











### Management levels for escalation and dispute resolution

**1.7** The management levels at which a Dispute will be dealt with are as follows:

Level	Authority representative	Supplier representative
1	Contract Manager	
2	Senior Category Manager	
3	National Category Manager	
4	Category Tower Director	

### Order of precedence

- **1.8** Subject always to Clause 31.10 of Schedule 4, should there be a conflict between any other parts of this Framework Agreement the order of priority for construction purposes shall be:
  - 1.8.1 the provisions on the front page of this NHS Framework Agreement for the Supply of Goods:
  - 1.8.2 Schedule 1: Key Provisions;
  - 1.8.3 Schedule 5: Specification and Tender Response Document (but only in respect of the Authority's requirements);
  - 1.8.4 Schedule 2: General Terms and Conditions;
  - 1.8.5 Schedule 6: Commercial Schedule:
  - 1.8.6 Schedule 3: Information Governance Provisions;
  - 1.8.7 Schedule 4: Definitions and Interpretations;
  - 1.8.8 the order in which all subsequent schedules, if any, appear; and
  - 1.8.9 any other documentation forming part of the Framework Agreement in the date order in which such documentation was created with the more recent documentation taking precedence over older documentation to the extent only of any conflict.
- 1.9 For the avoidance of doubt, the Specification and Tender Response Document shall include, without limitation, the Authority's requirements in the form of its specification and other statements and requirements, the Supplier's responses, proposals and/or method statements to meet those requirements, and any clarifications to the Supplier's responses, proposals and/or method statements as included as part of Schedule 5. Should there be a conflict between these parts of the Specification and Tender Response Document, the order of priority for construction purposes shall be (1) the Authority's requirements; (2) any clarification to the Supplier's responses, proposals and/or method statements, and (3) the Supplier's responses, proposals and/or method statements.











### **Participating Authorities**

- **1.10** The following Contracting Authorities are entitled to place Orders:
  - 1.10.1 Supply Chain Coordination Limited (SCCL), which is a company Registered in England and Wales, with company number 10881715, Registered office address: Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London SE1 8UG.
  - 1.10.2 Listings of entities eligible to utilise any resulting agreement(s), subject to the approval of the Authority include any other NHS/Public Sector bodies located in England, Wales, Scotland, Northern Ireland, including any of the Crown Dependencies and NHS Collaborative Procurement Organisations: The NHS in England (National Health Service for the United Kingdom) including but not limited to Foundation Trusts, Acute (Hospital) Trusts, Ambulance Trusts, Mental Health Trusts, Care Trusts or their successors in title. Please note that wholly owned subsidiaries of organisations summarised above and detailed below will also have access to this Framework Agreement:
    - (i) NHS Trusts (https://www.nhs.uk/servicedirectories/pages/nhstrustlisting.aspx).
    - (ii) Integrated Care Systems (ICS) and their individual constituent organisations <a href="https://www.england.nhs.uk/integratedcare/what-is-integrated-care/">https://www.england.nhs.uk/integratedcare/what-is-integrated-care/</a>
    - (iii) Area Teams: <a href="https://www.nhs.uk/ServiceDirectories/Pages/AreaTeamListing.as">https://www.nhs.uk/ServiceDirectories/Pages/AreaTeamListing.as</a> <a href="px">px</a>
    - (iv) Special Health Authorities: <a href="http://www.nhs.uk/ServiceDirectories/Pages/SpecialHealthAuthorityListing.aspx">http://www.nhs.uk/ServiceDirectories/Pages/SpecialHealthAuthorityListing.aspx</a>
    - (v) Department of Health: https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-of-health Arm's Length Bodies: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-contact-department-of-health-arms-length-bodies/department-of-healths-agencies-and-partner-organisations
    - (vi) Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships (STPs) and their individual constituent organisations: <a href="https://www.england.nhs.uk/stps/view-stps/">https://www.england.nhs.uk/stps/view-stps/</a>
    - (vii) NHS England: <a href="https://www.england.nhs.uk/">https://www.england.nhs.uk/</a>





and other organisations involved in commissioning primary care services via Clinical Commissioning Groups supported by Commissioning Support Units which are responsible for commissioning most aspects of NHS care (or equivalent body established pursuant to legislation enacted as a result of, or in connection with, the White Paper, Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS published July 2010.

- 1.10.3 NHS Integrated Care Boards (ICB) (https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/findyour-local-integrated-care-board/)
- 1.10.4 CSU: https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning
- 1.10.5 The Clinical Commissioning Board, Area Teams: https://www.nhs.uk/ServiceDirectories/Pages/AreaTeamListing.aspx other organisations involved in commissioning and/or overseeing General Practitioner services, GP consortia, GP Practices and any other provider of primary medical services:
  - a) who are a party to any of the following contracts: - General Medical Services (GMS) Personal Medical Services (PMS) -Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS) and/or
  - b) Commissioned by NHS England or other organisations involved in commissioning or overseeing General Practitioner services, as described above. The NHS in Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland including but not limited to Primary care services - GPs, dentists and optometrists, pharmacies, Hospital services, and community services, including those provided through community health centres and mental health services at: NHS Wales (National Health Service for Wales): including but not limited to Welsh Health Boards, NHS Trusts and Public Health Wales:
    - http://www.wales.nhs.uk/nhswalesaboutus/s tructure
- 1.10.6 NHS Scotland (National Health Service for Scotland) including but not limited to Regional NHS Boards, Special NHS Boards and public health body at: http://www.scot.nhs.uk/organisations/
- 1.10.7 Health and Social Care Services in Northern Ireland: (National Health Service for Northern Ireland) including but not limited to Health Trusts, Social











Care Board and other HSC Agencies: <a href="http://online.net/other-hsc-organisation">http://online.net/other-hsc-organisation</a>

- 1.10.8 Social Enterprise UK: https://www.socialenterprise.org.uk
- 1.10.9 Local Authority Councils in England, Scotland and Wales: county, unitary, district, borough, and metropolitan councils (parish/community councils) Local Councils in England, Scotland and Wales: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/find-local-council">https://www.gov.uk/find-local-council</a>
- 1.10.10 Local Authority Councils in Northern Ireland: <a href="https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/contacts/local-councils-in-northern-ireland">https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/contacts/local-councils-in-northern-ireland</a>
- 1.10.11 Isle of Man (IoM) Government and associated IoM based public bodies, including all IoM Government Departments and Cabinet Office, including but not limited to: Department of Health & Social Care: <a href="https://www.gov.im/about-the-government/departments/health-and-social-care/">https://www.gov.im/about-the-government/departments/health-and-social-care/</a>
- 1.10.12 The States of Jersey Government and administration including all Government Departments including but not limited to: Health & Social Services:

  <a href="https://www.gov.je/Government/Departments/HealthSocialServices/Pages/index.aspx">https://www.gov.je/Government/Departments/HealthSocialServices/Pages/index.aspx</a>
- 1.10.13 The States of Guernsey (Parliament and government) including but not limited to the Committee for Health & Social Care: https://www.gov.gg/article/152954/Health-and-Social-Services
- 1.10.14 Department Educational Establishments in England including schools and colleges: <a href="https://get-information-schools.service.gov.uk">https://get-information-schools.service.gov.uk</a>
- 1.10.15 Schools in Wales: <a href="http://gov.wales/address-list-schools">http://gov.wales/address-list-schools</a>
- 1.10.16 Further Education and 6th Form Colleges in the UK: http://findfe.com
- 1.10.17 Higher Education Recognised or listed bodies in the UK offering degree-level courses: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/check-a-university-is-officially-recognised">https://www.gov.uk/check-a-university-is-officially-recognised</a>
- 1.10.18 Schools in Scotland including primary, secondary and special schools: <a href="https://education.gov.scot/parentzone/">https://education.gov.scot/parentzone/</a>
- 1.10.19 Educational Establishments in Scotland: <a href="http://www.gov.scot/Topics/Statistics/ScotXed/SchoolEducation/SchoolEst">http://www.gov.scot/Topics/Statistics/ScotXed/SchoolEducation/SchoolEst</a> ablishments
- 1.10.20 Schools and Educational Establishments in Northern Ireland: <a href="https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/services/schools-plus">https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/services/schools-plus</a>











- Higher Education Universities and Colleges in Northern Ireland: 1.10.21 https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/articles/universities-and-colleges-northernireland 1.10.22 UK Police Forces in England, Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales including National Special Police Forces. https://www.police.uk/forces/ 1.10.23 England Fire and Rescue Services http://www.fireservice.co.uk 1.10.24 Scottish Fire & Rescue Services http://www.firescotland.gov.uk/yourarea.aspx 1.10.25 Welsh Fire & Rescue Services http://gov.wales/fire-rescue 1.10.26 Northern Ireland Fire & Rescue Service https://www.nifrs.org/areas-districts UK 1.10.27 Maritime & Coastguard Agency https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/maritime-and-coastguardagency 1.10.28 Registered charities in England and Wales: https://www.gov.uk/find-charityinformation 1.10.29 Registered charities in Scotland: https://www.oscr.org.uk/charities 1.10.30 Registered charities in Northern Ireland: http://www.charitycommissionni.org.uk/charity-search 1.10.31 Ministry of Defence (MOD): https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-defence 1.10.32 Registered social landlords, government funded, not-for-profit organisations that provide affordable housing, including housing associations, trusts and cooperatives. England: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/current-registered-providers-Scotland: of-social-housing http://directory.scottishhousingregulator.gov.uk/pages/default.aspx 1.10.33 Wales: <a href="http://gov.wales/registered-social-landlords">http://gov.wales/registered-social-landlords</a> 1.10.34 Northern Ireland: https://www.nidirect.gov.uk/contacts/housing-associations 1.10.35 NHS Supply Chain: <a href="https://www.nhssupplychain.nhs.uk">https://www.nhssupplychain.nhs.uk</a>
- 1.11 For the avoidance of doubt, any successor bodies of any of the above entities shall be entitled to place Orders and shall be deemed Participating Authorities for the purposes of this Framework Agreement.











### **Optional Key Provisions**

# Quality assurance standards $\boxtimes$ (only applicable to the Framework Agreement if this box is checked and the standards are listed)

- **1.12** The following quality assurance standards shall apply, as appropriate, to the manufacture, supply, and/or installation of the Goods:
  - 1.12.1 Medical Devices Regulations 2002 (UK MDR 2002).
  - 1.12.2 UKCA (UK Conformity Assessment).
  - 1.12.3 BS EN 60601-1:2006+A1:2013 or equivalent.
  - 1.12.4 BS EN IEC 60601-2-35:2021.
  - 1.12.5 BS EN 62570:2015.
  - 1.12.6 Temperature sensors must meet the requirements of BS EN ISO 80601-2-56:2012 or equivalent.
  - 1.12.7 Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 2016

# Different levels and/or types of insurance (only applicable to the Framework Agreement if this box is checked and the table sets out the requirements)

**1.13** The Supplier shall put in place and maintain in force the following insurances with the following minimum cover per claim:

Type of insurance required	Minimum cover
Employer's liability insurance	£5 Million
Employer 3 hability insurance	25 Willion
Public liability insurance	£5 Million
Product liability insurance	£5 Million
Professional Indemnity Insurance	£5 Million

### Guarantee ⋈ (only applicable to the Framework Agreement if this box is checked)

1.14 Promptly following the execution of this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall, if it has not already delivered an executed deed of guarantee to the Authority, deliver the executed deed of guarantee to the Authority as required by the procurement process followed by the Authority. Failure to comply with this Key Provision shall be an irremediable breach of this Framework Agreement.

### **Extra Key Provisions**

2 Not used.





- In the event that the Authority is made aware of the following matters of concern ("Matters of Concern"):
  - any breach, or potential breach, of the relevant Indicators, Laws, Convention or Guidance on Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking incident(s) by the Supplier or within the Supplier's supply chain; or
  - any actual, suspected and/or credible allegations (including but not limited to whistleblowing allegations, media reports and/or actions of foreign states relating to the Supplier) of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking incident(s) by the Supplier or within the Supplier's supply chain relating to the Goods.

### the Authority may:

- 3.2.1 immediately suspend in whole or part the inclusion of the Supplier from the Framework Agreement (and provide notice to all Participating Authorities of the suspension from the Framework Agreement); and/or
- 3.2.2 require the Supplier to remove from performance of the Framework Agreement or any Contract:
  - (i) any Sub-Contractor,
  - (ii) Staff or other persons associated with the performance;

whose acts or omissions have caused, or are alleged to have caused, the Matters of Concern to arise; and/ or

- 3.2.3 where any Matter of Concern is determined to be, or would if substantiated, amount a breach of this Framework Agreement, require a Remedial Proposal in accordance with clause 15.3 of schedule 2 and Schedule 9 to remedy the breach; and/or
- 3.2.4 require access to audit (including an audit against the Indicators), including requiring a Third Party Audit paid for by the Supplier of, any books, information systems, databases, records, premises and/or any other relevant documentation and/or access to personnel, to collect information held by the Supplier and all associated Sub-Contractors throughout the supply chain for all Goods in accordance with this Framework Agreement; and/or
- 3.2.5 require the Supplier to conduct an investigation, that is carried out in a manner agreed with the Authority, and publish findings to the Authority, inclusive of any outcomes to the investigation and/or any required actions and/or recommendations, where relevant; and/or
- 3.2.6 require the Supplier to permit an investigation, carried out by a third party or agent acting on behalf of the Authority, and publish findings to the Authority,











inclusive of any outcomes to the investigation and/or any required actions and/or recommendations, where relevant.

- 4 Pursuant to clause 12 of this Schedule 1, in the event that the investigation or enquiries determine that the breach and/or incident is not capable of remedy or has not been remedied (in accordance with Clause 15.3 and 15.4 of Schedule 2), the Framework Agreement may be terminated, with immediate effect, and any outstanding payments treated in accordance with clause 16 of Schedule 2.
- 5 Not used.
- The Supplier shall support the Authority to deliver social value objectives as evidenced in a number of ways, including the following:
  - 6.1 To support towards net zero greenhouse gas emissions and effective stewardship of the Environment throughout the lifetime of the Framework Agreement, within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Supplier shall provide the Authority with evidence (to the absolute satisfaction of the Authority) that they have started to publicly report the Organisation's scope 1 and 2 emissions. The Parties agree that where the Supplier does not provide this evidence the Authority within six (6) months of the Commencement Date this shall be deemed as a material breach for the purposes of Clause 16.4 of Schedule 2 in this Agreement, meaning that the Authority reserves the right (acting in its absolute discretion) to use any of the remedial rights set out in the Framework Agreement, including but not limited to those set out at Clauses 16.17 and 18 of Schedule 2.
  - 6.2 To support working towards net zero greenhouse gas emissions and effective stewardship of the Environment throughout the lifetime of the Agreement, within eighteen (18) months Commencement Date, the Supplier shall provide to the Authority with evidence (to the absolute satisfaction of the Authority) of the Supplier's commitment, published publicly, to achieving its environmental targets and goals, including but not limited to: net zero carbon for scope 1&2 by 2040 and scope 3 by 2045, in line with the NHS targets. The Parties agree that where the Supplier does not provide this evidence to the Authority within eighteen (18) months of the Commencement Date this shall be deemed a material breach for the purposes of Clause 16.4 of Schedule 2 below, meaning that the Authority reserves the right (acting in its absolute discretion) to use any of the remedial rights set out in this Framework Agreement, including but not limited to those set out in Clauses 16,17 and 18 of Schedule 2.
- 7 The Authority has adopted the Supplier Registration Systems for the Government (SRS) for both Supplier Assessment and Supplier Mapping. The purpose of this is to increase oversight and enable due diligence on Sustainability and Social Value aspects. This is to support the Authority's Sustainability Strategy commitments; both to support the NHS' ambition to decarbonise and journey to net zero ("Delivering a Net Zero NHS") and to understand what due diligence the Supplier has in place to manage compliance with











### international Labour standards:

- 7.1 Within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Supplier is required to complete the Carbon Waste and Water Assessment tools (the template found following for which can be at the link: https://supplierregistration.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/). The Parties agree that where the Supplier defaults to complete the Assessment Tools within six (6) months of the Commencement Date this shall be deemed a material breach for the purposes of clause 16.4 of Schedule 3, meaning that the Authority may use any of the remedial rights set out in the Framework Agreement, including but not limited to those set out at Clauses 16, 17 and 18 of Schedule 2.
- 8 To support the Authority in delivering the recommendations made following the Boardman Review into Pandemic Procurement and particularly the requirement to increase transparency of Supply Chains to the Authority:
- 9 Within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Authority requires Suppliers to complete the Supply Chain Mapping for all products on the Framework Agreement using the Supply Chain Mapping Tool (which can be found at the following link: <a href="https://supplierregistration.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/login">https://supplierregistration.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/login</a>.
- Within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Authority requires Suppliers to complete the Modern Slavery Assessment Tool (MSAT) and achieve a minimum score of 40%, using the following campaign code (S35WN) on the SRS System, as follows: https://supplierregistration.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/login.
- 11 Within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Authority requires Suppliers to complete the Labour Standards Assessment (LSA) and achieve a minimum score of 40%, using the following campaign code (72GYY) on the SRS System, as follows: https://supplierregistration.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/login.
- Pursuant to clause 9 of this Schedule One, in the event that the Supply Chain Mapping is not complete within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Authority reserves the right to suspend the contractual obligations and supply of affected Goods until resolution.
- Pursuant to clause 10 and 11 of this Schedule One, in the event that any one of the requirement(s) are not complete within six (6) months of the Commencement Date, the Authority reserves the right to suspend the contractual obligations and supply of affected Goods until resolution.









### Schedule 2

### **General Terms and Conditions**

### **Contents**

- Supplier's appointment
- 2. Authority commitments
- 3. Ordering procedures
- 4 Reasonable assistance
- Supplier Performance and Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register
- 6. **Business continuity**
- 7. The Authority's obligations
- 8. Contract management
- 9. Price and payment
- 10. Warranties
- 11. Statutory compliance
- 12. Independence of Participating Authorities
- 13. Limitation of liability
- 14. Insurance
- 15. Term and termination
- Consequences of expiry or early termination of this Framework 16. Agreement
- 17. Suspension of Supplier's appointment
- 18. Complaints
- 19. Sustainable development
- 20. Electronic product information
- 21. Change management
- 22. Dispute resolution
- 23. Force majeure
- 24. Records retention and right of audit
- 25. Conflicts of interest and the prevention of fraud
- 26. Equality and human rights
- 27. Notice
- 28. Assignment, novation and Sub-contracting
- 29. Prohibited Acts
- 30. General













### 1 Supplier's appointment

- **1.1** The Authority appoints the Supplier as a potential supplier of the Goods and the Supplier shall be eligible to be considered for the award of Orders during the Term.
- 1.2 In consideration of the Authority agreeing to appoint the Supplier to this Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 1.1 of this Schedule 2 and the mutual exchange of promises and obligations under this Framework Agreement, the Supplier undertakes to supply Goods under Orders placed with the Supplier:
  - 1.2.1 of the exact quality, type and as otherwise specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document;
  - 1.2.2 at the Contract Price calculated in accordance with the Commercial Schedule; and
  - 1.2.3 in such quantities, at such times and to such locations as may be specified in an Order.
- 1.3 The Supplier agrees that the Call-Off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods shall apply to all supplies of Goods made by the Supplier to a Participating Authority pursuant to this Framework Agreement. The Supplier agrees that it will not in its dealings with a Participating Authority seek to impose or rely on any other contractual terms which in any way vary or contradict the relevant Contract.
- 1.4 The Supplier shall comply fully with its obligations set out in this Framework Agreement, the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods and any other provisions of Contracts entered into under and in accordance with this Framework Agreement (to include, without limitation, the KPIs and all obligations in relation to the quality, performance characteristics, supply, delivery and installation and training in relation to use of the Goods).
- 1.5 If there are any quality, performance and/or safety related reports, notices, alerts or other communications issued by the Supplier or any regulatory or other body in relation to the Goods, the Supplier shall promptly provide the Authority with a copy of any such reports, notices, alerts or other communications.
- 1.6 Upon receipt of any such reports, notices, alerts or other communications pursuant to Clause 1.5 of this Schedule 2, the Authority shall be entitled to request further information from the Supplier and/or a meeting with the Supplier, and the Supplier shall cooperate fully with any such request.
- 1.7 In complying with its obligations under this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall, and shall procure that all Staff shall, act in accordance with the NHS values as set out in the NHS Constitution from time to time.

### 2 Authority commitments

- **2.1** Unless otherwise set out in the Commercial Schedule, the Supplier acknowledges that:
  - 2.1.1 there is no obligation on the Authority or on any other Participating Authority to purchase any Goods from the Supplier during the Term;



- 2.1.2 no undertaking or any form of statement, promise, representation or obligation has been made by the Authority and/or any other Participating Authority in respect of the total quantities or value of the Goods to be ordered by them pursuant to this Framework Agreement and the Supplier acknowledges and agrees that it has not entered into this Framework Agreement on the basis of any such undertaking. statement, promise or representation;
- 2.1.3 in entering this Framework Agreement, no form of exclusivity has been granted by the Authority and/or other Participating Authority; and
- 2.1.4 the Authority and/or other Participating Authorities are at all times entitled to enter into other contracts and agreements with other suppliers for the provision of any or all goods which are the same as or similar to the Goods.

#### 3 Ordering procedure

Any Participating Authority may enter into Contracts by placing an Order in accordance with the Ordering Procedure.

#### Reasonable assistance 4

Upon the written request of any Participating Authority, the Supplier shall provide such Participating Authority with any reasonable and proportionate information that it holds about the Goods it supplies under this Framework Agreement including, without limitation, the compatibility and interoperability of such Goods with other products, to enable the Participating Authority to complete any necessary due diligence before purchasing such Goods.

#### 5 **Supplier Performance and Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register**

- 5.1 The Supplier shall perform all Contracts entered into under this Framework Agreement by the Authority or any other Participating Authority in accordance with:
  - 5.1.1 the requirements of this Framework Agreement; and
  - 5.1.2 the provisions of the respective Contracts.
- Unless otherwise confirmed by the Authority in writing, the Supplier shall ensure full compliance (to include with any implementation timelines) with any Guidance issued by the Department of Health and Social Care and/or any requirements and/or Policies issued by the Authority (to include as may be set out as part of any procurement documents leading to the award of this Framework Agreement) in relation to the adoption of, and compliance with, any scheme or schemes to verify the credentials of Supplier representatives that visit NHS premises (to include use of the Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register). Once compliance with any notified implementation timelines has been achieved by the Supplier, the Supplier shall, during the Term, maintain the required level of compliance in accordance with any such Guidance, requirements and Polices.

#### 6 **Business continuity**

Throughout the Term, the Supplier will ensure its Business Continuity Plan provides for continuity during a Business Continuity Event. The Supplier confirms and agrees such Business Continuity Plan details and will continue to detail robust arrangements that are reasonable and proportionate to:











- 6.1.1 the criticality of this Framework Agreement to the Participating Authorities; and
- 6.1.2 the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations,

regarding continuity of the supply of Goods during and following a Business Continuity Event.

- 6.2 The Supplier shall test its Business Continuity Plan at reasonable intervals, and in any event no less than once every twelve (12) months or such other period as may be agreed between the Parties taking into account the criticality of this Framework Agreement to Participating Authorities and the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations. The Supplier shall promptly provide to the Authority, at the Authority's written request, copies of its Business Continuity Plan, reasonable and proportionate documentary evidence that the Supplier tests its Business Continuity Plan in accordance with the requirements of this Clause 6.2 of this Schedule 2 and reasonable and proportionate information regarding the outcome of such tests. The Supplier shall provide to the Authority a copy of any updated or revised Business Continuity Plan within fourteen (14) Business Days of any material update or revision to the Business Continuity Plan.
- 6.3 The Authority may suggest reasonable and proportionate amendments to the Supplier regarding the Business Continuity Plan at any time. Where the Supplier, acting reasonably, deems such suggestions made by the Authority to be relevant and appropriate, the Supplier will incorporate into the Business Continuity Plan all such suggestions made by the Authority in respect of such Business Continuity Plan. Should the Supplier not incorporate any suggestion made by the Authority into such Business Continuity Plan it will explain the reasons for not doing so to the Authority.
- **6.4** Should a Business Continuity Event occur at any time, the Supplier shall implement and comply with its Business Continuity Plan and provide regular written reports to the Authority on such implementation.
- **6.5** During and following a Business Continuity Event, the Supplier shall use reasonable endeavours to continue to fulfil its obligations in accordance with this Framework Agreement.

### 7 The Authority's obligations

- **7.1** The Authority shall provide reasonable cooperation to the Supplier and shall, as appropriate, provide copies of or give the Supplier access to such of the Policies that are relevant to the Supplier complying with its obligations under this Framework Agreement.
- **7.2** The Authority shall comply with the Authority's Obligations, if any.

### 8 Contract management

8.1 Each Party shall appoint and retain a Contract Manager who shall be the primary point of contact for the other Party in relation to matters arising from this Framework Agreement. Should the Contract Manager be replaced, the Party replacing the Contract Manager shall promptly inform the other Party in writing of the name and contact details for the new Contract Manager. Any Contract Manager appointed shall be of sufficient seniority and experience to be able to make decisions on the day to day operation of the Framework Agreement. The Supplier confirms and agrees that it will be expected to work closely and cooperate fully with the Authority's Contract Manager.



- 8.2 Each Party shall ensure that its representatives (to include, without limitation, its Contract Manager) shall attend review meetings on a regular basis to review the performance of the Supplier under this Framework Agreement and to discuss matters arising generally under this Framework Agreement. Each Party shall ensure that those attending such meetings have the authority to make decisions regarding the day-to-day operation of the Framework Agreement. Review meetings shall take place at the frequency specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document. Should the Specification and Tender Response Document not state the frequency, then the first such meeting shall take place on a date to be agreed on or around the end of the first month after the Commencement Date. Subsequent meetings shall take place at quarterly intervals or as may otherwise be agreed in writing between the Parties.
- **8.3** Two weeks prior to each review meeting (or at such time and frequency as may be specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document) the Supplier shall provide a written contract management report to the Authority regarding the supply of the Goods and the operation of this Framework Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, such contract management report shall contain:
  - 8.3.1 details of the performance of the Supplier under this Framework Agreement and any Contracts when assessed in accordance with the KPIs, as relevant to the Framework Agreement and any Contracts, since the last such performance report;
  - 8.3.2 details of any complaints by Participating Authorities in relation to the supply of Goods, their nature and the way in which the Supplier has responded to such complaints since the last review meeting written report;
  - 8.3.3 the information specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document as being relevant to the operation of this Framework Agreement;
  - 8.3.4 a status report in relation to the implementation of any current Remedial Proposals by either Party; and
  - 8.3.5 such other information as reasonably required by the Authority.
- 8.4 Unless specified otherwise in the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Authority shall take minutes of each review meeting and shall circulate draft minutes to the Supplier within a reasonable time following such review meeting. The Supplier shall inform the Authority in writing of any suggested amendments to the minutes within five (5) Business Days of receipt of the draft minutes. If the Supplier does not respond to the Authority within such five (5) Business Days the minutes will be deemed to be approved. Where there are any differences in interpretation of the minutes, the Parties will use their reasonable endeavors to reach agreement. If agreement cannot be reached the matter shall be referred to, and resolved in accordance with, the dispute resolution process set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions and Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2.
- 8.5 The Supplier shall provide such management information as the Authority may request from time to time within seven (7) Business Days of the date of the request. The Supplier shall supply the management information to the Authority in such form as may be specified by the Authority and, where requested to do so, the Supplier shall also provide such management information to another Contracting Authority whose role it is to analyse such management information in accordance with UK government policy (to include, without limitation, for the purposes of analysing public sector expenditure and planning future procurement activities) ("Third Party Body"). The Supplier confirms and agrees that the Authority may itself provide the Third Party Body with management





information relating to the Goods ordered and any payments made under this Framework Agreement or any Contracts and any other information relevant to the operation of this Framework Agreement.

- **8.6** Upon receipt of management information supplied by the Supplier to the Authority and/or the Third Party Body, or by the Authority to the Third Party Body, the Parties hereby consent to the Third Party Body and the Authority:
  - 8.6.1 storing and analysing the management information and producing statistics; and
  - 8.6.2 sharing the management information or any statistics produced using the management information with any other Contracting Authority.
- 8.7 If the Third Party Body and/or the Authority shares the management information or any other information provided under Clause 8.6 of this Schedule 2, any Contracting Authority receiving the management information shall, where such management information is subject to obligations of confidence under this Framework Agreement and such management information is provided direct by the Authority to such Contracting Authority, be informed of the confidential nature of that information by the Authority and shall be requested by the Authority not to disclose it to anybody that is not a Contracting Authority (unless required to do so by Law).
- **8.8** The Authority may make changes to the type of management information which the Supplier is required to supply and shall give the Supplier at least one (1) month's written notice of any changes.

### 9 Price and payment

- **9.1** The Contract Price for all Contracts shall be calculated as set out in the Commercial Schedule and the payment provisions for all Contracts shall be as set out in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods.
- 9.2 Where any payments are to be made under this Framework Agreement by either Party in addition to any payments to be made by Participating Authorities under any Contracts, the details of such payments and the invoicing arrangements shall be set out in the Commercial Schedule.
- **9.3** Where the Authority is entitled to receive any sums (including, without limitation, any costs, charges or expenses) from the Supplier under this Framework Agreement, the Authority may invoice the Supplier for such sums. Such invoices shall be paid by the Supplier within 30 days of the date of such invoice.
- 9.4 If a Party fails to pay any undisputed sum properly due to the other Party under this Framework Agreement, the Party due such sum shall have the right to charge interest on the overdue amount at the applicable rate under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, accruing on a daily basis from the due date up to the date of actual payment, whether before or after judgment.

### 10 Warranties

- **10.1** The Supplier warrants and undertakes that:
  - 10.1.1 it will comply with the terms of all Contracts entered into by Participating Authorities under this Framework Agreement;





- 10.1.2 it will fully and promptly respond to all requests for information and/or requests for answers to questions regarding this Framework Agreement, any Contracts, the Goods, any complaints and any Disputes at the frequency, in the timeframes and in the format as requested by the Authority from time to time (acting reasonably);
- 10.1.3 all information included within the Supplier's responses to any documents issued by the Authority as part of the procurement relating to the award of this Framework Agreement (to include, without limitation, as referred to in Specification and Tender Response Document and Commercial Schedule) and all accompanying materials is accurate;
- 10.1.4 it has and shall as relevant maintain all rights, consents, authorisations, licences and accreditations required to enter into and comply with its obligations under this Framework Agreement;
- 10.1.5 it has the right and authority to enter into this Framework Agreement and that it has the capability and capacity to fulfil its obligations under this Framework Agreement;
- 10.1.6 it is a properly constituted entity and it is fully empowered by the terms of its constitutional documents to enter into and to carry out its obligations under this Framework Agreement and the documents referred to in this Framework Agreement:
- 10.1.7 all necessary actions to authorise the execution of and performance of its obligations under this Framework Agreement have been taken before such execution:
- 10.1.8 there are no pending or threatened actions or proceedings before any court or administrative agency which would materially adversely affect the financial condition, business or operations of the Supplier;
- 10.1.9 there are no material agreements existing to which the Supplier is a party which prevent the Supplier from entering into or complying with this Framework Agreement;
- 10.1.10 it has and will continue to have the capacity, funding and cash flow to meet all its obligations under this Framework Agreement; and
- 10.1.11 it has satisfied itself as to the nature and extent of the risks assumed by it under this Framework Agreement and has gathered all information necessary to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement and all other obligations assumed by it.
- 10.1.12 it shall: (i) comply with all relevant Law and Guidance and shall use Good Industry Practice to ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains; and (ii) notify the Authority immediately if it becomes aware of any actual or suspected incidents of slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains;
- 10.1.13 it shall at all times conduct its business in a manner that is consistent with any anti-slavery Policy of the Authority and shall provide to the Authority any reports or other information that the Authority may request as evidence of the Supplier's











compliance with this Clause 10.1.12 and/or as may be requested or otherwise required by the Authority in accordance with its anti-slavery Policy.

- 10.2 The Supplier warrants that all information, data and other records and documents required by the Authority as set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document shall be submitted to the Authority in the format and in accordance with any timescales set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document.
- 10.3 The Supplier warrants and undertakes to the Authority that it shall comply with any eProcurement Guidance as it may apply to the Supplier and shall carry out all reasonable acts required of the Supplier to enable the Authority to comply with such eProcurement Guidance.
- **10.4** The Supplier warrants and undertakes to the Authority that, as at the Commencement Date, it has notified the Authority in writing of any Occasions of Tax Non-Compliance or any litigation that it is involved in that is in connection with any Occasions of Tax Non-Compliance. If, at any point during the Term, an Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance occurs, the Supplier shall:
  - 10.4.1 notify the Authority in writing of such fact within five (5) Business Days of its occurrence; and
  - 10.4.2 promptly provide to the Authority:
- (i) details of the steps which the Supplier is taking to address the Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance and to prevent the same from recurring, together with any mitigating factors that it considers relevant; and
- such other information in relation to the Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance as the (ii) Authority may reasonably require.
- 10.5 The Supplier further warrants and undertakes to the Authority that it will inform the Authority in writing immediately upon becoming aware that any of the warranties set out in Clause 10 of this Schedule 2 have been breached or there is a risk that any warranties may be breached.
- 10.6 Any warranties provided under this Framework Agreement are both independent and cumulative and may be enforced independently or collectively at the sole discretion of the enforcing Party.

#### 11 Statutory compliance

- 11.1 The Supplier shall comply with all Law and Guidance relevant to its obligations under this Framework Agreement and any Contracts.
- 11.2 Without limitation to Clause 11.1 of this Schedule 2, the Supplier shall be responsible for obtaining any statutory licences, authorisations, consents or permits required in connection with its performance of its obligations under this Framework Agreement and any Contracts.

#### 12 **Independence of Participating Authorities**

12.1 The Supplier acknowledges that each Participating Authority is independently responsible for the conduct of its award of Contracts under this Framework Agreement











and that the Authority is not responsible or accountable for and shall have no liability whatsoever in relation to:

- the conduct of Participating Authorities other than the Authority in relation to the 12.1.1 operation of this Framework Agreement: or
- 12.1.2 the performance or non-performance of any Participating Authorities other than the Authority under any Contracts between the Supplier and such other Participating Authorities entered into under this Framework Agreement.

#### 13 Limitation of liability

- **13.1** Nothing in this Framework Agreement shall exclude or restrict the liability of either Party:
  - 13.1.1 for death or personal injury resulting from its negligence;
  - 13.1.2 for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation;
  - 13.1.3 in any other circumstances where liability may not be limited or excluded under any applicable law;
  - 13.1.4 to make any payments agreed in accordance with Clause 9.2 of this Schedule 2; or
  - 13.1.5 pursuant to 2.5 of Schedule 3.
- 13.2 Subject to Clause 13.1, 13.3 and 13.5 of this Schedule 2, the total liability of each Party to the other under or in connection with this Framework Agreement whether arising in contract, tort, negligence, breach of statutory duty or otherwise shall be limited in aggregate to five hundred thousand GBP (£500,000).
- 13.3 There shall be no right to claim losses, damages and/or other costs and expenses under or in connection with this Framework Agreement whether arising in contract (to include, without limitation, under any relevant indemnity), tort, negligence, breach of statutory duty or otherwise to the extent that any losses, damages and/or other costs and expenses claimed are in respect of loss of production, loss of business opportunity or are in respect of indirect loss of any nature suffered or alleged.
- **13.4** Each Party shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any loss for which that Party is entitled to bring a claim against the other pursuant to this Framework Agreement.
- 13.5 The liability of the Supplier and any Participating Authorities under any Contracts entered into pursuant to this Framework Agreement shall be as set out in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods forming part of such Contracts.

#### 14 **Insurance**

14.1 Subject to Clauses 14.2 and 14.3 of this Schedule 2 and unless otherwise confirmed in writing by the Authority, as a minimum level of protection, the Supplier shall put in place and/or maintain in force at its own cost with a reputable commercial insurer, insurance arrangements in respect of employer's liability, public liability and product liability in accordance with Good Industry Practice with the minimum cover per claim of the greater of five million pounds (£5,000,000) or any sum as required by Law unless otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing. These requirements shall not apply to the extent that













the Supplier is a member and maintains membership of each of the indemnity schemes run by the NHS Litigation Authority.

- 14.2 Without limitation to any insurance arrangements as required by Law, the Supplier shall put in place and/or maintain the different types and/or levels of indemnity arrangements explicitly required by the Authority, if specified in the Key Provisions.
- 14.3 Provided that the Supplier maintains all indemnity arrangements required by Law, the Supplier may self insure in order to meet other relevant requirements referred to at Clauses 14.1 and 14.2 of this Schedule 2 on condition that such self insurance arrangements offer the appropriate levels of protection and are approved by the Authority in writing prior to the Commencement Date.
- 14.4 The amount of any indemnity cover and/or self insurance arrangements shall not relieve the Supplier of any liabilities under this Framework Agreement. It shall be the responsibility of the Supplier to determine the amount of indemnity and/or self insurance cover that will be adequate to enable it to satisfy its potential liabilities under this Framework Agreement. Accordingly, the Supplier shall be liable to make good any deficiency if the proceeds of any indemnity cover and/or self insurance arrangement is insufficient to cover the settlement of any claim.
- 14.5 The Supplier warrants that it shall not take any action or fail to take any reasonable action or (in so far as it is reasonable and within its power) permit or allow others to take or fail to take any action, as a result of which its insurance cover may be rendered void. voidable, unenforceable, or be suspended or impaired in whole or in part, or which may otherwise render any sum paid out under such insurances repayable in whole or in part.
- 14.6 The Supplier shall from time to time and in any event within five (5) Business Days of written demand provide documentary evidence to the Authority that insurance arrangements taken out by the Supplier pursuant to Clause 14 of this Schedule 2 and the Key Provisions are fully maintained and that any premiums on them and/or contributions in respect of them (if any) are fully paid.
- **14.7** Upon the expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall ensure that any ongoing liability it has or may have arising out of this Framework Agreement shall continue to be the subject of appropriate indemnity arrangements for the period of twenty one (21) years from termination or expiry of this Framework Agreement or until such earlier date as that liability may reasonably be considered to have ceased to exist.

#### 15 **Term and termination**

- **15.1** This Framework Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Framework Agreement or the general law, shall continue until the end of the Term.
- 15.2 The Authority shall be entitled to extend the Term on one or more occasions by giving the Supplier written notice no less than three (3) months prior to the date on which this Framework Agreement would otherwise have expired, provided that the duration of this Framework Agreement shall be no longer than the total term specified in the Key Provisions.
- 15.3 In the case of a breach of any of the terms of this Framework Agreement by either Party that is capable of remedy (including any failure to pay sums due under this Framework Agreement), the non-breaching Party may, without prejudice to its other rights and











remedies under this Framework Agreement, issue a Breach Notice and shall allow the Party in breach the opportunity to remedy such breach in the first instance via a remedial proposal put forward by the Party in breach ("Remedial Proposal") before exercising any right to terminate this Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 15.4(ii) of this Schedule 2. Such Remedial Proposal must be agreed with the non-breaching Party (such agreement not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) and must be implemented by the Party in breach in accordance with the timescales referred to in the agreed Remedial Proposal. Once agreed, any changes to a Remedial Proposal must be approved by the Parties in writing. Any failure by the Party in breach to:

- 15.3.1 put forward and agree a Remedial Proposal with the non-breaching Party in relation to the relevant default or breach within a period of ten (10) Business Days (or such other period as set out in Schedule 9 of this Framework Agreement or as the non-breaching Party may agree in writing) from written notification of the relevant default or breach from the non-breaching Party;
- 15.3.2 comply with such Remedial Proposal (including, without limitation, as to its timescales for implementation, which shall be thirty (30) days unless Schedule 9 applies to the Remedial Proposal in which case the time limits in that Schedule shall apply save as otherwise agreed between the Parties); and/or
- 15.3.3 remedy the default or breach notwithstanding the implementation of such Remedial Proposal in accordance with the agreed timescales for implementation,

shall be deemed, for the purposes of Clause 15.4(ii) of this Schedule 2, a material breach of this Framework Agreement by the Party in breach not remedied in accordance with an agreed Remedial Proposal.

- **15.4** Either Party may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the other Party if such other Party commits a material breach of any of the terms of this Framework Agreement which is:
- (i) not capable of remedy; or
- (ii) in the case of a breach capable of remedy, which is not remedied in accordance with a Remedial Proposal.
- **15.5** The Authority may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier if:
  - the Supplier, or any third party guaranteeing the obligations of the Supplier under this Framework Agreement, ceases or threatens to cease carrying on its business; suspends making payments on any of its debts or announces an intention to do so; is, or is deemed for the purposes of any Law to be, unable to pay its debts as they fall due or insolvent; enters into or proposes any composition, assignment or arrangement with its creditors generally; takes any step or suffers any step to be taken in relation to its winding-up, dissolution, administration (whether out of court or otherwise) or reorganisation (by way of voluntary arrangement, scheme of arrangement or otherwise) otherwise than as part of, and exclusively for the purpose of, a bona fide reconstruction or amalgamation; has a liquidator, trustee in bankruptcy, judicial custodian, compulsory manager, receiver, administrative receiver, administrator or similar officer appointed (in each case, whether out of court or otherwise) in respect of











- it or any of its assets; has any security over any of its assets enforced; or any analogous procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction;
- the Supplier undergoes a change of control within the meaning of sections 450 and 451 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 (other than for an intra-group change of control) without the prior written consent of the Authority and the Authority shall be entitled to withhold such consent if, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, the proposed change of control will have a material impact on the performance of this Framework Agreement or the reputation of the Authority;
- 15.5.3 the Supplier purports to assign, Sub-contract, novate, create a trust in or otherwise transfer or dispose of this Framework Agreement in breach of Clause 28.1 of this Schedule 2;
- 15.5.4 pursuant to and in accordance with the Key Provisions and Clauses 15.6, 23.8; 25.2; 25.4 and 29.2 of this Schedule 2; or
- 15.5.5 the warranty given by the Supplier pursuant to Clause 10.4 of this Schedule 2 is materially untrue, the Supplier commits a material breach of its obligation to notify the Authority of any Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance as required by Clause 10.4 of this Schedule 2, or the Supplier fails to provide details of proposed mitigating factors as required by Clause 10.4 of this Schedule 2 that in the reasonable opinion of the Authority are acceptable.
- 15.6 If the Authority, acting reasonably, has good cause to believe that there has been a material deterioration in the financial circumstances of the Supplier and/or any third party guaranteeing the obligations of the Supplier under this Framework Agreement and/or any material Sub-contractor of the Supplier when compared to any information provided to and/or assessed by the Authority as part of any procurement process or other due diligence leading to the award of this Framework Agreement to the Supplier or the entering into a Sub-contract by the Supplier, the following process shall apply:
  - 15.6.1 the Authority may (but shall not be obliged to) give notice to the Supplier requesting adequate financial or other security and/or assurances for due performance of its material obligations under this Framework Agreement on such reasonable and proportionate terms as the Authority may require within a reasonable time period as specified in such notice;
  - 15.6.2 a failure or refusal by the Supplier to provide the financial or other security and/or assurances requested in accordance with Clause 15.6 of this Schedule 2 in accordance with any reasonable timescales specified in any such notice issued by the Authority shall be deemed a breach of this Framework Agreement by the Supplier and shall be referred to and resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure; and
  - 15.6.3 a failure to resolve such breach in accordance with such Dispute Resolution Procedure by the end of the escalation stage of such process (as set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2) shall entitle, but shall not compel, the Authority to terminate this Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 15.4(i) of this Schedule 2.
- 15.7 In order that the Authority may act reasonably in exercising its discretion in accordance with Clause 15.6 of this Schedule 2, the Supplier shall provide the Authority with such reasonable and proportionate up-to-date financial or other information relating to the Supplier or any relevant third party entity upon request.











- **15.8** The Authority may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier where:
  - 15.8.1 the Framework Agreement has been substantially amended to the extent that the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 require a new procurement procedure;
  - the Authority has become aware that the Supplier should have been excluded under Regulation 57(1) or (2) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 from the procurement procedure leading to the award of this Framework Agreement;
  - 15.8.3 the Framework Agreement should not have been awarded to the Supplier in view of a serious infringement of obligations under European law declared by the Court of Justice of the European Union under Article 258 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the EU; or
  - there has been a failure by the Supplier and/or one its Sub-contractors to comply with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour Law including where the Supplier is in breach of its warranties under clauses 10.1.12 or 10.1.13 or the requirements of clause 26. Where the failure to comply with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour Law is a failure by one of the Supplier's Sub-contractors, the Authority may request the replacement of such Sub-contractor and the Supplier shall comply with such request as an alternative to the Authority terminating this Framework Agreement under this Clause 15.8.4 or
  - 15.8.5 information supplied as part of its submissions in the tender leading to its inclusion on the Framework Agreement is found to be false or misleading in any significant regard as determined by the Authority in its sole discretion.
- 15.9 If the Authority novates this Framework Agreement to anybody that is not a Contracting Authority, from the effective date of such novation, the rights of the Authority to terminate this Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 15.5.1 to Clause 15.5.3 of this Schedule 2 shall be deemed mutual termination rights and the Supplier may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the entity assuming the position of the Authority if any of the circumstances referred to in such Clauses apply to the entity assuming the position of the Authority.
- **15.10** A breach of clauses 24.3 or 24.4 may, in the absolute discretion of the Authority, be considered a breach not capable of remedy. If the Authority considers that the breach is not capable of remedy the Authority may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier.
- **15.11** The Authority may terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier in the event that there is:
  - 15.11.1 A failure to maintain a minimum of a 70% score on the Labour Standards Assessment (or an equivalent score on any successor certification scheme) within 15 months of the Commencement Date; or
  - 15.11.2 A failure to achieve a minimum of an 80% score on the Labour Standards Assessment (or an equivalent score on any successor certification scheme) within 27 months of the Commencement Date: or











15.11.3 A failure to maintain a minimum of a 40% score on the Modern Slavery Assessment (or an equivalent score on any successor certification scheme) in each year following the Commencement Date.

### 16 Consequences of expiry or early termination of this Framework Agreement

- **16.1** Upon expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement, the Authority and the Supplier agree that all Contracts entered into under this Framework Agreement will continue in full force and effect unless otherwise terminated under the terms and conditions of such Contracts.
- 16.2 The Supplier shall cooperate fully with the Authority or, as the case may be, any replacement supplier during any re-procurement and handover period prior to and following the expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement. This cooperation shall extend to providing access to all information relevant to the operation of this Framework Agreement, as reasonably required by the Authority to achieve a fair and transparent re-procurement and/or an effective transition without disruption to routine operational requirements. Any Personal Data Processed by the Supplier on behalf of the Authority shall be returned to the Authority or destroyed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Data Protection Protocol.
- **16.3** The expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement for whatever reason shall not affect any rights or obligations of either Party which accrued prior to such expiry or earlier termination.
- **16.4** The expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement shall not affect any obligations which expressly or by implication are intended to come into or continue in force on or after such expiry or earlier termination.
- 16.5 In the event of a termination of the Framework Agreement under clauses 15.4, 15.8.4 15.10 or 15.11 of this Schedule 2 the Authority shall give notice of such termination to all Participating Authorities. Where such notification leads a termination of unfulfilled Contracts entered into under this Framework Agreement (where Goods have not been supplied and accepted at the date of termination) by the Participating Authorities such termination is without further liability for the Authority or any Participating Authorities.

### 17 Suspension of Supplier's appointment

- 17.1 Without prejudice to the Authority's rights to terminate this Framework Agreement, if a right for the Authority to terminate this Framework Agreement arises (irrespective of whether the circumstances leading to such right are capable of remedy) in accordance with Clause 15 of this Schedule 2, or a right to suspend arises under the Key Provisions, the Authority may suspend the Supplier's appointment to receive new Orders under this Framework Agreement by giving notice in writing to the Supplier and all Participating Authorities. Such suspension may apply to:
  - 17.1.1 the entire appointment under the Framework Agreement;
  - 17.1.2 individual lots;
  - 17.1.3 to the supply of individual Goods, service lines, products or other items supplied under one or more lots; or













- 17.1.4 the use of any Sub-Contractor in the provision of the Services (such suspension being without prejudice to the right to require the replacement of a Sub-Contractor).
- **17.2** If the Authority provides notice to the Supplier in accordance with Clause 17.1 of this Schedule 2, the Supplier's appointment shall be suspended for the period set out in the notice or such other period notified to the Supplier by the Authority in writing from time to time provided that such suspension shall be lifted where:
  - 17.2.1 the circumstances leading to the Authority's right to terminate this Framework Agreement have been remedied;
  - 17.2.2 the Authority has satisfied itself that the risk and/or impact of the circumstances giving rise to the Authority's right to terminate or suspend this Framework Agreement no longer requires such suspension; or
  - 17.2.3 the Authority exercises its rights to terminate this Framework Agreement in accordance with Clause 15 of this Schedule 2.

### 18 Complaints

- **18.1** The Supplier shall notify the Authority of any formal written complaints made by other Participating Authorities relating to the Supplier's noncompliance with any of its obligations under any Contract within two (2) Business Days of the Supplier becoming aware of such complaints.
- **18.2** Without prejudice to any rights and remedies that the Participating Authority may have under the relevant Contract and/or the Authority may have under this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall use its reasonable endeavours to resolve such complaint within ten (10) Business Days and in so doing, shall deal with the complaint fully, expeditiously and fairly.
- **18.3** Within two (2) Business Days of a written request by the Authority, the Supplier shall provide further reasonable details of the complaint to the Authority, including details of the steps being taken to progress its resolution and, following its resolution, details of how and when the complaint was resolved.

### 19 Sustainable development

- 19.1 The Supplier shall comply in all material respects with applicable environmental and social Law requirements in force from time to time in relation to the Goods. Where the provisions of any such Law are implemented by the use of voluntary agreements, the Supplier shall comply with such agreements as if they were incorporated into English law subject to those voluntary agreements being cited in the Specification and Tender Response Document. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the Supplier shall:
  - 19.1.1 comply with all Policies and/or procedures and requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document in relation to any stated environmental and social requirements, characteristics and impacts of the Goods and the Supplier's supply chain;
  - 19.1.2 maintain relevant policy statements documenting the Supplier's significant social and environmental aspects as relevant to the Goods being supplied and









- as proportionate to the nature and scale of the Supplier's business operations; and
- maintain plans and procedures that support the commitments made as part of 19.1.3 the Supplier's significant social and environmental policies, as referred to at Clause 19.1.2 of this Schedule 2.
- 19.2 The Supplier shall meet reasonable requests by the Authority for information evidencing the Supplier's compliance with the provisions of Clause 19 of this Schedule 2.

#### 20 **Electronic product information**

- 20.1 Where requested by the Authority, the Supplier shall provide the Authority the Product Information in such manner and upon such media as agreed between the Supplier and the Authority from time to time for the sole use by the Authority.
- 20.2 The Supplier warrants that the Product Information is complete and accurate as at the date upon which it is delivered to the Authority and that the Product Information shall not contain any data or statement which gives rise to any liability on the part of the Authority following publication of the same in accordance with Clause 20 of this Schedule 2.
- 20.3 If the Product Information ceases to be complete and accurate, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Authority in writing of any modification or addition to or any inaccuracy or omission in the Product Information.
- 20.4 The Supplier grants the Authority a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty free licence to use and exploit the Product Information and any Intellectual Property Rights in the Product Information for the purpose of illustrating the range of goods and services (including, without limitation, the Goods) available pursuant to the Authority's contracts from time to time. Subject to Clause 20.5 of this Schedule 2, no obligation to illustrate or advertise the Product Information is imposed on the Authority, as a consequence of the licence conferred by this Clause 20.4 of this Schedule 2.
- 20.5 The Authority may reproduce for its sole use the Product Information provided by the Supplier in the Authority's product catalogue from time to time which may be made available on any NHS communications networks in electronic format and/or made available on the Authority's external website and/or made available on other digital media from time to time.
- **20.6** Before any publication of the Product Information (electronic or otherwise) is made by the Authority, the Authority will submit a copy of the relevant sections of the Authority's product catalogue to the Supplier for approval, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. For the avoidance of doubt the Supplier shall have no right to compel the Authority to exhibit the Product Information in any product catalogue as a result of the approval given by it pursuant to this Clause 20.6 of this Schedule 2 or otherwise under the terms of this Framework Agreement.
- 20.7 If requested in writing by the Authority, and to the extent not already agreed as part of the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Supplier and the Authority shall discuss and seek to agree in good faith arrangements to use any Electronic Trading System.













### 21 Change management

- 21.1 The Supplier acknowledges to the Authority that the requirements for the Goods may change during the Term and the Supplier shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any reasonable variation or addition to the Specification and Tender Response Document, as may be requested by the Authority from time to time.
- **21.2** Subject to Clause 21.3 of this Schedule 2, any change to the Goods or other variation to this Framework Agreement shall only be binding once it has been agreed in writing and signed by an authorised representative of both Parties.
- **21.3** Any change to the Data Protection Protocol shall be made in accordance with the relevant provisions of that protocol.

### 22 <u>Dispute resolution</u>

- **22.1** During any Dispute, including a Dispute as to the validity of this Framework Agreement, it is agreed that the Supplier shall continue its performance of the provisions of the Framework Agreement (unless the Authority requests in writing that the Supplier does not do so).
- 22.2 In the case of a Dispute arising out of or in connection with this Framework Agreement the Supplier and the Authority shall make every reasonable effort to communicate and cooperate with each other with a view to resolving the Dispute and follow the procedure set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 as the first stage in the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- 22.3 If any Dispute arises out of the Framework Agreement either Party may serve a notice on the other Party to commence formal resolution of the Dispute. The Parties shall first seek to resolve the Dispute by escalation in accordance with the management levels as set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions. Respective representatives at each level, as set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions, shall have five (5) Business Days at each level during which they will use their reasonable endeavours to resolve the Dispute before escalating the matter to the next level until all levels have been exhausted. Level 1 will commence on the date of service of the Dispute Notice. The final level of the escalation process shall be deemed exhausted on the expiry of five (5) Business Days following escalation to that level unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing.
- 22.4 If the procedure set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 above has been exhausted and fails to resolve such Dispute, as part of the Dispute Resolution Procedure, the Parties will attempt to settle it by mediation. The Parties shall, acting reasonably, attempt to agree upon a mediator. In the event that the Parties fail to agree a mediator within five (5) Business Days following the exhaustion of all levels of the escalation procedure at Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2, the mediator shall be nominated and confirmed by the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution, London.
- 22.5 The mediation shall commence within twenty eight (28) days of the confirmation of the mediator in accordance with Clause 22.4 of this Schedule 2 or at such other time as may be agreed by the Parties in writing. Neither Party will terminate such mediation process until each Party has made its opening presentation and the mediator has met each Party separately for at least one hour or one Party has failed to participate in the mediation process. After this time, either Party may terminate the mediation process by notification to the other party (such notification may be verbal provided that it is followed up by written confirmation). The Authority and the Supplier will cooperate with any person appointed as mediator providing them with such information and other assistance as











they shall require and will pay their costs, as they shall determine or in the absence of such determination such costs will be shared equally.

- **22.6** Nothing in this Framework Agreement shall prevent:
  - 22.6.1 the Authority taking action in any court in relation to any death or personal injury arising or allegedly arising in connection with supply of the Goods; or
  - 22.6.2 either Party seeking from any court any interim or provisional relief that may be necessary to protect the rights or property of that Party or that relates to the safety of patients or the security of Confidential Information, pending resolution of the relevant Dispute in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- **22.7** Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 shall survive the expiry of or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement for any reason.

### 23 Force majeure

- **23.1** Subject to Clause 23.2 of this Schedule 2 neither Party shall be liable to the other for any failure to perform all or any of its obligations under this Framework Agreement nor liable to the other Party for any loss or damage arising out of the failure to perform its obligations to the extent only that such performance is rendered impossible by a Force Majeure Event.
- 23.2 The Supplier shall only be entitled to rely on a Force Majeure Event and the relief set out in Clause 23 of this Schedule 2 and will not be considered to be in default or liable for breach of any obligations under this Framework Agreement if:
  - 23.2.1 the Supplier has fulfilled its obligations pursuant to Clause 6 of this Schedule 2;
  - 23.2.2 the Force Majeure Event does not arise directly or indirectly as a result of any wilful or negligent act or default of the Supplier; and
  - 23.2.3 the Supplier has complied with the procedural requirements set out in Clause 23 of this Schedule 2.
- 23.3 Where a Party is (or claims to be) affected by a Force Majeure Event it shall use reasonable endeavours to mitigate the consequences of such a Force Majeure Event upon the performance of its obligations under this Framework Agreement and to resume the performance of its obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event as soon as practicable.
- **23.4** Where the Force Majeure Event affects the Supplier's ability to perform part of its obligations under the Framework Agreement the Supplier shall fulfil all such contractual obligations that are not so affected and shall not be relieved from its liability to do so.
- 23.5 If either Party is prevented or delayed in the performance of its obligations under this Framework Agreement by a Force Majeure Event, that Party shall as soon as reasonably practicable serve notice in writing on the other Party specifying the nature and extent of the circumstances giving rise to its failure to perform or any anticipated delay in performance of its obligations.
- 23.6 Subject to service of such notice, the Party affected by such circumstances shall have no liability for its failure to perform or for any delay in performance of its obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event only for so long as such circumstances continue











- and for such time after they cease as is necessary for that Party, using its best endeavours, to recommence its affected operations in order for it to perform its obligations.
- **23.7** The Party claiming relief shall notify the other in writing as soon as the consequences of the Force Majeure Event have ceased and of when performance of its affected obligations can be resumed.
- 23.8 If the Supplier is prevented from performance of its obligations as a result of a Force Majeure Event, the Authority may at any time, if the Force Majeure Event subsists for thirty (30) days or more, terminate this Framework Agreement by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier.
- **23.9** Following such termination in accordance with Clause 23.8 of this Schedule 2 and subject to Clause 23.10 of this Schedule 2, neither Party shall have any liability to the other.
- **23.10** Any rights and liabilities of either Party which have accrued prior to such termination in accordance with Clause 23.8 of this Schedule 2 shall continue in full force and effect unless otherwise specified in this Framework Agreement.

### 24 Records retention and right of audit

- **24.1** Subject to any statutory requirement and Clause 24.2 of this Schedule 2, the Supplier shall keep secure and maintain for the Term and six (6) years afterwards, or such longer period as may be agreed between the Parties, full and accurate records of all matters relating to this Framework Agreement.
- **24.2** Where any records could be relevant to a claim for personal injury such records shall be kept secure and maintained for a period of twenty one (21) years from the date of expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement.
- 24.3 The Authority shall have the right to audit the Supplier's compliance with this Framework Agreement. The Supplier shall permit or procure permission for the Authority or its authorised representative during normal business hours having given advance written notice of no less than five (5) Business Days, access to any premises and facilities, books and records reasonably required to audit the Supplier's compliance with its obligations under this Framework Agreement.
- 24.4 Should the Supplier Sub-contract any of its obligations under this Framework Agreement, the Authority shall have the right to audit and inspect such third party. The Supplier shall procure permission for the Authority or its authorised representative during normal business hours, having given advance written notice of no less than five (5) Business Days, access to any person, premises and facilities, books and records used in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under this Framework Agreement that are Sub-contracted to such third party. The Supplier shall cooperate with such audit and inspection and accompany the Authority or its authorised representative if requested.
- **24.5** The Supplier shall grant to the Authority or its authorised representative, such access to those records as they may reasonably require in order to check the Supplier's compliance with this Framework Agreement for the purposes of:
  - 24.5.1 the examination and certification of the Authority's accounts; or





- 24.5.2 any examination pursuant to section 6(1) of the National Audit Act 1983 of the economic efficiency and effectiveness with which the Authority has used its resources.
- 24.6 The Comptroller and Auditor General may examine such documents as they may reasonably require which are owned, held or otherwise within the control of the Supplier and may require the Supplier to provide such oral and/or written explanations as they consider necessary. Clause 24 of this Schedule 2 does not constitute a requirement or agreement for the examination, certification or inspection of the accounts of the Supplier under sections 6(3)(d) and 6(5) of the National Audit Act 1983.
- 24.7 The Supplier shall provide reasonable cooperation to the Authority, its representatives and any regulatory body in relation to any audit, review, investigation or enguiry carried out in relation to the subject matter of this Framework Agreement.
- 24.8 The Supplier shall provide all reasonable information as may be reasonably requested by the Authority to evidence the Supplier's compliance with the requirements of this Framework Agreement.

#### 25 Conflicts of interest and the prevention of fraud

- 25.1 The Supplier shall take appropriate steps to ensure that neither the Supplier nor any Staff are placed in a position where, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Supplier and the duties owed to the Authority under the provisions of this Framework Agreement. The Supplier will disclose to the Authority full particulars of any such conflict of interest which may arise.
- 25.2 The Authority reserves the right to terminate this Framework Agreement immediately by notice in writing and/or to take such other steps it deems necessary where, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Supplier and the duties owed to the Authority under the provisions of this Framework Agreement. The actions of the Authority pursuant to this Clause 25.2 of this Schedule 2 shall not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which shall have accrued or shall subsequently accrue to the Authority.
- 25.3 The Supplier shall take all reasonable steps to prevent Fraud by Staff and the Supplier (including its owners, members and directors). The Supplier shall notify the Authority immediately if it has reason to suspect that any Fraud has occurred or is occurring or is likely to occur.
- 25.4 If the Supplier or its Staff commits Fraud the Authority may terminate this Framework Agreement and recover from the Supplier the amount of any direct loss suffered by the Authority resulting from the termination.

#### 26 **Equality and human rights**

- **26.1** The Supplier shall:
  - ensure that (a) it does not, whether as employer or as supplier of the Goods and any associated services, engage in any act or omission that would contravene the Equality Legislation, and (b) it complies with all its obligations as an employer or supplier of the Goods and any associated services as set out in the Equality Legislation and take reasonable endeavours to ensure its













- Staff do not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning of the Equality Legislation;
- 26.1.2 in the management of its affairs and the development of its equality and diversity policies, cooperate with the Authority in light of the Authority's obligations to comply with its statutory equality duties whether under the Equality Act 2010 or otherwise. The Supplier shall take such reasonable and proportionate steps as the Authority considers appropriate to promote equality and diversity, including race equality, equality of opportunity for disabled people, gender equality, and equality relating to religion and belief, sexual orientation and age; and
- 26.1.3 the Supplier shall impose on all its Sub-contractors and suppliers, obligations substantially similar to those imposed on the Supplier by Clause 26 of this Schedule 2.
- **26.2** The Supplier shall meet reasonable requests by the Authority for information evidencing the Supplier's compliance with the provisions of Clause 26 of this Schedule 2.

### 27 Notice

- 27.1 Subject to Clause 22.5 of this Schedule 2, any notice required to be given by either Party under this Framework Agreement shall be in writing quoting the date of the Framework Agreement and shall be delivered by hand or sent by prepaid first class recorded delivery or by email to the person referred to in the Key Provisions or such other person as one Party may inform the other Party in writing from time to time.
- **27.2** A notice shall be treated as having been received:
  - 27.2.1 if delivered by hand within normal business hours when so delivered or, if delivered by hand outside normal business hours, at the next start of normal business hours; or
  - 27.2.2 if sent by first class recorded delivery mail on a normal Business Day, at 9.00 am on the second Business Day subsequent to the day of posting, or, if the notice was not posted on a Business Day, at 9.00 am on the third Business Day subsequent to the day of posting; or
  - 27.2.3 if sent by email, if sent within normal business hours when so sent or, if sent outside normal business hours, at the next start of normal business hours provided the sender has either received an electronic confirmation of delivery or has telephoned the recipient to inform the recipient that the email has been sent.

### 28 Assignment, novation and Sub-contracting

28.1 The Supplier shall not assign, Sub-contract, novate, create a trust in, or in any other way dispose of the whole or any part of this Framework Agreement without the prior consent in writing of the Authority, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If the Supplier Sub-contracts any of its obligations under this Framework Agreement, every act or omission of the Sub-contractor shall for the purposes of this Framework Agreement be deemed to be the act or omission of the Supplier and the Supplier shall be liable to the Authority as if such act or omission had been committed or omitted by the Supplier itself.





- 28.2 Any authority given by the Authority for the Supplier to Sub-contract any of its obligations under this Framework Agreement shall not impose any duty on the Authority to enquire as to the competency of any authorised Sub-contractor. The Supplier shall ensure that any authorised Sub-contractor has the appropriate capability and capacity to perform the relevant obligations and that the obligations carried out by such Sub-contractor are fully in accordance with this Framework Agreement.
- **28.3** Where the Authority considers that the grounds for exclusion under Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 apply to any Sub-contractor, then:
  - 28.3.1 if the Authority finds there are compulsory grounds for exclusion, the Supplier shall ensure, or shall procure, that such Sub-contractor is replaced or not appointed; or
  - 28.3.2 if the Authority finds there are non-compulsory grounds for exclusion, the Authority may require the Supplier to ensure, or to procure, that such Subcontractor is replaced or not appointed and the Supplier shall comply with such a requirement.
- 28.4 The Authority shall upon written request have the right to review any Sub-contract entered into by the Supplier in respect of the provision of the Goods and the Supplier shall provide a certified copy of any Sub-contract within five (5) Business Days of the date of a written request from the Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, the Supplier shall have the right to redact any confidential pricing information in relation to such copies of Sub-contracts.
- 28.5 The Authority may at any time transfer, assign, novate, sub-contract or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under this Framework Agreement or any part of this Framework Agreement and the Supplier warrants that it will carry out all such reasonable further acts required to effect such transfer, assignment, novation, sub-contracting or disposal. If the Authority novates this Framework Agreement to anybody that is not a Contracting Authority, from the effective date of such novation, the party assuming the position of the Authority shall not further transfer, assign, novate, sub-contract or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under this Framework Agreement or any part of this Framework Agreement without the prior written consent of the Supplier, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed by the Supplier.

### 29 Prohibited Acts

- **29.1** The Supplier warrants and represents that:
  - 29.1.1 it has not committed any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 or done any of the following ("**Prohibited Acts**"):
- (i) offered, given or agreed to give any officer or employee of the Authority any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing or not doing or for having done or not having done any act in relation to the obtaining or performance of this or any other agreement with the Authority or for showing or not showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to this or any other agreement with the Authority; or
- (ii) in connection with this Framework Agreement paid or agreed to pay any commission other than a payment, particulars of which (including the terms and conditions of the agreement for its payment) have been disclosed in writing to the Authority; and





- 29.1.2 it has in place adequate procedures to prevent bribery and corruption, as contemplated by section 7 of the Bribery Act 2010.
- 29.2 If the Supplier or its Staff (or anyone acting on its or their behalf) has done or does any of the Prohibited Acts or has committed or commits any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 with or without the knowledge of the Supplier in relation to this or any other agreement with the Authority:
  - 29.2.1 the Authority shall be entitled:
- (i) to terminate this Framework Agreement and recover from the Supplier the amount of any loss resulting from the termination;
- (ii) to recover from the Supplier the amount or value of any gift, consideration or commission concerned; and
- (iii) to recover from the Supplier any other loss or expense sustained in consequence of the carrying out of the Prohibited Act or the commission of the offence under the Bribery Act 2010:
  - 29.2.2 any termination under Clause 29.2.1 of this Schedule 2 shall be without prejudice to any right or remedy that has already accrued, or subsequently accrues, to the Authority; and
  - 29.2.3 notwithstanding Clause 22 of this Schedule 2, any Dispute relating to:
- (i) the interpretation of Clause 29 of this Schedule 2; or
- (ii) the amount or value of any gift, consideration or commission,
  - shall be determined by the Authority, acting reasonably, and the decision shall be final and conclusive.

### 30 General

- **30.1** Each of the Parties is independent of the other and nothing contained in this Framework Agreement shall be construed to imply that there is any relationship between the Parties of partnership or of principal/agent or of employer/employee nor are the Parties hereby engaging in a joint venture and accordingly neither of the Parties shall have any right or authority to act on behalf of the other nor to bind the other by agreement or otherwise, unless expressly permitted by the terms of this Framework Agreement.
- **30.2** Failure or delay by either Party to exercise an option or right conferred by this Framework Agreement shall not of itself constitute a waiver of such option or right.
- **30.3** The delay or failure by either Party to insist upon the strict performance of any provision, term or condition of this Framework Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon such breach shall not constitute a waiver of any such breach or any subsequent breach of such provision, term or condition.
- 30.4 Any provision of this Framework Agreement which is held to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining provisions of this Framework Agreement and any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provisions in any other jurisdiction.











- 30.5 Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it has not relied on any representation, warranty or undertaking (whether written or oral) in relation to the subject matter of this Framework Agreement and therefore irrevocably and unconditionally waives any rights it may have to claim damages against the other Party for any misrepresentation or undertaking (whether made carelessly or not) or for breach of any warranty unless the representation, undertaking or warranty relied upon is set out in this Framework Agreement or unless such representation, undertaking or warranty was made fraudulently.
- 30.6 Each Party shall bear its own expenses in relation to the preparation and execution of this Framework Agreement including all costs, legal fees and other expenses so incurred.
- 30.7 The rights and remedies provided in this Framework Agreement are independent, cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by general law, any rights or remedies provided elsewhere under this Framework Agreement or by any other contract or document. In this Clause 30.7 of this Schedule 2, right includes any power, privilege, remedy, or proprietary or security interest.
- 30.8 A person who is not a party to this Framework Agreement shall have no right to enforce any terms of it which confer a benefit on such person. No such person shall be entitled to object to or be required to consent to any amendment to the provisions of this Framework Agreement.
- 30.9 This Framework Agreement, any variation in writing signed by an authorised representative of each Party and any document referred to (explicitly or by implication) in this Framework Agreement or any variation to this Framework Agreement, contain the entire understanding between the Supplier and the Authority relating to the operation of this Framework Agreement to the exclusion of all previous agreements, confirmations and understandings and there are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations whether oral or written, express or implied other than those contained or referred to in this Framework Agreement. Nothing in this Framework Agreement seeks to exclude either Party's liability for Fraud. Any tender conditions and/or disclaimers set out in the Authority's procurement documentation leading to the award of this Framework Agreement shall form part of this Framework Agreement.
- 30.10 This Framework Agreement, and any Dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter (including any non-contractual claims), shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England and Wales.
- **30.11** Subject to Clause 22 of this Schedule 2, the Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction to settle any Dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this Framework Agreement or its subject matter.
- 30.12 All written and oral communications and all written material referred to under this Framework Agreement shall be in English.













## Schedule 3

## Information and Data Provisions

#### Confidentiality (a)

- 1 In respect of any Confidential Information it may receive directly or indirectly from the other Party ("Discloser") and subject always to the remainder of Clause (a) of this Schedule 3, each Party ("Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party without the Discloser's prior written consent provided that:
  - 1.1.1 the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the Commencement Date:
  - 1.1.2 the provisions of Clause (a) of this Schedule 3 shall not apply to any Confidential Information:
- which is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of this Framework (i) Agreement or other act or omissions of the Recipient:
- which is obtained from a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such (ii) information without any obligation of confidentiality;
- (iii) which is authorised for disclosure by the prior written consent of the Discloser;
- which the Recipient can demonstrate was in its possession without any obligation of confidentiality prior to receipt of the Confidential Information from the Discloser; or
- (v) which the Recipient is required to disclose purely to the extent to comply with the requirements of any relevant stock exchange.
- Nothing in Clause (a) of this Schedule 3 shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing 1.2 Confidential Information where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by applicable Law, including the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("FOIA"), Codes of Practice on Access to Government Information, on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions or on the Management of Records ("Codes of Practice") or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("Environmental Regulations").
- The Authority may disclose the Supplier's Confidential Information: 1.3
  - on a confidential basis, to any Contracting Authority (the Parties agree that all 1.3.1 Contracting Authorities receiving such Confidential Information shall be entitled to further disclose the Confidential Information to other Contracting Authorities on the basis that the information is confidential and is not to be disclosed to a third party which is not part of any Contracting Authority);
  - 1.3.2 on a confidential basis, to any consultant, contractor or other person engaged by the Authority and/or the Contracting Authority receiving such information;
  - 1.3.3 to any relevant party for the purpose of the examination and certification of the Authority's accounts:













- to any relevant party for any examination pursuant to section 6(1) of the 1.3.4 National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the Authority has used its resources;
- 1.3.5 to Parliament and Parliamentary Committees or if required by any Parliamentary reporting requirements; or
- 1.3.6 on a confidential basis, to a proposed successor body in connection with any proposed or actual, assignment, novation or other disposal of rights, obligations, liabilities or property in connection with this Framework Agreement;

and for the purposes of this Framework Agreement, references to disclosure "on a confidential basis" shall mean the Authority making clear the confidential nature of such information and that it must not be further disclosed except in accordance with Law or this Clause 1.3 of this Schedule 3.

- The Supplier may only disclose the Authority's Confidential Information, and any other information provided to the Supplier by the Authority in relation to the operation of this Framework Agreement, to the Supplier's Staff or professional advisors who are directly involved in the performance of or advising on the Supplier's obligations under this Framework Agreement. The Supplier shall ensure that such Staff or professional advisors are aware of and shall comply with the obligations in Clause (a) of this Schedule 3 as to confidentiality and that all information, including Confidential Information, is held securely, protected against unauthorised use or loss and, at the Authority's written discretion, destroyed securely or returned to the Authority when it is no longer required. The Supplier shall not, and shall ensure that the Staff do not, use any of the Authority's Confidential Information received otherwise than for the purposes of performing the Supplier's obligations in this Framework Agreement.
- For the avoidance of doubt, save as required by Law or as otherwise set out in this Schedule 3, the Supplier shall not, without the prior written consent of the Authority (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), announce that it has entered into this Framework Agreement and/or that it has been appointed as a Supplier to the Authority and/or make any other announcements about this Framework Agreement.
- 1.6 Clause (a) of this Schedule 3 shall remain in force:
  - without limit in time in respect of Confidential Information which comprises 1.6.1 Personal Data or which relates to national security; and
  - 1.6.2 for all other Confidential Information for a period of three (3) years after the expiry or earlier termination of this Framework Agreement unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties.

#### 2 **Data protection**

- The Parties acknowledge their respective duties under Data Protection Legislation and shall give each other all reasonable assistance as appropriate or necessary to enable each other to comply with those duties. For the avoidance of doubt, the Supplier shall take reasonable steps to ensure it is familiar with the Data Protection Legislation and any obligations it may have under such Data Protection Legislation and shall comply with such obligations.
- 2.2 Where the Supplier is Processing Personal Data under or in connection with this Framework Agreement, the Parties shall comply with the Data Protection Protocol.











- 2.3 The Supplier and the Authority shall ensure that Personal Data is safeguarded at all times in accordance with the Law, and this obligation will include (if transferred electronically) only transferring Personal Data (a) if essential, having regard to the purpose for which the transfer is conducted; and (b) that is encrypted in accordance with any international data encryption standards for healthcare, and as otherwise required by those standards applicable to the Authority under any Law and Guidance (this includes, data transferred over wireless or wired networks, held on laptops, CDs, memory sticks and tapes).
- Where any Personal Data is Processed by any Sub-contractor of the Supplier in connection with this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall procure that such Subcontractor shall comply with the relevant obligations set out in Clause 2 of this Schedule 3. as if such Sub-contractor were the Supplier.
- 2.5 The Supplier shall indemnify and keep the Authority indemnified against, any loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings whatsoever or howsoever arising from the Supplier's unlawful or unauthorised Processing, destruction and/or damage to Personal Data in connection with this Framework Agreement.

## Freedom of Information and Transparency

- 2.6 The Parties acknowledge the duties of Contracting Authorities under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and shall give each other all reasonable assistance as appropriate or necessary to enable compliance with those duties.
- 2.7 The Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Authority to enable it to comply with its disclosure obligations under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations. The Supplier agrees:
  - 2.7.1 that this Framework Agreement and any recorded information held by the Supplier on the Authority's behalf for the purposes of this Framework Agreement are subject to the obligations and commitments of the Authority under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations;
  - 2.7.2 that the decision on whether any exemption to the general obligations of public access to information applies to any request for information received under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations is a decision solely for the Authority:
  - 2.7.3 that where the Supplier receives a request for information under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and the Supplier itself is subject to the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations it will liaise with the Authority as to the contents of any response before a response to a request is issued and will promptly (and in any event within two (2) Business Days) provide a copy of the request and any response to the Authority:
  - 2.7.4 that where the Supplier receives a request for information under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and the Supplier is not itself subject to the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations, it will not respond to that request (unless directed to do so by the Authority) and will promptly (and in any event within two (2) Business Days) transfer the request to the Authority;











- 2.7.5 that the Authority, acting in accordance with the Codes of Practice issued and revised from time to time under both section 45 of FOIA, and regulation 16 of the Environmental Regulations, may disclose information concerning the Supplier and this Framework Agreement; and
- 2.7.6 to assist the Authority in responding to a request for information, by processing information or environmental information (as the same are defined in FOIA and the Environmental Regulations) in accordance with a records management system that complies with all applicable records management recommendations and codes of conduct issued under section 46 of FOIA, and providing copies of all information requested by the Authority within five (5) Business Days of that request and without charge.
- 2.8 The Parties acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations, the content of this Framework Agreement is not Confidential Information.
- 2.9 Notwithstanding any other term of this Framework Agreement, the Supplier consents to the publication of this Framework Agreement in its entirety (including variations), subject only to the redaction of information that is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations.
- **2.10** In preparing a copy of this Framework Agreement for publication under Clause 2.9 of this Schedule 3, the Authority may consult with the Supplier to inform decision making regarding any redactions but the final decision in relation to the redaction of information will be at the Authority's absolute discretion.
- **2.11** The Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Authority to enable the Authority to publish this Framework Agreement.
- **2.12** Where any information is held by any Sub-contractor of the Supplier in connection with this Framework Agreement, the Supplier shall procure that such Sub-contractor shall comply with the relevant obligations set out in Clause 0 of this Schedule 3, as if such Sub-contractor were the Supplier.

## **Information Security**

- **2.13** Without limitation to any other information governance requirements set out in this Schedule 3, the Supplier shall:
  - 2.13.1 notify the Authority forthwith of any information security breaches or near misses (including without limitation any potential or actual breaches of confidentiality or actual information security breaches) in line with the Authority's information governance Policies; and
  - 2.13.2 fully cooperate with any audits or investigations relating to information security and any privacy impact assessments undertaken by the Authority and shall provide full information as may be reasonably requested by the Authority in relation to such audits, investigations and assessments.









## Schedule 4

# **Definitions and Interpretations**

#### **Definitions** (a)

In this Framework Agreement the following words shall have the following meanings 1 unless the context requires otherwise, other than in relation to the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods at Appendix A of this Framework Agreement. The definitions and Interpretations that apply to the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods are as set out at Appendix A of this Framework Agreement.

"Award Letter"	means the letter confirming to the Supplier that they are being admitted to the Framework Agreement;	
"Authority"	means the authority named on the form of Framework Agreement on the first page;	
"Authority's Obligations"	means the Authority's further obligations, if any, referred to in the Specification and Tender Response Document;	
"Breach Notice"	means a written notice of breach given by one Party to the other, notifying the Party receiving the notice of its breach of this Framework Agreement;	
"Business Continuity Event"	means any event or issue that could impact on the operations of the Supplier and its ability to fulfil its obligations under this Framework Agreement including an influenza pandemic and any Force Majeure Event;	
"Business Continuity Plan"	means the Supplier's business continuity plan which includes its plans for continuity of the supply of the Goods during a Business Continuity Event;	
"Business Day"	means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, Christmas Day, Good Friday or a statutory bank holiday in England and Wales;	
"Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods"	means the call-off terms and conditions for Contracts as set out at Appendix A of this Framework Agreement forming part of the Contracts placed under this Framework Agreement;	
"Codes of Practice"	shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.2 of Schedule 3;	
"Conditions"	means any conditions set out in the Award Letter which must be completed before any suspension from the Framework Agreement shall occur and any call off or orders may be placed with the Supplier through this Framework Agreement;	









"Commercial means 20 June 2023  "Commercial means the document set out at Schedule 6;  "Confidential information" means information, data and material of any nature, which either Party may receive or obtain in connection with the conclusion and/or operation of the Framework Agreement including any procurement process which is:  (a) Personal Data including without limitation which relates to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment or clinical or care history;  (b) designated as confidential by either party or that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or  (c) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract" means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager" means any contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Price" means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price" means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Controller" m			
"Confidential Information"  "Beans information, data and material of any nature, which either Party may receive or obtain in connection with the conclusion and/or operation of the Framework Agreement including any procurement process which is:  (a) Personal Data including without limitation which relates to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment or clinical or care history;  (b) designated as confidential by either party or that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or  (c) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract"  means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager"  means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price"  means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller"  shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.		means 20 June 2023	
either Party may receive or obtain in connection with the conclusion and/or operation of the Framework Agreement including any procurement process which is:  (a) Personal Data including without limitation which relates to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment or clinical or care history;  (b) designated as confidential by either party or that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or  (c) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract"  means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting  Authority"  means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager"  means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price"  means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.		means the document set out at Schedule 6;	
to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment or clinical or care history;  (b) designated as confidential by either party or that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or  (c) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract" means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager" means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price" means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier of boligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention" means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.		either Party may receive or obtain in connection with the conclusion and/or operation of the Framework Agreement	
reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or  (c) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract" means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager" means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price" means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention" means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.		to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment	
may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;  "Contract"  means any contract entered into under this Framework Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager"  means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price"  means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller"  shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.		reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is	
Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;  "Contracting Authority" means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager" means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price" means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention" means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it		may obtain or have access to through the Authority's	
Authority"  of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;  "Contract Manager"  means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price"  means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller"  shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection  means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it	"Contract"	Agreement with the Supplier by any Participating Authority as further defined in the Call-off Terms and Conditions for	
specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 2;  "Contract Price"  means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller"  shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection  means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it		of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as	
Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form relating to the particular Contract;  "Controller" shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;  "Convention" means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it	"Contract Manager"	specified in the Key Provisions or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in	
"Convention"  means international treaties that have been ratified by the United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it	"Contract Price"	Supplier by a Participating Authority under any Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under such Contracts (as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Schedule) and as confirmed in the relevant Order Form	
United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented by ratifying countries.  "Data Protection means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it	"Controller"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;	
()	"Convention"	United Kingdom, and recommendations and guidance concerning the same, which serve as non-binding guidelines, and set out the principles to be implemented	
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	











"Data Protection	extent that it relates to processing of personal data and privacy; (ii) the GDPR, the Law Enforcement Directive (Directive (EU) 2016/680) and any applicable national implementing Law as amended from time to time; and (iii) all applicable Law about the processing of personal data and privacy;  means any document of that name as provided to the	
Protocol"	Supplier by the Authority (as amended from time to time in accordance with its terms), which shall include, without limitation, any such document appended to Schedule 3 (Information and Data Provisions) of this Framework Agreement;	
"Dispute(s)"	means any dispute, difference or question of interpretation or construction arising out of or in connection with this Framework Agreement, any matters of contractual construction and interpretation relating to the Framework Agreement, or any matter where this Framework Agreement directs the Parties to resolve an issue by reference to the Dispute Resolution Procedure;	
"Dispute Notice"	means a written notice served by one Party to the other stating that the Party serving the notice believes there is a Dispute;	
"Dispute Resolution Procedure"	means the process for resolving Disputes as set out in Clause 22 of Schedule 2;	
"DOTAS"	means the Disclosure of Tax Avoidance Schemes rules which require a promoter of tax schemes to tell HM Revenue and Customs of any specified notifiable arrangements or proposals and to provide prescribed information on those arrangements or proposals within set time limits as contained in Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004 and in secondary legislation made under vires contained in Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004 and as extended to National Insurance Contributions by the National Insurance Contributions (Application of Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004) Regulations 2012, SI 2012/1868 made under s.132A Social Security Administration Act 1992;	
"Electronic Trading System(s)"	means such electronic data interchange system and/or world wide web application and/or other application with such message standards and protocols as the Authority may specify from time to time;	
"Environment"	Means the air, water, and land in or on which people, animals and plants live;	
"Environmental Regulations"	shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.2 of Schedule 3;	











"eProcurement Guidance"		means the NHS eProcurement Strategy available via: <a href="http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/nhs-">http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/nhs-</a>	
		procurement	
	together with any further Guidance issued by the		
	Department of Health in connection with it;		
"Equality Legislation"		means any and all legislation, applicable guidance and statutory codes of practice relating to equality, diversity, non-discrimination and human rights as may be in force in England and Wales from time to time including, but not limited to, the Equality Act 2010, the Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000 and the Fixed-term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002 (SI 2002/2034) and the Human Rights Act 1998;	
"FOIA"		shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.2 of Schedule 3;	
"Force Majeure Event"		means any event beyond the reasonable control of the Party in question to include, without limitation:	
	(a)	war including civil war (whether declared or undeclared), riot, civil commotion or armed conflict materially affecting either Party's ability to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement;	
	(b)	acts of terrorism;	
	(c)	flood, storm or other natural disasters;	
	(d)	) fire;	
	(e)	unavailability of public utilities and/or access to transport networks to the extent no diligent supplier could reasonably have planned for such unavailability as part of its business continuity planning;	
	(f)	government requisition or impoundment to the extent such requisition or impoundment does not result from any failure by the Supplier to comply with any relevant regulations, laws or procedures (including such laws or regulations relating to the payment of any duties or taxes) and subject to the Supplier having used all reasonable legal means to resist such requisition or impoundment;	
	(g)	compliance with any local law or governmental order, rule, regulation or direction applicable outside of England and Wales that could not have been reasonably foreseen;	
	(h)	industrial action which affects the ability of the Supplier to supply the Goods, but which is not confined to the workforce of the Supplier or the workforce of any Sub- contractor of the Supplier; and	
	(i)	a failure in the Supplier's and/or Authority's supply chain to the extent that such failure is due to any event suffered	













	by a member of such supply chain, which would also qualify as a Force Majeure Event in accordance with this definition had it been suffered by one of the Parties; but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union and any related circumstances, events, changes or requirements;	
"Framework Agreement"	means the form of framework agreement at the front of this document and all schedules and appendices attached to the form of framework agreement;	
"Fraud"	means any offence under any law in respect of fraud in relation to this Framework Agreement or defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the government, parliament or any Contracting Authority;	
"GDPR"	means the UK General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679);	
"General Anti-Abuse	means	
Rule"	(a) the legislation in Part 5 of the Finance Act 2013; and	
	<ul> <li>(b) any future legislation introduced into parliament to counteract tax advantages arising from abusive arrangements to avoid national insurance contributions;</li> </ul>	
"Good Industry Practice"	means the exercise of that degree of skill, diligence, prudence, risk management, quality management and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced supplier engaged in the manufacture and/or supply of goods similar to the Goods under the same or similar circumstances as those applicable to this Framework Agreement, including in accordance with any codes of practice published by relevant trade associations;	
"Goods"	means all goods, materials or items that the Supplier is required to supply to Participating Authorities under Contracts placed under this Framework Agreement, details of such Goods, materials or other items being set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document and any Order;	
"Guidance"	means any applicable guidance, direction or determination and any policies, advice or industry alerts which apply to the Goods, to the extent that the same are published and publicly available or the existence or contents of them have been notified to the Supplier by the Authority and/or have been published and/or notified to the Supplier by the Department of Health, Monitor, NHS England, the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency, the European Medicine Agency the European	











Juppij ciia	
Commission, the Care Quality Commission and/or any other regulator or competent body;	
means the principle explained in the CJEU Case C-255/02 Halifax and others;	
Means the recruitment or movement of people for exploitation by the use of threat, force, fraud, or the abuse of vulnerability;	
means the 11 International Labour Organisation's forced labour indicators, or such other indicators or standards as may be notified to the Supplier by the Authority from time to time and which shall in any Third Party Audit be subject to a Risk Assessment as to the occurrence or prevalence and severity of any non-conformity against such standards;	
means all patents, copyright, design rights, registered designs, trademarks, know-how, database rights, confidential formulae and any other intellectual property rights and the rights to apply for patents and trademarks and registered designs;	
means the key provisions set out in Schedule 1;	
means the key performance indicators as set out in Schedule 5;	
means any applicable legal requirements including, without limitation,:	
) any applicable statute or proclamation, delegated or subordinate legislation, bye-law, order, regulation or instrument as applicable in England and Wales;	
any applicable European Union obligation, directive, regulation, decision, law or right (including any such obligations, directives, regulations, decisions, laws or rights that are incorporated into the law of England and Wales or given effect in England and Wales by any applicable statute, proclamation, delegated or subordinate legislation, bye-law, order, regulation or instrument);	
(c) any enforceable community right within the meaning of section 2(1) European Communities Act 1972;	
(d) any applicable judgment of a relevant court of law which is a binding precedent in England and Wales;	
(e) requirements set by any regulatory body as applicable in England and Wales;	
any relevant code of practice as applicable in England and	









		supply cha	
	(g)	any relevant collective agreement and/or international law provisions (to include, without limitation, as referred to in (a) to (f) above);	
"Modern Slavery"		means the recruitment, movement, harbouring or receiving of children, women or men through the use of force, coercion, abuse of vulnerability, deception or other means for the purpose of exploitation. It is a crime under the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and includes holding a person in a position of slavery, servitude forced or compulsory labour, or facilitating their travel with the intention of exploiting them soon after;	
"NHS"	means the National Health Service;		
"Occasion of Tax Non-		means:	
Compliance"	(a)	any tax return of the Supplier submitted to a Relevant Tax Authority on or after 1 October 2012 is found on or after 1 April 2013 to be incorrect as a result of:	
	(i)	a Relevant Tax Authority successfully challenging the Supplier under the General Anti-Abuse Rule or the Halifax Abuse Principle or under any tax rules or legislation that have an effect equivalent or similar to the General Anti-Abuse Rule or the Halifax Abuse Principle;	
	(ii)	the failure of an avoidance scheme which the Supplier was involved in, and which was, or should have been, notified to a Relevant Tax Authority under the DOTAS or any equivalent or similar regime; and/or	
	(b)	any tax return of the Supplier submitted to a Relevant Tax Authority on or after 1 October 2012 gives rise, on or after 1 April 2013, to a criminal conviction in any jurisdiction for tax related offences which is not spent at the Effective Date or to a civil penalty for fraud or evasion;	
"Order Form"		means the template order form on which Orders are to be placed, as set out in Schedule 7;	
"Ordering Procedure"		means the procedure enabling Participating Authorities to call-off Goods and enter into Contracts under this Framework Agreement, as set out in Schedule 7;	
"Orders"		means orders for Goods placed under this Framework Agreement by Participating Authorities;	
"Organisation"		Means the Supplier company;	
"Participating Authority"		means a Contracting Authority entitled to place Orders under this Framework Agreement including the Authority and any other Contracting Authority as set out in the Key Provisions;	











"Party"	means the Authority or the Supplier as appropriate and Parties means both the Authority and the Supplier;	
"Personal Data"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;	
"Policies"	means the policies, rules and procedures of the Authority as notified to the Supplier from time to time;	
"Process"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR. Processing and Processed shall be construed accordingly;	
"Processor"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;	
"Product Information"	means information concerning the Goods as may be reasonably requested by the Authority and supplied by the Supplier to the Authority in accordance with Clause 20 of Schedule 2 for inclusion in the Authority's product catalogue from time to time;	
"Prohibited Acts"	has the meaning given under 29.1.1 of Schedule 2;	
"Relevant Tax Authority"	means HM Revenue and Customs, or, if applicable, a tax authority in the jurisdiction in which the Supplier is established;	
"Remedial Action Plan"	Means the agreed remedial plan of action developed by the Supplier and agreed by the Authority to remedy a Default, Breach or issue.	
"Remedial Proposal"	has the meaning given under Clause 15.3 of Schedule 2;	
"Risk Assessment"	means an assessment of the risks of Modern Slavery undertaken as part of any Third Party Audit of the Supplier completed in compliance with the instructions set out in the documents issued to the Supplier as part of the procurement process to be admitted to the Framework Agreement and such further Third Party Audits carried out over the duration of the Framework Agreement;	
"Specification and Tender Response Document"	means the document set out in Schedule 5 as amended and/or updated in accordance with this Framework Agreement;	
"Staff"	means all persons employed or engaged by the Supplier to perform its obligations under this Framework Agreement including any Sub-contractors and person employed or engaged by such Sub-contractors;	
"Sub-contract"	means a contract between two or more suppliers, at any stage of remoteness from the Supplier in a sub-contracting chain, made wholly or substantially for the purpose of performing (or	













	contributing to the performance of the whole or any part of this Framework Agreement;	
"Sub-contractor"	means a party to a Sub-contract other than the Supplier;	
"Supplier"	means the supplier named on the form of Framework Agreement on the first page;	
"Supplier Code of Conduct"	means the code of that name published by the Government Commercial Function originally dated September 2017, as may be amended, restated, updated, re-issued or re-named from time to time;	
"Term"	means the term as set out in the Key Provisions;	
"Termination Notice"	means a written notice of termination given by one Party to the other notifying the Party receiving the notice of the intention of the Party giving the notice to terminate this Framework Agreement on a specified date and setting out the grounds for termination;	
"Third Party Body"	has the meaning given under Clause 8.5 of Schedule 2; and	
"Third Party Audit"	means an official inspection of the business and supply chain of the Supplier, undertaken at the Supplier's cost carried out by an independent and suitably qualified body, which is recognised and selected in accordance with Good Industry Practice which reviews the Indicators and includes a Risk Assessment.	
"VAT"	means value added tax chargeable under the Value Added Tax Act 1994 or any similar, replacement or extra tax.	

- **1.2** References to any Law shall be deemed to include a reference to that Law as amended, extended, consolidated, re-enacted, restated, implemented or transposed from time to time.
- **1.3** References to any legal entity shall include anybody that takes over responsibility for the functions of such entity.
- **1.4** References in this Framework Agreement to a "Schedule", "Appendix", "Paragraph" or to a "Clause" are to schedules, appendices, paragraphs and clauses of this Framework Agreement.
- **1.5** References in this Framework Agreement to a day or to the calculation of time frames are references to a calendar day unless expressly specified as a Business Day.
- 1.6 Unless set out in the Commercial Schedule as a chargeable item and subject to Clause 30.6 of Schedule 2, the Supplier shall bear the cost of complying with its obligations under this Framework Agreement.
- **1.7** The headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the interpretation of this Framework Agreement.











- **1.8** Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.
- 1.9 Where a term of this Framework Agreement provides for a list of one or more items following the word "including" or "includes" then such list is not to be interpreted as an exhaustive list. Any such list shall not be treated as excluding any item that might have been included in such list having regard to the context of the contractual term in question. General words are not to be given a restrictive meaning where they are followed by examples intended to be included within the general words.
- **1.10** Where there is a conflict between the Supplier's responses to the Authority's requirements (the Supplier's responses being set out in Schedule 5) and any other part of this Framework Agreement, such other part of this Framework Agreement shall prevail.
- **1.11** Where a document is required under this Framework Agreement, the Parties may agree in writing that this shall be in electronic format only.
- **1.12** Any guidance notes in grey text do not form part of this Framework Agreement.
- 1.13 Any Breach Notice issued by a Party in connection with this Framework Agreement shall not be invalid due to it containing insufficient information. A Party receiving a Breach Notice ("Receiving Party") may ask the Party that issued the Breach Notice ("Issuing Party") to provide any further information in relation to the subject matter of the Breach Notice that it may reasonably require to enable it to understand the Breach Notice and/or to remedy the breach. The Issuing Party shall not unreasonably withhold or delay the provision of such further information as referred to above as may be requested by the Receiving Party but no such withholding or delay shall invalidate the Breach Notice.
- 1.14 Any terms defined as part of a Schedule or other document forming part of this Framework Agreement shall have the meaning as defined in such Schedule or document.













## Schedule 5

## **Specification and Tender Response Document**

# Schedule A2 (A)

## PRODUCT SPECIFICATION

## PATIENT TEMPERATURE MANAGEMENT

#### 1. Introduction

- 1.1 The Authority is seeking to establish a multi supplier framework agreement for Patient Temperature Management, which will provide a comprehensive range of products suitable for use across the NHS in England. The scope of this agreement will include the supply of patient temperature management and associated products, including patient warming, patient cooling and temperature sensors.
- 1.2 The Framework Agreement is for the following Lots:

Lot Number	Lot Title
1	Forced Air Warming Blankets and Blowers
2	Blood and Fluid Warming Equipment and Related Consumables
3	Patient Temperature Management Equipment
4	Passive Temperature Management
5	Temperature Sensors and Associated Products

- 1.3 The purpose of the Patient Temperature Management framework is: -
  - 1.3.1 To assure the NHS that framework suppliers are compliant to clinical and industry standards and are therefore safe to contract with.
  - 1.3.2 Build sustainable partnerships between the NHS and Suppliers which ensures the NHS
  - 1.3.3 Benefit from ongoing cost-effective, value-added products and services whilst enabling suppliers continued profitable growth within this market area.
  - 1.3.4 To provide a Nationally Contracted Pricing Matrix - to set the commercial parameters in how pricing can be applied for the NHS, which is consistent across Industry, in a fair and transparent way.
  - 1.3.5 Transformation of the NHS landscape - championing rationalisation. standardisation.
  - co-operation and collaboration to affect patient pathways and clinical 1.3.6 outcomes.
  - 1.3.7 Lay the foundations for efficiency savings and process improvements beyond the price of products.











- 1.3.8 To support facilitation of changes in clinical practice, new technologies and new treatment.
- 1.3.9 To provide a sustainable and robust supply of products to the NHS.
- 1.3.10 To enable the use of data to improve health outcomes; and
- 1.3.11 Ensure effective characterisation of Products and cataloguing for the NHS
- 1.4 Full technical specifications of the products awarded to this Framework Agreement must be made available to the Authority on request during the lifetime of this Agreement.

  Bidders must notify the Authority immediately about any proposed changes to the Technical Specifications throughout the term of the Framework Agreement.
  - 1.4.1 the Authority must be notified immediately about any proposed changes to the technical specifications throughout the lifetime of the Framework Agreement.
  - 1.4.2 If changes to the technical specification of any offered product mean that the product no longer meets the minimum requirements outlined in this document, the Authority reserves the right to exclude the product from the Framework Agreement.
  - 1.4.3 the Authority reserves the right to request evidence of compliance with the specifications outlined in this document throughout the lifetime of this Framework Agreement.
- 1.5 The specifications refer to several standards and legislation. The list of standards/legislation/directives is not intended to be exhaustive and any relevant standard/legislation/directive (even if not stated) must be complied with throughout the term of the Framework Agreement.
- 1.6 Products must comply with the stated Standards/Legislation/Directives (as amended, extended, or re-enacted from time to time) and/or the relevant section within the Standard/Legislation/Directive and/or the relevant Standard within the stated suite of standards.
- 1.7 Evidence of compliance to the Standards/Legislation/Directives must be available to the Authority on request during the lifetime of this Agreement. Evidence must be provided at time of tender submission in the form of certification from notified bodies. These certificates will be validated with the notified bodies prior to award. During the life of the framework and if sufficient evidence is not provided by Suppliers when requested, the Authority reserves the right to suspend product lines until such evidence is available.
- 1.8 All product lines and packaging should be latex free where possible. If a product line or any packaging contains latex this **must** be clearly labelled on the product line or packaging (as applicable) to inform the user.
- 1.9 Product images are mandatory and will be required at time of tender submission. Images must be of the product and not the packaging.
  - 1.9.1 Images must comply with the following requirements:
    - 1.9.1.1 Be a clear image of the actual product, not a generic image. This can be of the NHS Supply Chain Unit of Issue (UOI) or individual item, whichever is appropriate.











- 1.9.1.2 Have a minimum resolution of 300 x 300 pixels.
- 1.9.1.3 Be under 1MB in size per image; 5MB per PDF.
- 1.9.1.4 Be a coloured image RGB format only.
- 1.9.1.5 Preferably 300 DPI with a minimum of 72 DPI.
- 1.9.1.6 JPEG file format for images and PDF for other documents.
- 1.9.1.7 Demonstrate different angles of the product, for example to show unique aspects of the product such as specific connector points.
- 1.9.1.8 Image of packaging (showing MPC, description and safety symbols) alongside the product.
- 1.10 Images of the product should be visible on the outer package.
- 1.11 During the term of the Framework Agreement, Bidders must make the Authority aware of any awarded product line that is classed by the MHRA as a Medicinal Product.
- 1.12 Tender submissions must include, where required:
  - 1.12.1 Sterilisation/Decontamination Process; and/or
  - 1.12.2 Cleaning Approach; and/or
  - 1.12.3 Storage Requirements; and/or
  - 1.12.4 Waste Stream of Product.
- 1.13 Where possible, awarded suppliers are required to maximise capability for recycling of packaging, parts, and products over the lifetime of the framework.
- 1.14 Throughout the lifetime of the framework agreement, suppliers are expected to reduce single use plastics for product ranges where this could be achievable, over the term of the agreement.
- 1.15 Global Medical Device Nomenclature (GMDN) description and code is required for each product range submitted in the tender response.
- 2. Criteria applicable across all product lines
- 2.1 The applicable Standards and Legislation are provided as follows

Medical Devices Regulations 2002 (SI 2002 No 618, as amended) (UK MDR 2002).

Directive for active implantable medical devices, medical devices, and in vitro diagnostic medical devices (IVDs) in the UK

#### **UKCA (UK Conformity Assessment).**

Certification mark that indicates conformity with the applicable requirements for products sold within Great Britain and/or an existing valid CE certificate if this is still in date.

Every supplier **MUST** have this in place by the time the framework goes live in August 2023.

BS EN 60601-1:2006+A2:2021 or equivalent.











Medical electrical equipment. General requirements for basic safety and essential performance.

## BS EN IEC 60601-2-35:2021 or equivalent.

Medical Electrical Equipment - Particular requirements for basic safety and essential performance of heating devices using blankets, pads and mattresses and intended for heating in medical use.

## BS EN 62570:2015 or equivalent.

Standard Practice for marking medical devices and other items for safety in the magnetic resonance environment.

## BS EN ISO 14937:2009 or equivalent.

Sterilisation of health care products — General requirements for characterization of a sterilising agent and the development, validation, and routine control of a sterilisation process for medical devices

- 2.2 In accordance with the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (as amended), safety data sheets for all product lines that fall under these Regulations must be provided by Bidders.
- 2.3 Electrical product lines must comply with the requirements of the Directive on waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE Directive 2012/19/EU) and the Directive on the Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment Regulations 2012.
- 2.4 Any reference to a statute or order shall include any statutory extension, modification or re-enactment, and any order, regulation, bye-law or other subordinate legislation. The Supplier will need to ensure they comply fully with all relevant UK legislation requirements (or equivalent EU legislation where appropriate) applicable to the product lines they are delivering and any subsequent legislative amendments.
- 2.5 Any product line classed as a cosmetic must meet the requirements of Regulation (EC) 1223/2009.
- 2.6 If a product line contains phthalates this must be indicated on the packaging of that product line in accordance with Directive 2007/47/EC (amending Directives 90/385/EEC and 93/42/EEC).
- 2.7 All product lines and packaging should be latex free where possible. If a product line or any packaging contains latex this **must** be clearly labelled on the product line or packaging (as applicable) to inform the user.
- 2.8 All product lines must be delivered free of charge to a location as directed by the Authority for the specific route to market.
- 2.9 This framework includes the option for bidders to provide associated capital equipment (machines), where these are required to support consumables tendered. This is including but not limited to:
  - 2.9.1 Lot 1 Blowers.
  - 2.9.2 Lot 2 Blood and Fluid Warming Machines.











- 2.9.3 Lot 3 Patient Cooling Equipment.
- 2.10 Bidders can finance a variety of solutions, including but not limited to:
  - 2.10.1 Free on loan, when Participating Authorities call-off in accordance with the Framework Agreement, committing duration and/or volume to consumables (i.e., NPM).
  - 2.10.2 Capital purchase
  - 2.10.3 Lease and/or rentals
- 2.11 Bidders must detail associated costs in accordance with point 2.10, inclusive of maintenance and service agreements, where applicable, in Schedule B6.
- 2.12 Where Goods and any incidental Services are ordered and delivered via a direct route of supply the Supplier shall pay to the Authority a management fee at the rate of 2.5% of the total order value. The Supplier shall confirm, within ten (10) days of the end of each month, which orders have been raised pursuant to the direct route of supply during the term of the Framework Agreement, by way of a management fee report that is issued to the Contract Manager. This report shall include, as a minimum:
  - 2.12.1 the Authority's purchase order number;
  - 2.12.2 the Unique Reference Number (URN);
  - 2.12.3 the total quantity of Goods and/or Services ordered pursuant to the Order;
  - 2.12.4 the total value of the Order;
  - 2.12.5 the date of the Order:
  - 2.12.6 the MPC or NPC codes listed in the Order; and
  - 2.12.7 the units of purchase and unit price detailed in the Order.
- 2.13 The Authority shall then invoice the supplier for the management fee, payable within thirty (30) days from receipt of such invoice.
- 3. Lot 1 – Forced Air Warming Blankets and Blowers

# Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 2016, or equivalent

Guide for businesses placing electrical equipment products on the market in Great Britain.

- This lot includes forced air warming blankets and gowns and are used in conjunction with 3.1 the blower and distribute warmed air over a patient by offering adjustable warming capabilities for pre-, intra- and post-operative application to assist in maintaining normothermia
- Awarded Suppliers must have a compatible forced air warming device readily available to supply with the blankets and Gowns
- Forced air warming blanket must be available in full body, upper body, and lower body 3.3 variants.













- 3.4 Blankets and gowns must be single patient use.
- Lot 2 Blood and Fluid Warming Equipment and Related Consumables 4.

## Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 2016, or equivalent

Guide for businesses placing electrical equipment products on the market in Great Britain.

- 4.1 This Lot includes products intended for warming blood and fluids prior to transfusion into a patient. The products include but are not limited to:
  - 4.1.1 Warming/Control Units (for high and low flow).
  - 4.1.2 Insulation covers.
  - 4.1.3 Pressurisers.
- 4.2 Blood and Fluid Warming/Control Units and cartridges/sets must be able to deliver blood and intravenous fluid at normothermic temperature.
- 4.3 Consumable items such as cartridges must be disposable and instructions on how to dispose of them must be provided by suppliers
- 5. **Lot 3 - Patient Temperature Management Equipment**

## STANDARD AND LEGISLATION

## Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 2016, or equivalent

Guide for businesses placing electrical equipment products on the market in Great Britain.

- This lot includes warming mattresses, which are positioned underneath a patient during a medical procedure to help maintain normothermia. These must:
  - 5.1.1 Be either chemically activated, electronically activated, or forced air warming mattresses; and
  - 5.1.2 Be warmed with either water, forced air, gel or electrical systems; and
  - 5.1.3 Comply with the requirements of the Low Voltage Directive 73/23/EEC if electronically activated warming mattresses; and
  - 5.1.4 Be available in a range of sizes.













- 5.2 This lot includes reusable electrically conductive patient warming blankets with a multifunction temperature control unit to help control normothermia.
  - 5.2.1 The control unit must have the following:
  - 5.2.2 A minimum of 1 years guarantee for breakdown, parts, and labour; and
  - 5.2.3 Set point temperature must be visually displayed on the unit: and
  - 5.2.4 Must have visual and audible alarms to indicate if the temperature deviates from the set values: and
  - 5.2.5 Where a pump is included, it must have an on / off switch with visual indication of setting; and
  - 5.2.6 The machine power source must be 220 240 VACS: and
  - 5.2.7 The machine must have an optional mains supply cable and a UK main wall plug available; and
  - 5.2.8 If the machine is on castors, it must have full swivel wheels with foot pedal-controlled swivel locks available on at least two wheels and foot pedal-controlled brakes available on at least two wheels; and
  - 5.2.9 The connectors must be easy to attach and must not dislodge and must remain secure throughout use.
- 5.3 This lot includes warming cabinets, which are used to warm IV fluids, irrigation fluids, blankets, and gel positioning equipment, that are used to warm patient(s). They must:
  - 5.3.1 Comply with the requirements of the Low Voltage Directive 73/23/EEC if they are blanket and fluid warming cabinets; and
  - 5.3.2 Must have a swing door that secures in the closed position with a catch; and
  - 5.3.3 Have variable temperature settings and be able to operate from 35 80 degrees centigrade; and
  - 5.3.4 Must be fitted with a digital or dial temperature controller to enable the user to set an operating temperature for the cabinet; and
  - 5.3.5 Must include the ability to set an over-temperature safety cut-out should the required temperature be exceeded; and
  - 5.3.6 Must have an audible and/or visual alarm to alert if the actual temperature rises above the required temperature; and
  - 5.3.7 Must have adjustable shelving and the ability for air to circulate freely around the unit to enable even temperature distribution; and
  - 5.3.8 Must be suitable for wipe cleaning on the inner and outer cabinet with a proprietary detergent and be resistant to rust and corrosion; and
  - 5.3.9 Must have a power source 220 240V AC; and
  - 5.3.10 Must have UK main wall plug; and











- 5.3.11 Must be provided with a minimum of 1 year's warranty for breakdown, parts, and labour.
- 5.3.12 Facility to be lockable if required.
- 5.4 This lot includes Paediatric/Neonatal warming systems specifically for children, infants, and new-borns. The system must:
  - 5.4.1 Be portable; and
  - 5.4.2 Be intended for short-term warming and must be available in different variants.
- 5.5 This lot includes Targeted temperature Management (TTM), which includes a range of systems and accessories intended to aid patient cooling in a variety of medical applications including mattresses, wrap pads, intravenous cooling, cooling towels and scalp cooling.
  - 5.5.1 The blanket and wrap sizes offered should be suitable for adult, paediatric and neonatal use.
  - 5.5.2 The cooled water systems must include the following.
    - 5.5.2.1 Control unit; and
    - 5.5.2.2 Blankets/Pads/Wraps adult; and
    - 5.5.2.3 Blankets/Pads/Wraps paediatric; and
    - 5.5.2.4 Blankets/Pads/Wraps neonatal.
  - 5.5.3 Cooling towels must:
    - 5.5.3.1 Provide temporary cooling relief to a patient; and
    - 5.5.3.2 Be single use; and
    - 5.5.3.3 Be a minimum size of 24cm x 24cm.
- 5.6 This lot includes the scalp cooling refrigeration/cooling control unit, which is, a system designed to deliver cooled water to a fitted cap worn on the head during treatment in order to help reduce hair loss for oncology patients undergoing chemotherapy.
  - 5.6.1 The refrigeration / cooling control unit must have a minimum of 1 year's warranty for breakdown, parts, and labour.
  - 5.6.2 The following must be visually displayed with:
    - 5.6.2.1 Set point temperature; and
    - 5.6.2.2 Pump on / off switch with light to indicate position; and
    - 5.6.2.3 Visual and audible alarm display required to indicate if the temperature deviates from the set values and any loss of coolant flow.











- 5.7 Cooling caps must:
  - 5.7.1 Be available in small, medium, and large sizes, to fit paediatrics and adults; and
  - 5.7.2 Be made from silicone; and
  - 5.7.3 Fit securely when in use.
- 5.8 This lot includes patient circulatory therapy, which uses a thermal regulation unit for temperature-controlled water, as a non-invasive therapy via blankets/wraps or pads. Heat therapy improves blood flow, promotes muscle relaxation, reduces pain and discomfort, and promotes healing. Cooling therapy induces controlled hypothermia or promotes bleeding coagulation.
  - 5.9 The thermal regulation unit for temperature-controlled water must:
    - 5.9.1 Have the ability to maintain a constant patient temperature and provide controlled normothermia to reduce fever burden in patients; and
    - 5.9.2 It must have the ability to minimise overshoot and maintain a constant target temperature between 32C & 36C; and
    - 5.9.3 It must have a minimum of 1 year warranty for breakdown, parts, and labour; and
    - 5.9.4 The unit must have attachable connectors to the pads/wraps/blankets which remain secure throughout use.
- 5.10 Wraps and pads for use in patient circulatory therapy must be:
  - 5.10.1 Single use; and
  - 5.10.2 Disposable.
- 5.11 Intravascular temperature management using a thermal regulation control unit is a rapid method of precisely controlling a patient's core body temperature by introducing heated or cooled infusion fluids.
- 5.12 The thermal regulation control unit must have the following features:
  - 5.12.1 a minimum of 1 years guarantee for breakdown, parts, and labour; and
  - 5.12.2 A visual display on the unit showing patient temperature and target temperature; and
  - Visual and audible alarm display to indicate if the temperature deviates 5.12.3 from the set values; and
  - 5.12.4 Fluid temperature controlled within ± 0.2°C; and
  - The power source must be 220 240 VACS: and 5.12.5
  - 5.12.6 If the machine is on castors, it must have full swivel wheels with foot pedal-controlled swivel locks available on at least two wheels and foot pedal-controlled brakes available on at least two wheels.













#### 6. Lot 4 – Passive Temperature Management

This lot includes Passive Warming Blankets, Passive Patient Warming Clothing and Passive Warming Consumables

- Passive insulating blankets (nonelectric) to prevent heat loss and associated 6.1 hypothermia must ensure that:
  - 6.1.1 Any seams on the blanket must be smooth.
- 6.2 Reactive self-warming blankets, intended to keep patients warm and reduce hypothermia risk must:
  - 6.2.1 Provide continuous heat for a minimum period of 8 hours without the need for an external power source; and
  - 6.2.2 Maintain an average temperature of 40 degrees centigrade for up to 8 hours for active self-warming blankets; and
  - 6.2.3 Must be air activated via an exothermic chemical reaction from the oxidation of iron initiated by exposure to air if they are warming pads; and
  - 6.2.4 Instructions for use including how to dispose of the product must be uploaded to the tender portal and be available electronically to the Participating Authorities
- Infant chemically activated warming mattresses (Reactive Gel Heating Pad) are 6.3 intended to keep infants warm and reduce hypothermia risk during transportation within the hospital or between hospitals. This product must provide continuous heat for a minimum period of 90 minutes without the need for an external power source and:
  - 6.3.1 All contents must be non-toxic; and
  - Operating temperature must reach 38 degrees centigrade; and 6.3.2
  - Must reach operating temperature within 90 seconds of activation at 6.3.3 ambient temperatures between 18°C and 28°C; and
  - 6.3.4 Must be radio lucent; and
  - 6.3.5 Must be able to meet MRI conditionality parameters and show if: MR Safe, MR Compatible, MR Unsafe or MR Unlabelled
- Hypothermia prevention blankets providing a lightweight thermal protection to reduce and guard against the risk of hypothermia:
  - 6.4.1 Must have front closure to allow maximum mobility; and
  - Must have adhesive reusable closure strips tested and capable of operating to minus 40 degrees centigrade; and
  - 6.4.3 All contents must be non-toxic; and
  - 6.4.4 Patient warming clothing for adults and paediatrics including gowns, jackets and head covers for use with hot air blower must be single use.
- Passive insulating patient warming clothing for adults and paediatrics including 6.5 leggings, head covers, wraps, full body suits and gowns.













- 6.5.1 All products must be antistatic, radiolucent, and nonconductive and safe for use with electro-surgical equipment.
- 6.6 Surface cooling pads provide immediate localised patient cooling, including water, gel, and Pads and must be compatible with imaging: transparent and safe for use in X-ray, CT, and MRI rooms.
- 7. Lot 5 Temperature Sensors and Associated Products

Temperature sensors must meet the requirements of BS EN ISO 80601-2-56:2017+A1:2020 or equivalent.

Medical electrical equipment. Requirements for basic safety and essential performance of clinical thermometers for body temperature measurement

- 7.1 This lot includes general purpose probes, oesophageal stethoscope, Foley catheter with temperature sensor, skin temperature probe, tympanic and myocardial temperature probes, non-invasive temperature sensor, and probe interface cables and connectors.
- 7.2 All general-purpose probes:
  - 7.2.1 Must have a low friction surface for ease of insertion; and
  - 7.2.2 Must include an enclosed temperature sensor; and
  - 7.2.3 Must be made from non-toxic, non-porous materials; and
  - 7.2.4 Must provide a secure cable connection; and
  - 7.2.5 Must be sterile; and
  - 7.2.6 Must be single use.
- 7.3 All oesophageal stethoscopes with temperature sensor:
  - 7.3.1 Must have a low friction surface for ease of insertion; and
  - 7.3.2 Must provide a secure cable connection; and
  - 7.3.3 Must be sterile; and
  - 7.3.4 Must be single use.
- 7.4 All oesophageal stethoscopes without temperature sensors:
  - 7.4.1 Must have a low friction surface for ease of insertion; and
  - 7.4.2 Must be sterile; and
  - 7.4.3 Must be single use.
- 7.5 All foley catheters with temperature sensors:
  - 7.5.1 Must be made from silicone; and











- 7.5.2 Must provide a secure cable connection; and
- 7.5.3 Must be sterile; and
- 7.5.4 Must be single use.
- 7.6 All Skin temperature probes:
  - 7.6.1 Must use a hypoallergenic adhesive; and
  - 7.6.2 Must provide a secure cable connection; and
  - 7.6.3 Must be sterile; and
  - 7.6.4 Must be single use.
- 7.7 All tympanic temperature probes:
  - 7.7.1 Must have a soft tip to minimise trauma; and
  - 7.7.2 Must provide a secure cable connection; and
  - 7.7.3 Must include a flexible earpiece to ensure secure placement.
- 7.8 All myocardial temperature probes:
  - 7.8.1 Must provide monitoring of patient temperature during heart surgery; and
  - 7.8.2 Must be keyed for a one way fit; and
  - 7.8.3 Must provide a secure cable connection.
- 7.9 All zero heat-flux (deep forehead) temperature sensors:
  - 7.9.1 Must measure core body temperature via a single use forehead sensor; and
  - 7.9.2 Adhesive should be hypoallergenic.
- 7.10 All probe interface cables and connectors:
  - Must be designed to be compatible with most multifunctional physiological monitors and anaesthesia machines to fit temperature probes.
- 8. Further Information Required, if Available and for information only:
  - 8.1 Please upload any information held on the below for any product, as part of your tender submission:
    - 8.1.2 Relevant outputs from National Strategy and Expert Reference Groups; and/or
    - 8.1.3 Best Practice/ Royal College Guideline(s)/ NICE Guidance; and/or
    - 8.1.4 Guidance from NHS England/ NHS Improvement/ Getting it Right First Time (GIRFT)/ Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB), etc.; and/or
    - 8.1.5 Relevant academic work: for example, literature review, emerging theory.













## Schedule A2 (B)

## SERVICE SPECIFICATION

## PATIENT TEMPERATURE MANAGEMENT

On behalf of NHS Supply Chain, the Authority is seeking to establish a multi-supplier framework for the supply of Patient Temperature Management which will provide a comprehensive range of products suitable for use across the NHS in England.

The framework is to be available for use by NHS Trusts and other UK public sector bodies in England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland including those operating in both an acute and community environment, clinical commissioning groups, GP Practices and other health and social care providers (including any future successor organisations). The framework will be available for use by Integrated Care Boards (ICB) and any future Integrated Care Systems (ICCs) or equivalent.

Schedule A7 shows a list of bodies eligible to use the framework.

It is recognised that primary use of the framework will be by Participating Authorities in England. These are referred to as "Participating Authorities".

The framework will provide a route to market fully compliant with Public Contracts Regulations (2015), enabling Participating Authorities to focus on their own specific requirements without the burden of cost and time in undertaking individual full procurement processes.

The framework is to be established based on a Lot structure as shown in Table 1 below which summaries the requirements of each. More detailed product requirements are contained within schedule A2 (A) Product Specification.







Registered in England Number: 10881715. VAT Number: 290 8858 54 Registered Office: Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London SE1 8UG



# Table 1 Lot Structure:

Lot Number:	Lot Description:		
Lot One	Forced Air Warming Blankets and Blowers  Scope includes-  • Forced Air Warming equipment and consumables		
Lot Two	Blood and Fluid Warming Equipment and Related Consumables  Scope includes:-  Blood and Fluid Warming Equipment and consumables		
Lot Three	Patient Temperature Management Equipment  Scope includes:-  • Temperature Control Devices  • Temperature Control Consumables  • Cooling Blankets and Mattresses  • Warming Blankets and Mattresses		
Lot Four	Passive Temperature Management  Scope includes:-  Passive Warming Blankets  Passive Patient Warming Clothing  Passive Warming		
Lot Five	Temperature Sensors and Associated Products  Scope includes:-  • Probes  • Sensors		









The Framework Agreement will be for a maximum term of 48 months (24 months fixed period with the option to extend for a further period of up to 24 months).

Bidders may bid for one or more lots.

This Framework Agreement will replace the current Framework Agreement for Patient Temperature Management which was awarded August 2019.

## 1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 This procurement supports the aims of the Department of Health and Social Care's -The Operating Model (OM) for NHS Procurement developed to transform the landscape of NHS Procurement.
- 1.2 The Operating Model is a strategic response to enhancing procurement efficiency and effectiveness across the NHS, as laid out in the Carter Report, to:
  - benefit the NHS as a whole:
  - benefit all Participating Authorities/NHS Participating Authorities regardless of size:
  - · benefit the procurement profession; and
  - benefit Patients.
- 1.3 Whilst we recognise that the introduction of the Operational Management represents a significant change in the way in which the NHS purchases goods, and this will have potential impacts on Suppliers' ways of working, we believe that the OM creates opportunities for Suppliers, for example:
  - a reduced burden of participating in procurement exercises, as the number of competing frameworks is reduced;
  - the inclusion of clinical expertise embedded into the towers means that we will be buying those products that the NHS wants rather than simply the cheapest;
  - commitment deals will make it easier for Suppliers to plan their business and outputs, and to reduce internal costs and this also means more certainty and predictable cash flow; and
  - there is a much clearer route for innovation.
- 1.4 On 1 April 2018 the new operating model went live. The new supply chain service is designed to help the NHS deliver clinically assured, quality products at the best value through a range of specialist buying functions. The NHS has the potential, through











- greater collaboration, to improve the NHS's purchasing power on a national scale and deliver better value for money for NHS Participating Authorities and the tax payer.
- Oversight and operational management of the new model is delivered by a new 1.5 management function, (SCCL) The Authority, a Limited company wholly owned by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care and forms part of the NHS family.
- 1.6 The OM is currently organised into eleven Category Towers covering medical, capital and non-medical areas of procurement spend. This procurement relates to Tower 2 -Sterile Intervention Equipment and Associated Consumables.
- 1.7 The purpose of the Patient Temperature Management Framework is to assure the NHS that Framework Suppliers are compliant to clinical and industry standards and are therefore safe to contract with:
  - build sustainable partnerships between the NHS and Suppliers which ensures the NHS benefit from ongoing cost effective, value added products and services whilst enabling Suppliers' continued profitable growth within this market area:
  - to provide the NHS with innovative value-based procurement (VBP) initiatives, considering whole life costing in the context of the entire patient pathway, improving community and acute ways of working to leverage efficiencies and benefit realisation (which may include, but not be limited to: reductions to bed blocking, number of days in hospital, improved patient recovery and clinical outcomes):
  - to provide the NHS with the best market price available to set the commercial parameters in how pricing can be applied for the NHS which is consistent across industry, in a fair and transparent way;
  - transformation of the NHS landscape championing rationalisation, standardisation.
  - co-operation and collaboration to affect patient pathways and clinical outcomes:
  - lay the foundations for efficiency savings and process improvements beyond the price of products;
  - to support facilitation of changes in clinical practice, new technologies and new treatment:













- to provide a sustainable and robust supply of products to the NHS;
- to enable the use of data to improve health outcomes; and
- ensure effective characterisation of Products and cataloguing for the NHS.











# 2. WORKING WITH PARTICIPATING ORGANISATIONS AND INDUSTRY UNDER THE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

- 2.1 The Authority aims to work collaboratively and transparently with the NHS and Industry to enable an effective and compliant route to market for the NHS. The Authority has established a team which will focus on driving value across the NHS through effective category management and clinical engagement. This team includes the following functions which will engage at varying levels across the NHS and Industry:
  - Data analysts responsible for reviewing spend data and running any required analysis.
  - Contracting responsible for procurement processes, catalogue management and supporting the category management team.
  - Category Management
     responsible for contributing to the ongoing development of the category strategy and working with Participating Authorities to establish their baseline, develop work plans and manage projects at individual Participating Authorities and across any collaborative working organisations.
  - Clinical Engagement and Implementation Managers (CEIM) responsible for contributing to the ongoing development of the category strategy and engaging with NHS clinicians regarding clinical procedures, informing them of products from the market and supporting the surgical teams to find an optimum solution for their patient care.
  - The Authority also works with the customer engagement team whose local Customer Relationship Manager support Participating Authorities at local level to assist with transition to the CTSP/NHS Supply Chain transacted model.
  - The Authority also works with the Inventory Management team who support with management stock, logistics, distribution and service levels.
- 2.2 The Authority's process of engaging with Participating Authorities is designed to ensure the timely delivery of projects across the NHS in collaboration with Industry. This involves, but is not limited to the following:
  - Identify and Profile the Participating Authorities;
  - Meet clinical, procurement & business leads to discuss and scope the project;





- Obtain usage, analysis of 12 months activity data with all Suppliers;
- Commercial analysis of the opportunities available for individual or groups of Trusts to show the potential benefits on different scenarios; And
- Participating Authorities may request to access all or part of the Framework
  Agreement subject to outcomes, as described above in point 2. If further
  analysis is required and the Participating Authority wishes to further
  consolidate their expenditure:
  - a) CEIMs work closely with the clinical team to identify the correct choice of product for the specific requirement/procedure;
  - b) Industry are engaged to align and support the clinical department;
  - c) Supplier events may be facilitated; And
  - d) Expenditure reviewed and forecasted usage (and commitment if relevant) translates into subsequent and appropriate commercial offering.
- 2.3 Schedule B4 Tender Response Document sets out the generic questions applicable to all 5 Lots and also Lot specific questions.
- 2.4 The Supplier **MUST** respond to all generic questions and the questions specific to each of the Lots they are bidding for on the JAGGAER e-Tendering Portal.

## 3. PRICE EVALUATION:

- 3.1 The Supplier **MUST** complete each tab within **Schedule B5** 'Price Schedule' in relation to the Lots the Supplier is bidding.
- 3.2 All pricing must:
  - be in £ Sterling;
  - exclude VAT;
  - include full delivery costs to NHS Supply Chain depots and NHS Supply Chain Customer locations (where applicable) and import duties; and
  - be firm for the period of the Framework Agreement, subject only to any variation provisions contained in the Framework Agreement.
- 3.3 For the avoidance of all doubt, the Authority will not accept delivery charges on products distributed via the e-Direct stock route.











## 4. HISTORIC SPEND DATA

4.1 The below table shows the historical annual sales during period March 2021 – March 2022 through the Existing Patient Temperature Management framework:-

Lot Number	Lot Title	Annual Sales  March 21 > March 22  data (excluding VAT)
Lot One	Forced Air Warming Blankets and Blowers	£9,263,167.21
Lot Two	Blood and Fluid Warming Equipment and Related Consumables	£5,269,321.82
Lot Three	Patient Temperature Management Equipment	£2,061,671.35
Lot Four	Passive Temperature Management	£867,333.94
Lot Five	Temperature Sensors and Associated Products	£900,070.75

#### 5. NHS

## 5.1 NHS Mergers and Acquisitions

NHS transformation has **resulted** in NHS organisations merging and, in some instances, one organisation has acquired all or part of another NHS entity.

Where a merger or acquisition affects the contracting position of an organisation using the Framework, the Supplier shall be advised that a re-calculation of the activity profile shall be undertaken.

#### 5.2 Collaborative Procurement

Partnerships and collaboration are at the heart of NHS reforms in England.

Collaborative working within the NHS has been promoted to help meet a 'triple challenge' set out in the NHS Five Year Forward View – better health, transformed quality of care delivery, and sustainable finances.

The Supplier shall be required to provide data in relation to these groups and future groups formed to support NHS collaborative working.











## 5.3 Collaborative Working by Participating Authorities

The Price Schedule indicated in B5 'Pricing Schedule' will be evaluated based on the methodology described in Schedule A3. The methodology provides opportunity for additional discounts for bulk purchases or commitment to volume or spend (depending on lot) for both individual Participating Authorities and those working collaboratively. The methodology in the pricing schedule is based on an example call-off contract period of **3 years**; however, there is opportunity on the 'Additional Offers Discounts tab' in Schedule B5 to include other added value initiatives for time commitment, extension options and/or value of business. The 'Additional Offers Discounts tab' is for information only, but bidders should complete this, if they wish for it to be considered in the scope of their framework offering.

The eligibility for multiple legal entities acting collaboratively shall be based on the following:

- Participating Authorities regarded as a single legal entity, prior to final merger. (e.g. NHS Trusts which have merged or have formally satisfied the Supplier, through written commitment, of their intention to merge at a given date).
- Participating Authorities regarded as a single contracting authority.
- Participating Authorities operating under a shared service. (e.g. Trusts with one central purchasing department but not necessarily one delivery point)
- Participating Authorities who are part of an Integrated Care System (ICS)
- Any two or more Participating Authorities who wish to commit as a group and satisfy certain requirements as outlined below:

Two or more NHS Trusts qualify based on the following:

- Participating Authorities will look to access such commercial offerings as part
  of any product rationalisation processes across single / multiple Lots (unless
  already in a common rationalised supply relationship);
- Rationalisation may not result in outright majority supply, but a solution for a common product range across the Participating Authorities in scope;
- Participating Authorities wishing to access the Framework as a group, must be geographically close to one another to allow the Supplier to optimally service those Participating Authorities;











- Participating Authorities may wish to contract together linked by speciality whereby niche or more specialist care is taken into consideration and requires joint activity;
- Commitment to volume / spend and to term must be offered, consistently across the group subject to Supplier offers;
- Commitment must be approved by the relevant Participating Authority boards, and each Participating Authority should sign the commitment access form at finance, procurement and clinical lead level;
- In offering commitment, each Participating Authority agrees to share full liability for the duration of the commitment.

Integrated care systems (ICSs) are designed around the care needs of whole areas, not just individual organisations and coordinate services in a way that improves population health and reduces inequalities between different groups.

There are currently 42 ICS areas covering all of England, where local NHS organisations and councils have drawn up proposals to improve health and care in the areas, they serve by working together. ICS' are voluntary partnerships, which are governed by Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) that are legal entities as of 01 July 2022.

## 6. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS - APPLICABLE TO ALL 5 LOTS

- 6.1 The following details the specification of requirements that are generic to all 5 Lots.
- 6.2 The Supplier must respond to the corresponding questions in **Schedule B4 Tender Response Document** confirming compliance with the generic specification of requirements, where applicable.
- 6.3 All quality questions must be answered on the Jaggaer e-Tendering Portal and can be found within the 'Technical Envelope'.
- 6.4 If, during Award, or subsequent to Award a Supplier is found to have misrepresented their compliance with the Specification, the Supplier will be suspended from the Framework Agreement pending investigation, which may result in permanent removal from the Framework Agreement. Any Participating Authorities engaged with that Supplier will be notified accordingly as soon as issues concerning misrepresentation of compliance is identified.
- 6.5 Suppliers are subject to an on-going obligation to notify the Authority of any material changes in their identity, financial or other circumstances. This includes, but is not limited





- to, changes in the identity of partner organisations or sub-contractors or the ownership or financial or other circumstances thereof and solvency of the Supplier or their agents.
- 6.6 The Authority shall be notified of any material change as soon as it becomes apparent.
- 6.7 Failure to notify the Authority or to comply with these provisions may lead to a Supplier being liable for disgualification from the Framework Agreement.
- 6.8 Compliance Medical Devices: Medical Devices Directive 93/42/EEC and the Medical Devices Regulation 2017/745. Where applicable, it is a mandatory requirement that all Suppliers comply with and supply products in line with the Medical Devices Directive 93/42/EEC (and any other European Directives applicable to the products supplied under this Framework) as implemented in UK law by the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency, except when supplied under a clinical trial.
- 6.9 For reference, guidance can be found here: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/medicines-and-healthcare-products-regulatory-agency">https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/medicines-and-healthcare-products-regulatory-agency</a>
- 6.10 Regulations relating to the safety and performance of medical devices in the EU were harmonised in the 1990's following the New Approach on legislative principles. The regulation aims to ensure a high level of protection for human health and safety and good functioning of the Single Market.
- 6.11 During the transition period: -
  - Conformance to Directive 2007/47/EC shall be deemed a minimum requirement.
  - Suppliers shall advise the Authority on attainment of full compliance.
- 6.12 Where applicable, all equipment and products complying with the Medical Devices Directive 2007/47/EC shall bare valid CE markings or UK equivalent CE marking and compliant to MHRA and EUCOMED.
- 6.13 Suppliers shall; where applicable; comply with and provide evidence in support of the following Industry requirements
  - Manufacturing and certificates of standards for quality assurance accreditation
  - CE and/or UKCA Marking
  - Compliance with MDR
  - Certification / MSAT











- Compliance with MHRA and EUCOMED
- Registration with relevant bodies: UK Medical Devices Agency
- Classification of products (and proof of)
- Compliance with the Department of Health and Social Care Master Indemnity Agreement
- Declaration of all MDA / FDA reports / alerts, relating to any products, in use or removed from the market
- Product documentation to include design rationale and surgical techniques
- All relevant academic papers and peer review journal submissions
- Product white papers
- Survivorship data including relevant registry information
- Clinical follow up papers monitoring products
- Sterilisation certification
- Audit records
- 6.14 Suppliers must abide by Beyond Compliance for all new entrants to the market (where relevant).

# 6.15 New Standards or legislation

Where new or subsequent standards come into force during the period of the Framework, Suppliers shall ensure goods and services supplied under this Framework meet them, where appropriate / applicable. Evidence of compliance to the standards/legislation/directives must be made available on request at any time during the term of the Framework. In the event that sufficient evidence is not supplied the Authority reserves the right to suspend the relevant product(s) until such evidence is available.

Evidence of compliance to the standards/legislation/directives listed in the table below must be provided as part of the Tender submission (unless otherwise specified), where they apply to the products tendered. Files uploaded as part of the Tender submission must be clearly named with the directive / standard to which they relate as well as clearly identifying which product / products they cover.

The awarded Supplier must make the Authority aware of any product awarded to the Framework Agreement that is classed by the MHRA as a Medicinal Product.











# 6.16 Quality Management System relating to Medical Devices

Manufacturers of equipment provided under this Framework ideally shall possess and maintain registration of ISO13485: 2016 Medical Devices – Quality Management Systems accreditation, or equivalent.

Suppliers shall evidence Quality Management System (QMS) compliance throughout the term of the Framework.

Distributors / agents etc, who are bidding on behalf of a manufacturer are required to ensure that the manufacturers they are supplying on behalf of, have the necessary quality management systems in place to ensure compliance (and evidence compliance) with this Specification.

Distributors / agents shall possess and maintain registration of ISO 9001:2015 – Quality Management System or an equivalent quality assurance standard.

Where we have stated a Standard is to be achieved, for example, ISO 9001:2015 – Quality Management System, this means the Standard or an equivalent.

6.17 **Quality Assurance:** Suppliers shall evidence Quality Assurance compliance throughout the term of the Framework.

# 6.17.1 Quality Assurance Products

The Authority supports the requirements of the Participating Authorities' Clinical and Product Assurance (CaPA) function which seeks to systematically and consistently apply assurance criteria to each part of the procurement process by providing relevant guidance and tools to measure compliance with the associated assurance requirements.

CaPA are responsible for providing oversight to the procurement process and to assure all associated strategies comply with the CTSP Assurance Guidance ensuring that all procurement decisions are safe, fit for purpose and value for money, and represent the needs of Allied Health and Care Professionals (AHCPs), patients, carers and citizens across the Health and Care System.

CaPA has developed an Assurance Framework which allows a consistent and effective approach to clinical and product assurance to be established.





A single definition of quality in the NHS was first set out in "High Quality Care for All" (2008), following the NHS Next Stage Review led by Lord Darzi. This definition sets out three dimensions to quality, all three of which must be present to provide a high-quality service:

- Outcomes/Clinical effectiveness: quality care is care which is delivered according to the best evidence as to what is clinically effective in improving an individual's health outcomes;
- Safety: quality care is care which is delivered to avoid all avoidable harm and risks to the individual's safety;
- Patient experience: quality care is care which looks to give
  the individual as positive an experience of receiving and
  recovering from the care as possible, including being treated
  according to what that individual wants or needs, and with
  compassion, dignity and respect". (Quality in the new health
  system National Quality Board January 2013)

The underlying principle of the Assurance Process is to continually support the Health and Care system to improve patient safety, service quality and associated health outcomes.

The Assurance Process is aligned with partner organisations (NHS England HealthTech Connect, GIRFT, Accelerated Access Review, Office of Life Sciences), so providing consistent requirements for Suppliers to ensure:

- Products procured are safe, fit for purpose and value for money;
- Patient safety and Supplier compliance with medical device regulations is integral to the assurance process;
- All stakeholders across the health and care system inform product specifications;
- Product evaluations reflect clinical product complexity and dependencies; and
- Special requirements for product storage and/or maintenance are defined within the product specification to minimise additional costs to the Supplier and/or user, due to











practices that are not aligned with the manufacturer's recommendations.

# 6.17.2 Patient Safety

Patient Safety concerns raised via the complaints process and/or existing regulatory standards will inform the procurement process working in **collaboration** with NHS England and other partners to implement an 'early warning system' proactively to address any issues raised by AHCPs and/or patient, carers and citizens as a priority.

#### 6.17.3 Innovation / Health Tech Connect

HealthTech Connect is a secure online system for identifying and supporting health technologies as they move from inception to adoption in the UK health and care system.

It is intended for devices, diagnostic and digital health technologies that either:

- offer measurable benefits to patients (or other health and care service users) compared to those already offered by current routine practice in the UK, or
- provide measurable benefits to the UK health and care system compared to those already offered by current routine practice in the UK

Suppliers should input information about new products with the potential to offer additional user benefits onto HealthTech Connect. This is a digital system hosted by the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence. The system is secure, recognising the confidential nature of the information held. This information will be viewed by an approved list of national bodies who have specified roles in supporting companies in the development of their products, in evaluating appropriate products and in relevant procurement and commissioning processes. It will also be used by the Accelerated Access Programme in its work to identify and support products with high potential which should be fast tracked to wide scale adoption. Further information can be found here: www.HealthTechConnect.org.uk.

# 6.17.4 Product / Asset Management











Suppliers shall furnish NHS Supply Chain with relevant "Field Safety Notices" (FSN) "Safety Action Bulletins" (SAB) and "Medical Device Alerts" (MDA) relating to products provided under this Framework within 3 days of detection / identification of a concern to CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk

Suppliers shall notify the Authority of any Medical Device / MHRA alerts relating to any products submitted and during the lifetime of the Framework Agreement.

#### 6.17.5 Product Recall

The Supplier shall ensure that it has robust procedures to respond to any product recall. In the event of products being recalled or defective the Supplier shall, without delay and at its own expense, arrange for the collection and replacement for any product(s) delivered but unused, including part used packs.

If the Participating Authority finds that there is no suitable alternative product available within the Supplier's product range to replace the affected product, the Supplier is required to recompense the relevant Participating Authority to the value of the stock uplifted. In these circumstances, the Participating Authority also reserves the right to move its business to another Supplier on the Framework Agreement in order to maintain its service.

Where a batch number of a product is identified as being defective, the Supplier shall replace the defective batch(s) with the same product but different batch numbers. The Supplier shall maintain communication with the Participating Authority to confirm dates and times of delivery of replacement products, to ensure no impact of patient care delivery.

#### 6.18 Coding Requirements

The Supplier shall ensure full compliance with any guidance issued by the Department of Health and Social Care in relation to coding requirements.

#### 6.19 GS1 Standards

GS1 standards are a fundamental part of the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) strategy for building a safer and more efficient NHS. the Department of Health's eProcurement strategy mandated that any service or product procured by an NHS Acute Trust in England must be compliant with GS1 standards. The deadline for compliance is 2019/20.











All product shall comply with the GS1 coding standard by 2020.

For products / packs too small to carry a linear barcode, a GS1 DataMatrix barcode is to be used.

#### GS1 standards include:

- GTINs (Global Trade Item Number) to identify products
- GLNs (Global Location Number) to identify locations
- GDSN (Global Data Synchronisation Network) to manage product catalogues
- GS1 XML to standardise purchase to pay business messages such as electronic invoices and purchase orders

# 6.20 Other Unique Device Identification Systems (UDI)

The Authority can accommodate other Unique Device Identification Systems – the preference is GS1

#### 6.21 **PEPPOL**

Pan-European Public Procurement Online (PEPPOL) refers to a set of specifications and governance model that focuses on the critical eProcurement components to solve interoperability issues in Europe.

This technology facilitates the electronic exchange of purchase orders and invoices.

Participating Authorities and Suppliers must select a PEPPOL access point provider.

The Supplier shall have the ability to receive purchase orders electronically via the PEPPOL network that contain the GS1 identifiers (GTIN and GLN) and when a purchase order is received from an NHS customer, or party acting on behalf on an NHS customer, via the PEPPOL network, the ability to return an Order Response message via the PEPPOL network to NHS customers.

# 6.22 Data Security and Protection Toolkit (DSPT Toolkit) - previously The Information governance Toolkit (IG Toolkit)

All organisations that access NHS patient data and systems must be compliant with the DHSC (Department of Health and Social Care)'s data security and information governance requirements. This is achieved by submitting a self-assessment using the DSP (Data Security and Protection) Toolkit, <a href="https://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/">https://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/</a> an online tool that replaced the IG Toolkit in April 2018.











Compliance with the DSPT Toolkit is mandatory for organisations that access the HSCN (Health and Social Care Network), which replaced N3 in 2017.

The Data Security and Protection Toolkit is an online self-assessment tool that allows organisations to measure their performance against the National Data Guardian's 10 data security standards. All organisations that have access to NHS patient data and systems must use this toolkit to provide assurance that they are practising good data security and that personal information is handled correctly.

# 6.23 Patient Confidentiality

The Supplier shall ensure that all patient information (personal and sensitive) is correctly handled in accordance with the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) Regulation, tailored by the Data Protection Act 2018.

Personal information is any piece of information that relates to a living, identifiable human being. People's names, contact details, financial health, purchase records: anything that you can look at and say "this is about an identifiable person"

Sensitive data encompasses a wide range of information and can include ethnic or racial origin; political opinion; religious or similar beliefs; memberships; physical or mental health details; personal life; or criminal or civil offences. These examples of information are protected by civil rights policies.

# 6.24 NHS Supply Chain's Ethical Procurement and Code of Conduct

All suppliers successfully awarded a place on the Framework Agreement are required to complete the Labour Standards Assessment and Modern Slavery Assessment Tool every 12 months and achieve a minimum score of 40%. The supplier will be suspended from the Framework until they achieve green band status.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Supplier self-assessment modules are incorporated into this tender and if successful, suppliers will be required to complete all six modules within the first 6 months from the Framework Agreement commencement date.

Please refer to Schedule A5, Conditions and Guidance for further information and guidance on LSA/MSAT and CSR Assessments.

Ethical sourcing is the process of ensuring the products being sourced are obtained in a responsible and sustainable way, that the workers involved in making them are safe and treated fairly and that environmental and social impacts are taken into consideration during the sourcing process.











NHS Supply Chain delivers an end to end logistics and supply service to the English NHS. We are fully aware of the responsibility we bear toward our customers, employees and the communities in which we work. Thus, we have given ourselves a strict set of ethical values to guide us in our business dealings. We expect all our suppliers, i.e., all companies who do business with NHS Supply Chain, to adhere to the same ethical principles. For this purpose, NHS Supply Chain has drawn up this Supplier Code of Conduct, (See Appendix 14) which sets the standards for doing business with us.

If successful, suppliers will be required to complete the following:

- Supply Chain Mapping (Component Build Questionnaire)
- Carbon Waste and Water Assessment tools

The supplier shall comply with all laws applicable to its business. The supplier should support the principles of the United Nations Global Compact, the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights as well as the 1998 International Labour Organisation Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, in accordance with national law and practice.

#### 6.25 Environmental Considerations

All NHS stakeholders are committed to promoting environmental and sustainability issues within all frameworks and contracts.

Corporate social responsibility (CSR), also called corporate sustainability, sustainable business, corporate conscience, corporate citizenship or responsible business is a type of international private business self-regulation. A copy of your CSR policy is required for supporting information.

Suppliers shall demonstrate a commitment to incorporate environmental and sustainable considerations into all elements of the Framework including 'Green' transport initiatives, packaging, description of how environmental factors are "taken into account" in respect of manufacturing, material sourcing and ethical trading.

Suppliers shall identify environmental management awards that have been received, and/or externally recognised programmes to which their company is involved.

# 6.26 ISO 14001 or Equivalent

It is expected that Suppliers effectively manage their environmental performance and minimises negative impact where possible. Suppliers shall hold an Environmental / Sustainability Certificate – ISO 14001 or equivalent in support of their commitment to











promoting environmental and sustainability issues. Suppliers shall provide a copy of their Environmental / Sustainability Certificate – ISO 14001 or equivalent.

Any equivalent must demonstrate and evidence how the following will be achieved:

- enhancement of environmental performance;
- fulfilment of compliance obligations;
- achievement of environmental objectives.

## 6.27 Packaging Regulations

The Supplier shall comply with the requirements of the Packaging (Essential Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended) which implements the EU Directive on Packaging and Packaging Waste (94/62/EC) in the UK, and which requires packaging to be minimised, recoverable, and not to exceed by weight specified concentrations of heavy metals.

# 6.28 Waste Carriers Licence

Any business transporting waste, whether their own or someone else's; for free or for profit; must now register as a waste carrier with the Environment Agency in England. The Supplier shall ensure that appropriate registration and a Waste Carriers Licence is available for inspection, should the transporting of waste be applicable at any time under this Framework.

## 6.29 Sustainability

The supplier is expected to take issues of Sustainability (which for purposes of clarity includes Labour Standards) seriously and have implemented measures to ensure that its suppliers and subcontractors do likewise. This includes regular monitoring and reporting (at a minimum annually) of the supplier's own business activities and monitoring and of its supply chain.

The Supplier shall support the Authority and the Department of Health and Social Care with the implementation of the voluntary instrument entitled: "Green Public Procurement Criteria for Electrical and Electronic Equipment used in the Healthcare Sector (EU GPP for EEE)" and shall in particular provide upon request the following:

- User instructions for green performance management, including instructions on how to maximise the environmental performance of the Goods;
- Training with energy efficiency optimisation, including on the adjustment and finetuning of the Goods in relation to their consumption of electricity (using











parameters (for example, standby mode) in order to optimise the electricity use);

- Installation with energy efficiency optimisation, and a 'needs assessment' for the Participating Authority so the Participating Authority understands how to optimise the Goods' electricity consumption;
- Confirmation of the energy profiles of the Goods (where pre-determined use scenarios exist within EU GPP Guidance).

For Goods with no pre-determined use scenarios, the Authority may develop these during the term of the Framework Agreement.

# 6.30 Management and disposal of healthcare waste (HTM 07-01)

Upon request - The Supplier shall provide information on the management of the product at end-of-life, including (but not restricted to) opportunities for re-use and recycling.

Product literature shall identify information pertaining to the disposal; re-use; refurbishing or recycling of products.

## 6.31 Product Specification

The Supplier is to ensure that all goods supplied under this Framework meet all of the requirement set out within Schedule A2 (A) Product Specification.

## 6.32 Product Trials/Evaluations

Participating Authorities reserve the right to undertake trials and evaluations of alternative Suppliers' products. Any trials and evaluations conducted will follow the individual Participating Authority's policies and protocols.

Suppliers may provide the Participating Authorities with the option to participate in a trial. Written authorisation must be obtained from the Participating Authority prior to the commencement date of any trial. The Participating Authority shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Supplier in relation to the trial.

The Supplier is expected to support any required product trials or clinical evaluations as requested by the Participating Authority and must provide samples to enable the Participating Authority to carry out required evaluations. To enable the Participating Authority to manage and complete a meaningful evaluation, product training and clinical guidance must also be provided.











In exceptional cases where there is a significant cost associated with undertaking any trial a Supplier will be within their right to negotiate a reasonable charge in advance of the trial commencing. For the avoidance of doubt this is only in exceptional circumstances and once agreed the charge will not increase regardless of the trial length.

Full and effective training must be given to each member of staff associated with the trial and at respective levels / requirements prior to any clinical trial being conducted.

Trials will be time-bound, and this will be clearly agreed between the Supplier and affected parties within the Participating Authority(s). The Supplier must inform the Authority of the trial start date and duration.

The Supplier is required to supply appropriate supporting documentation, including evaluation forms if requested to do so. As a minimum, it is expected that supporting documents establish the duration, content, cost, desired outcome and method for managing the trial to the Participating Authority.

The Participating Authority will provide feedback to Suppliers on clinical trials of any samples evaluated.

# 6.33 Product Changes Throughout the Framework

#### 6.33.1 New Products / Range Extensions

Suppliers must inform Participating Authorities(s) and the Authority in writing of any new products which they wish to **include** on the Framework for consideration/evaluation and subsequent agreement by the Authority.

The Supplier shall request additional products to be added to their commercial offer only for Framework Lots for which they were awarded.

The Supplier must inform the Authority and individual Participating Authorities concerned in writing of any proposed changes to the specification of the goods being supplied under the Framework, including proposed changes to packaging quantity or format, for consideration by the Participating Authority. Notification of any such proposals shall be made at least three months prior to the proposed implementation date of any changes.

The price of additional products shall be in line with the discount structure contained within the price agreement and will be reviewed and accepted by the Authority Category Management Team.











The Supplier shall inform the Authority in writing of any additional products which it wishes to include on the Framework.

Notification of the request to add products shall be by e-mail to <a href="mailto:CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk">CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk</a> in the format determined by the Authority.

Where relevant, Suppliers must adhere to the protocol set out in Beyond Compliance. <a href="http://www.beyondcompliance.org.uk/">http://www.beyondcompliance.org.uk/</a>

The Authority shall notify the Supplier that products have been added to the Framework. Any products added are at the discretion of the Authority.

## 6.33.2 **Product changes**

The Supplier should have and maintain a policy that governs the managed specification changes of products within its portfolio. The Supplier is required to inform the Authority in writing of any proposed specification changes to products being supplied under the Framework, including proposed changes to packaging quantity or format, for consideration by the Authority. Notification of any such proposals shall be made at least three (3) months prior to the proposed implementation date of any changes.

The Supplier shall confirm provision for future technological advances such as advances or alterations in materials of construct, sizing, anatomical improvements, imaging compatible products, etc. and associated disposable / non-disposable instrumentation that may be used for various procedures within elective and emergency surgery which relate to the product areas described in this Specification.

All information regarding the changes including, but not limited to sizing, packaging, unit of measure etc. shall be notified via e-mail to <a href="mailto:CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk">CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk</a>

The Authority shall notify the Supplier that product changes have been applied to the Framework.

#### 6.33.3 Product obsolescence – Delisting











The Supplier shall notify the Authority in writing of any proposed product deletions at least three months prior to the proposed implementation date to CPPSupport@supplychain.nhs.uk

The Supplier shall notify the Authority in writing if the product deletions will affect the purchase of associated products and provide a report of Participating Authority usage associated with those products in the rolling 12 months to the date of the notification.

The Supplier must confirm that any affected customers have been notified of the intention to delist and advised of any required action that needs to be taken.

The Supplier shall advise of the "reasons" for the request to delete/delist the products.

The Supplier shall notify the Authority in writing of any alternative product to those being delisted. Alternative products may not be "like for like" but may facilitate the same clinical outcome.

Once approved, the affected pricing schedule must be resubmitted to the Authority with all delisted product NPC highlighted in red and with all pricing in each cell replaced by the word "obsolete".

Once delisted, products may only be re-enlisted at the equivalent or reduced price, prior to delisting.

The Authority shall notify the Supplier that products have been removed from the Framework.

# 6.33.4 Business Continuity, Risk Management and Supply Chain Resilience

All NHS stakeholders are committed to business continuity, identifying, eliminating and mitigating risk, and maintaining supply of goods to meet NHS and participating bodies requirements to ensure supply meets demands.

Suppliers must demonstrate their commitment to providing goods of the right quality, the right quantity, to the right place, at the right time, and at the right price.

Suppliers must demonstrate their commitment to work transparently and collaboratively with all NHS stakeholders to proactively drive value for











money whilst meeting the business needs and requirements set out within the Framework Agreement.

It is expected that Suppliers effectively manage business continuity to minimise negative impact wherever possible. Suppliers shall hold Business Continuity Accreditation – ISO 22301:2012 or equivalent in support of their commitment to ensuring continuity of supply. Suppliers shall provide a copy of their Business Continuity Certification – ISO 22301:2012 or equivalent.

The Supplier must maintain a suitable Business Continuity plan to ensure continuity of supply in the event of a disruption to the Supplier's manufacturing or distribution process:

- of supply in event of a disruption to Supplier's manufacturing or distribution channels:
- of service in the event of a disruption to Supplier's resource;
- of supply & services from 3rd parties;
- of supply & service in the event of adverse weather conditions; And
- of supply in the event of a pandemic.

Contingency planning shall include, but not be limited to: -

- Evacuation of Supplier premises;
- IT and / or telecoms failure;
- Industrial Action (internal or external influences);
- Device / product recall;
- Production failure: And
- Working from home
- 6.33.5 In the event of a Major Incident or local emergency involving an NHS body, the Supplier shall facilitate supply requests by telephone from the Authorised Person(s).
- 6.33.6 The Supplier must provide copies of its Business Continuity Plans and/or ISO 31000:2018 or equivalent and/or Risk management Policy towards supply chain continuity as part of its Tender submission.











- 6.33.7 Throughout the life of the framework agreement, the Supplier will ensure its Business Continuity Plan provides for continuity during a Business Continuity Event. The Supplier confirms and agrees such Business Continuity Plan details and will continue to detail robust arrangements that are reasonable and proportionate to:
  - the criticality of this Framework Agreement to the Participating Authorities; and
  - the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations,

regarding continuity of the supply of Goods during and following a Business Continuity Event.

- 6.33.8 The Supplier shall test its Business Continuity Plan at reasonable intervals, and in any event no less than once every twelve (12) months or such other period as may be agreed between the Parties taking into account the criticality of this Framework Agreement to Participating Authorities and the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations. The Supplier shall promptly provide to the Authority, at the Authority's written request, copies of its Business Continuity Plan, reasonable and proportionate documentary evidence that the Supplier tests its Business Continuity Plan in accordance with the requirements of the framework agreement and reasonable and proportionate information regarding the outcome of such tests. The Supplier shall provide to the Authority a copy of any updated or revised Business Continuity Plan within fourteen (14) Business Days of any material update or revision to the Business Continuity Plan.
- 6.33.9 The Authority may suggest reasonable and proportionate amendments to the Supplier regarding the Business Continuity Plan at any time. Where the Supplier, acting reasonably, deems such suggestions made by the Authority to be relevant and appropriate, the Supplier will incorporate into the Business Continuity Plan all such suggestions made by the Authority in respect of such Business Continuity Plan. Should the Supplier not incorporate any suggestion made by the Authority into such Business Continuity Plan it will explain the reasons for not doing so to the Authority.
- 6.33.10 Should a Business Continuity Event occur at any time, the Supplier shall implement and comply with its Business Continuity Plan and provide regular written reports to the Authority on such implementation.











6.33.11 During and following a Business Continuity Event, the Supplier shall use reasonable endeavours to continue to fulfil its obligations in accordance with this Framework Agreement.

# 6.34 Account Management

- 6.34.1 There is a requirement for the Supplier to provide a range of activities in support of the Framework Agreement, including but not limited to:
  - new accounts when new business is awarded.
  - implementation / exit plans
  - clinical training and training of any affected member of staff, if required
  - new product launches / phasing out of technology swap outs
  - on site customer engagement
  - technical and professional support available as and when required
- 6.34.2 Suppliers are expected to maintain routine communication with each Participating Authority through a relevant account manager and clinical lead.
- 6.34.3 Supplier Representatives shall be a named contact designated for Account Management support and be contactable during normal working hours. An out of hours contact should be available as may be required and alternative nominated persons should be identified and contact information supplied, should the main representative contact not be available.

# 6.34.4 Customer Services

The Supplier shall provide a responsive customer service function during normal working hours which enables a customer to **resolve** issues, over the telephone or by e-mail, within a maximum 24-hour timescale.

Individual Participating Authority accounts shall have a named Supplier Specialist Support Staff / Sales Representative with customer facing responsibilities. Key roles and responsibilities and how they will interface with the Participating Authority shall be provided and maintained.

# 6.34.5 Compliments and Complaints

The Supplier must have a clear and comprehensive written complaints management procedure. This procedure will be followed in the event of any











issue to the supply of goods or support provided as part of the Framework Agreement. Such procedure shall enable the Authority Customer Services or the Participating Authority to make complaints quickly and simply and shall require the Supplier to investigate and resolve a complaint in accordance with strict timescales. For the avoidance of doubt complaints can be written or verbal.

The Supplier shall keep a full written record of the nature of each complaint and details of the action taken as a result of the complaint. Records shall be available for inspection at any time. This is to show:

- Reason for the complaint, from whom and date;
- Initial complaint, complainant, Participating Authority and date;
- Action taken;
- Corrective Action taken to prevent recurrence (complaint); And
- Date of resolution

The Supplier shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure that all complaints are resolved within 10 days of the complaint being notified to the Supplier, unless the nature of the complaint requires additional investigation or action, in which case the Supplier shall ensure that the complaint is resolved as soon as possible thereafter. Where the complaint relates to a faulty or spoiled device or product the Supplier shall provide a full written report, with supporting root cause analysis to the relevant Participating Authority within one month of the complaint.

The details of how the complaint has been resolved should be notified to the Authority Customer Services in writing as soon as possible thereafter and the Supplier will on request at any time provide the Authority Customer Services with an update as to the progress of the resolution of the complaint. It is a requirement that Suppliers have corrective/preventative action plans in place to remove the causes of an existing or potential undesirable situation.

The Supplier shall possess a complaints policy which details roles and responsibilities of key roles and details escalation routes. A copy of which should be provided as part of the Tender submission.

6.34.6 Company Representatives On-Site Conduct Visiting NHS Sites











Supplier Representatives must comply and ensure that its staff comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and other relevant legislation, including regulations and codes of practice issued there under and with the Participating Authority's own policies and procedures.

The Supplier shall ensure that all staff assigned to the call-off Contract shall possess, and exercise relevant care, appropriate qualifications, expertise and experience as are necessary for the proper provision of support. Supplier staff must at all times when on Participating Authority premises, wear an identification badge, complete with photograph.

The Supplier's representative shall meet with the Participating Authority staff only by prior appointment. Product presentations and samples should only be provided to wards or medical and / or nursing staff following discussion and agreement with the Participating Authority employed clinical lead or a member of their team to do so.

When the attendance of an appointment cannot be met, the Supplier Representative shall withdraw the meeting request giving as much notice as possible.

Supplier Representatives promoting the sale of their products and services shall not enter any clinical or non-clinical area without an appointment unless otherwise advised by the Participating Authority(s).

A Representative who does not have a pre-arranged appointment may be asked to leave the premises.

Representatives arriving for an appointment (pre-arranged time and place) shall be met by the person with whom they have an arrangement; or a person designated by them.

# 6.34.7 Supplier Product Specialist Support Staff

The Supplier is required to have capacity within their clinical team to assist the Participating Authority with product advice and support any training where needed. This requirement will be specific to each individual Authorities support requirement and will be identified and agreed during implementation or anytime throughout the lifetime of the framework.

Supplier product specialist support staff shall have the capabilities (training & experience) to undertake in depth discussions with clinical staff and the











Authority staff, support clinical discussions and when requested conduct onsite training.

Supplier Product Specialist Support Staff shall be required to evidence the effectiveness and customer satisfaction rating of their: -

- training sessions
- implementations (planning & deployment)
- product trials
- product / systems knowledge
- ongoing support

Training programmes must be fit for purpose, competency based wherever possible and appropriate to the products provided. Training shall be supplied free of charge, at Participating Authority sites or "as agreed" and repeated when staff changes necessitate.

Product Training Programmes shall provide individuals with the knowledge and skills they need to identify the Selection and appropriate use of the equipment, devices and consumables in scope of this Framework Agreement.

# 6.34.8 Secure Areas

Supplier Representatives who require access to consignment stock to audit or for other purposes shall hold a current DBS check, carry photo identity and notify a nominated person in advance of their requirement for access.

# 6.35 Framework Contract Management / Monitoring

#### 6.35.1 Management Information

The Supplier shall provide information to enable performance and ongoing monitoring of the Framework to the Authority as detailed below:

#### 6.35.2 Future Opportunities

Suppliers will respond to benchmarking requests, approved by Participating Authorities, within 7 working days of the request. This will cover the previous 12 months' activity data for specified Participating Authorities.

The output from benchmarking is for the Authority to provide the Participating Authority procurement staff, operational teams and clinician(s) with an analysis of the opportunity detailing any cost efficiencies or cost pressures, this











information facilitates decision making and determines "next steps" and the development of agreed work plans.

It is the responsibility of the Supplier to ensure that the Authority Category Manager is informed of any discussions with a Participating Authority that may directly or indirectly lead to a change in practice or price of the products under the call-off Contract and/or Framework Agreement.

#### 6.35.3 KPI's

The KPI's (See Schedule 8 Service level Agreement & Schedule (Social Value Reporting Metrics of the Framework Agreement) shall inform the effectiveness of the Framework Agreement between the Supplier, end users and the Authority and form part of the contract review meeting discussions with the Authority Tower 2 Category Team.

The Authority reserve the right to include additional KPI measures during the term of the Framework Agreement as circumstances may dictate.

#### 6.35.4 Social Value Metrics

Every quarter, suppliers are required to report up-to-date information in accordance with the Social Value metrices (See Schedule 10 Social Value Metrics of the Framework Agreement).

# 6.35.5 Contract Review Meetings

Suppliers are expected to meet with the Authority Tower 2 Category Team at least every quarter for the purpose of reviewing the Supplier's performance. Such meetings must be attended by the relevant account manager from the Supplier. Meetings may increase to monthly as may be required depending on the nature of the call-off Contract/ access agreement in place.

Representatives from the individual Participating Authorities may also require similar meetings on a quarterly basis as part of their own call-off Contract with the Supplier. The Participating Authority will agree these requirements with the Supplier on a case by case basis.

#### 6.35.6 Contract Implementation for New Customers

On the award of any new business, if requested by the Participating Authority, the Supplier is expected to provide a detailed implementation plan to support the switch of product from the Participating Authority's incumbent supplier. It is











expected the implementation plan includes the following key points to ensure that there is minimal disruption to services during and after transition:

- Supplier resource provided to support any transition
- Define and agree delivery lead time expectations
- Identify key end users
- Initial training plan for appropriate product usage
- Supporting literature distribution
- Agree the support required
- Identification of any resource intensive tasks required during implementation

Contract implementation meetings shall be held with the Supplier to facilitate the resolution of any "teething problems" and establish an understanding of working relationships as part of call off Contracts under the Framework Agreement.

# 6.35.7 Orders for Participating Authority Requirements

Transacted sales – edirect. Please see Appendix 13 which details the operating process for eDirect services with the Authority. The Supplier must comply with the operating process detailed in Appendix 13 to facilitate the e Direct ordering services.

eDirect relates to goods and services ordered by the Authority on behalf of the Participating Authority which are delivered direct to the Participating Authority and invoiced to the Authority.

The Authority has an ordering system which is used by most Participating Authorities to issue purchase orders for direct delivery to their stores or clinical area. The Authority can create standing orders for customers who require a regular delivery of the same products and quantities – a unique purchase order number will be created for each order / delivery.

A call-off order will be placed by each Participating Authority based on their anticipated individual annual usage/spend. They will use this order to purchase volumes as and when required. The Supplier is required to send only the quantity released from the call-off order.











Or: - Alternatively Participating Authorities will place ad-hoc orders as and when a requirement is identified for direct delivery.

Or: - Products will be ordered via third party vendors and retrospective quarterly discounts should be made payable direct to the individual Participating Authority within 14 days of the end of each quarter. Any such discount should be clearly identified within the returned Tender submission documents.

Or: - The Authority, with the Participating Authorities' approval, reserves the right to use a 3rd party distribution service, where possible. The Authority will work together with the Supplier to make this happen.

All 3rd party carriers engaged to deliver goods shall be deemed to be an agent of the Supplier, and not the Customer of the Authority, and the Supplier shall ensure that any agent or sub-contractor engaged by it in the performance of this contract shall comply with the Supplier's obligations under the Framework Agreement.

If a Supplier's product is awarded onto the stock route, to ensure resilience in the supply chain there is a requirement to ensure adequate stock holding. The intention is for suppliers to provide a solution for stock holding levels that at least covers product lead times. As a minimum the requirement will be 4-6 weeks of stock to be held in the NHS Supply Chain network and 4-6 weeks stock to be in transit.

- Please provide the lead times for each category, from order placement to delivery into the network.
- Please provide details of the stock holding solution to be put in place to meet this requirement.

The Supplier is to confirm how long it will take for your organisation to replenish stocks held to support this framework. Please advise your proposed stock holding (volume and expected number of weeks demand, minimum levels and re-order thresholds) by Product type within each lot, via e-Direct. Please provide a breakdown by product type within Lot for the length of time from the bidder placing the order with the factory or manufacturer to the delivery to the supplier to a location which will enable delivery times into NHS SC as per the tender (48 hours for stocked consumables, or as per bidders offer e-Direct, unless stated otherwise for equipment).











NHS Supply Chain will work with suppliers on annual demand signal for each product category.

The Authority, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to change available stock route (i.e. into stock or otherwise), throughout the lifetime of the agreement. The Authority will work with the Supplier on agreeing lead times and stock holding levels required.

#### 6.35.8 Goods Received Notes

The process for goods receipting relating to the e-direct system is detailed within the Operational Guide included within **Schedule A11** Supply Chain Operational Requirements Guide.

# 6.35.9 Invoicing

The Supplier shall submit invoices which must relate to specific order numbers, either direct to the Participating Authority or to a 3<sup>rd</sup> party (as advised by each Participating Authority). No personally identifiable data shall be included on invoices or credit notes – this includes any patients' name, NHS number or address.

#### 6.35.10 Invoice

Invoices in relation to goods should include as a minimum:

- the order number:
- the name and address of the delivery location (including the requisition point, if appropriate);
- the description and quantity of the Goods as set out in the Order;
- details of any item forming part of the relevant delivery;
- whether any containers supplied are required to be returned or collected; and
- the GTIN (GS1 Code) for the Goods;

Invoices in relation to Services should include as a minimum:

- the name and address of the service recipient; and
- a description of the Services.

#### 6.35.11 Shared Business Services (SBS)











Shared Business Services provides some NHS organisations with purchase to pay services. When advised that the Authority or Participating Authority is using SBS, Suppliers shall ensure that they follow the good invoicing practice to reduce invoice rejection.

# https://www.sbs.nhs.uk/Supplier-good-invoicing-practice

SBS utilise an e-Invoicing platform through technology partners, Tradeshift visit <a href="http://tradeshift.com/Supplier/nhs-sbs">http://tradeshift.com/Supplier/nhs-sbs</a> for more information

# 6.35.12 Order and Invoice Queries

The Supplier shall contact the purchase order issuing organisation with queries relating to receipt of order and price queries.

# 6.35.13 Distributor changes within Lots

The Authority is aware that during the lifetime of the Framework Agreement, a manufacturer of products may decide to change who it utilises to distribute its products. This may be to a distributor who is not listed on the Framework Agreement. Therefore, to ensure the continued availability of that specific manufacturer's particular product, the Authority's intention is that any new distributor of that manufacturer's product will be permitted to join the Framework Agreement, provided that any new distributor firstly meets the Selection Questionnaire requirements set out in this ITT.

Any new distributor must abide by the Specification and commercial requirements agreed within the scope of the Framework Agreement and any existing call off Contracts in place with Participating Authorities at the time of change of distributor.

END.











The Tender Response Document means the Supplier's full tender submission as submitted via the JAGGAER e-Procurement Portal in accordance with Project\_1001. This is available via your contract record on JAGGAER (the Authority's contract management system).











# Schedule 6

**Commercial Schedule** 













## Schedule 7

# Ordering Procedure, Award Criteria and Order Form

#### Introduction

Call-offs from the framework are required to be undertaken in accordance with Regulation 33 of the Procurement Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended) (Regulations). Call-offs need to be consistent with the terms of the call-off contract within the framework agreement attached to the ITT at Schedule A6.

# 1 Participating Authority/ies purchase of good(s) under the framework agreement

1.1 If awarded to the framework, the supplier grants NHS Supply Chain the right to supply the supplier's awarded products to the Participating Authority/ies using the following methods.

# 1.1.1 NHS Supply Chain Catalogue

NHS Supply Chain reserve the right to list supplier's awarded products onto the NHS Supply Chain catalogue under the appropriate route using correct product information by which NHS Supply Chain's Customer(s) will be able to access and buy the products from. Please note: Customer orders placed directly with Supply Chain Coordination Limited (SCCL) are subject to SCCL's supply terms available at the NHS Supply Chain catalogue (https://my.supplychain.nhs.uk/catalogue).

# 1.1.2 Duration and/or Volume and/or Spend based Purchases

Participating Authority/ies may sign up to a duration and/or volume and/or spend based saving arrangement(s) such as a National Pricing Matrix which may provide the customer with improved pricing from supplier(s) in return for commitment. To access these prices, an access agreement "Order Form" will be drafted by the Authority on behalf on NHS Supply Chain signed by the Participating Authority/ies and Supplier to enable commencement of the commitment.

#### 1.1.3 Bulk Purchases

During the life of the framework, the Authority on behalf of NHS Supply Chain may be asked by Participating Authority/ies, Arm's Length Bodies or any other government bodies to purchase products awarded onto this framework on their behalf in varying quantities based on the need at the time.

#### **Call-Off Processes and Procedures**

Call-offs from the framework for Lots can be by <u>either</u> direct award or through the reopening of competition.





# **Direct Award**

A participating authority may decide to directly award a call-off contract where:

- 1 The pricing for a Participating Authority's/ies' requirements is met by the framework and a proposed call-off from it; and
- 2 Objective conditions for a direct award set by the Participating Authority/ies have been applied and met.

Objective conditions are to be established by each Participating Authority/ies.

As an example, in order to identify the Successful Supplier for Direct Award, the below methodology will be used for evaluation:

#### Price Score - Min 20% - Max 100%

A Basket of Goods containing all the products required for the Participating Authority(s) will be evaluated as follows:

A basket of goods total cost will be determined by applying the banded price the Participating Authority/ies are eligible for, less any other discounts offered by the Supplier.

## See worked example below:

See worked example below.						
	Supplier A	Supplier B	Supplier C			
Total Basket of Goods based on Banded Price	£15,500.00	£16,000.00	£17,000.00			
Other Available Discount Applied	2%	4%	0%			
Other Available Discount Applied	3%	6%	4%			
Combined Discount	5%	10%	4%			
Final Price used for Evaluation	£14,725.00	£14,400.00	£16,320.00			

For the pricing element in the above scenario **Supplier B** offers the most competitive price, therefore, they would achieve the highest price score overall and would be successful for the Direct Award.

#### Quality Score - Min 0% - Max 80%

Participating Authority/ies may also determine the Successful Supplier by including the Quality Criteria weighting range set out in the table below to the relevant Framework Criteria for Framework Bids as the criteria relates to the Participating Authority/ies requirements in respect of the particular Order.











Standard Goods and Services Sub- Criterion	Original Framework Weighting	Standard Goods and Services Weighting Range
Quality	70%	0% - 80%
Product Technical Requirements	15%	0% – 40%
Supply Chain Resilience	10%	0% – 30%
Service & Supply	10%	0% – 30%
Customer Service & Contract Management	10%	0% – 30%
Clinical Support, Education & Training	5%	0% – 20%
Environment & Sustainability	7%	0% – 30%
Social Value	13%	0% – 30%
TOTAL QUALITY SCORE (Weighted)	70%	0% - 80%

The Participating Authority/ies' may adjust/amend the Quality evaluation criteria weightings within the ranges above.

The list above is for guidance only.

#### Reopening of Competition

As it is recognised that not all the terms governing the provision of the products and services may be included in the framework agreement and may be subject to specific requirements to be determined by Participating Authority/ies, call-offs from the framework for all Lots can be through the reopening of competition amongst the successful suppliers awarded to each Lot covered by the framework.

When a call-off is to be made, Participating Authorities should:

- Invite all suppliers awarded to the relevant Lot, other than suppliers suspended from the Framework, to participate in the further competition. Not all suppliers are required or may choose to respond to the further competition opportunity;
- (ii) allow suppliers enough time to respond to further competition opportunities;
- (iii) award each call-off contract to the supplier that has submitted the best tender based on the award criteria set out in the procurement documents issued by the Participating Authority and on which each further competition is based;
- (iv) utilise award criteria which is consistent with the criteria used to award to the framework i.e., a combination of price and qualitative criteria but with the flexibility to amend the weightings for each to best help meet the specific requirements of the Participating Authority/ies.











Suppliers are not obliged to respond to all or any further competition opportunities.

In addition to the general points included in points (i) to (iv) above, Participating Authority/ies should note and follow the processes and procedures outlined below when calling off from the framework by way of further competition.

# 2 Ordering Procedure

- f a Participating Authority/ies wishes to place an order for any products or services included in any of the Lots covered through this Framework Agreement, that Participating Authority shall:
  - 2.1.1 identify the relevant Lot (where relevant) that its requirements fall under;
  - 2.1.2 develop a specification or statement of requirements setting out its requirements:
  - 2.1.3 supplement and refine the call-off Contract terms only to the extent:
  - (i) anticipated within the call-off contract terms and conditions as indicated by references to potential extra key provisions and/or as otherwise indicated:
  - (ii) permitted by and in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations and the Law;
  - 2.1.4 invite tenders from all the suppliers who have entered into an agreement in the same form as the framework agreement and have been appointed to any of the relevant Lots that the specification or statement of requirements falls under by conducting a competition for the delivery of the relevant specification or statement of requirements and in particular:
  - (i) consult in writing and invite the suppliers referred to in this Clause
     2.1.4 to submit a Tender within a specified time limit by issuing a Further Competition ITT;
  - (ii) conduct the competition in accordance with this Schedule;
  - (iii) specify in a Further Competition ITT for that competition the further pricing information requested from the suppliers;
  - (iv) set out in a Further Competition ITT for that competition a time limit for the receipt by it of Tenders which takes into account factors such as the complexity of the subject matter of the intended calloff contract and the time needed to submit a Tender; and
  - (v) keep each Tender received confidential until the expiry of the time limit for the receipt by it of the Tenders;











- 2.1.5 apply the award criteria to all compliant Tenders submitted through the competition; and
- 2.1.6 subject to Clause 1.3 to 1.4 of this Schedule, place an order with the highest scoring supplier(s) using the Order Form.
- 2.2 The suppliers agree that all Tenders submitted by the suppliers in relation to further competitions held pursuant to Clause 2 of this Schedule shall remain open for acceptance for ninety (90) days (or such other period specified in the relevant Further Competition ITT issued by the relevant Participating Authority/ies) in accordance with Clause 2 of this Schedule.
- 2.3 Notwithstanding the fact that a Participating Authority/ies has followed the procedure set out in Clause 2 of this Schedule when conducting any further competition, the relevant Participating Authority/ies may postpone, delay or end any such procedure without placing an order for any products or services or awarding a call-off contract. Nothing in this Framework Agreement shall oblige any Participating Authority/ies to place any order for any products or services.
- 2.4 Before placing an order a Participating Authority/ies may conduct a standstill period between announcing the results of any further competition and the execution of the relevant call-off contract but is not required to do so by the Regulations. For the avoidance of doubt where a standstill period is conducted in respect of any further competition that standstill may but need not be conducted in a way that is compliant with the Regulations.
- 2.5 Following the execution of any Call-Off Contract a Participating Authority/ies:
  - 2.5.1 may publish a contract award notice as described in the Regulations but is not required to do so by the Regulations; and/or
  - 2.5.2 may publish information concerning the call-off contract on Contracts Finder or any successor of Contracts Finder.

#### 3 Call-Off Rules

- 3.1 Unless permitted under Clause 2.2 of this Schedule a Participating Authority/ies must conduct a Competition in accordance with this Schedule before awarding any call-off contract.
- 3.2 A Participating Authority/ies may run a further competition and issue a Further Competition ITT on its own behalf (in respect of its own requirements) and/or on behalf of other Participating Authorities (in respect of such other Participating Authority/ies' requirements)
- 3.3 Nothing in this framework agreement shall prevent a Participating Authority/ies in engaging in preliminary market consultations before commencing a procurement process as permitted under Regulation 40 of the Regulations.













- 3.4 If a Participating Authority/ies engages in preliminary market consultations, they shall ensure that all consultations are carried out in accordance with the Regulations and in particular will ensure that the consultations do not have the effect of distorting competition and do not result in the violation of the principles of non-discrimination and transparency.
- **3.5** Participating Authority/ies shall, when running a further competition, issue a Further Competition ITT to each supplier appointed to the framework in respect of the relevant Lot.
- 3.6 These call-off rules do not prescribe particular timescales for each stage of each further competition. It is anticipated that the timescales for each further competition will vary in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Participating Authorities and/or the nature of the specification or statement of requirements, including timescales for each stage of the process.
- 3.7 Participating Authority/ies and suppliers shall comply with the obligations and expectations of the Cabinet Office Statement of Practice "Staff Transfers in the Public Sector" (as amended) ("COSOP") and Fair Deal for Staff Pensions (2013) in relation to any call-off contract (where relevant).
- 3.8 The transfer of staff in connection with the award of call-off contracts shall be governed by TUPE, or, if TUPE is considered not to apply in any particular circumstances, by COSOP. In line with the principles of TUPE, the terms and conditions (including continuity of service) of transferring staff shall be protected and staff must be treated no less favourably than had TUPE applied.
- 3.9 As provided for by COSOP, neither Participating Authority/ies nor the suppliers shall orchestrate a non-TUPE situation.











# Schedule 8

# **Service Levels**

The Supplier agrees to conform to the following KPIs during the Term of this Framework Agreement:

The following provides details regarding KPI measures to support the management for the framework and call off arrangements.

The Authority reserve the right to add KPIs and circumstances dictate during the period of the Framework Agreement.

Compliance with the KPIs will be monitored monthly and form part of the review meeting process.

	PERFORMANCE INDICATORS	Performance Measure					
		Green	Amber	Red			
KPI		<b>C.100</b> .1	7				
1	Perfect Order on-time delivery, in full delivery, damage-free delivery, and appropriate, accurate documentation.	0 – 5 failure Incidences per month	6-10 failure incidences per month	11 plus failure incidences per month			
2	Invoicing  Accurate invoices supplied with required supporting documentation	0 – 5 failure Incidences per month	6-10 failure incidences per month	11 plus failure incidences per month			
2.1	Credit notes actioned within 14 days of agreement that a credit is pertinent	0 – 5 failure Incidences per month	6-10 failure incidences per month	11 plus failure incidences per month			
3	MI reports & KPI reports  Issued monthly within 10  working days at the end  of the month	Supplied within time frame	Supplied up to 5 working days late	Supplied more than 5 working days late			
3.1	Response to ad-hoc report/data requests i.e., Bench marking/sales data delist/product change/range extension data within 5 working days of request.	Supplied within time frame	Supplied up to 5 working days late	Supplied more than 5 working days late			
4	Service/product complaints  Complaints raised dealt with and resolved within time frames agreed	0 – 5 failure Incidences per month	6-10 failure incidences per month	11 plus failure incidences per month			









5	Anr	nual	Labour	No later than eac	h 12-	Up to 1	month	More than 1 month
	Standards		month		late		late	
	Assessment audit		anniversary					
	reporting		from	the				
			Commencement					
				Date				
6	Annual	Modern	Slavery	No later than eac	h 12-	Up to 1	month	More than 1 month
	Assessment Tool		month		late		late	
	Assessment audit		anniversary	•				
	reporting		from	the				
			Commence	ment				
				Date				

- 1 Any KPI discrepancy attributable to an act or omission of the Authority (or another Participating Authority) shall not be used to calculate the Supplier's sub-standard performance level.
- 2 The Supplier's performance shall be measured as indicated in the KPI Schedule above.
- 3 Should the Service Level of the Supplier fall below the relevant KPI:
  - 3.1 on three (3) or more occasions in any six (6) month period relating to the AMBER alerts:
  - 3.2 on two (2) or more occasions in any six (6) month period relating to the

The Authority may serve a performance notice on the Supplier. The Supplier shall present to the Authority within thirty (30) days of receipt of such performance notice an action plan to improve the Supplier's Monthly Service Level ("Action Plan"). The Parties shall, within ten (10) Business Days of the Authority receiving the Action Plan meet to discuss and agree the Action Plan. The Authority may make reasonable amendments to the Action Plan to improve the Supplier's performance. The Action Plan must include a timetable for improvement of the Supplier's performance to, as a minimum, the level required in relation to the relevant KPI. Such timetable shall be agreed by the Parties but shall in any event be no longer than six (6) months.

- In the event that the Supplier: 4
  - 4.1 fails to produce an Action Plan in accordance with Clause 3 of this Schedule 8: or
  - 4.2 fails to improve its Monthly Service Level to the minimum level required of this Schedule 8 within the timetable set out in the Action Plan in accordance with Clause 3.1 of this Schedule 8.













the Supplier shall be considered to have committed a material breach capable of remedy for the purpose of Clause 16.4 of Schedule 2 of the NHS Terms and Conditions.

- 5 If the Supplier disputes the Authority Monthly Service Level as applicable to the Supplier, the Supplier shall provide evidence to the Authority that the Monthly Service Level is incorrect within seven (7) days of disputing such Monthly Service Level and the Parties shall meet to discuss any necessary amendment to the Monthly Service Level. If the Parties cannot agree the Monthly Service Level the matter shall be referred to the dispute resolution procedure set out in Clause 23 of Schedule 22 of the Framework Terms and Conditions.
- For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Schedule 8 shall limit in any way either 6 Party's rights and remedies, including the right to claim damages and or termination rights which may arise, under this Framework Agreement or any Contract.

#### 7 **Management information**

7.1.1 The supplier shall provide information to enabled performance and ongoing monitoring of the framework to the Authority as detailed below.

#### 7.2 Sales Data

7.2.1 Framework suppliers shall provide monthly sales data for all activity under the framework as prescribed below: -

> This must be in electronic format no later than the 10<sup>th</sup> day of each month the category manager detailing the previous months sales activities per participating authority.

7.2.2 All management information must be provided free of charge as part of the overall service offered under the Framework Agreement.

#### 7.3 **Benchmarking requests**

- 7.3.1 The supplier shall respond to benchmarking requests, approved by participating Authority's, within 5 working days of the request.
- 7.3.2 The output from the benchmarking is for the Authority to provide the NHS procurement staff, operational teams and lead clinician(s) with a spend efficiency report (SER) which facilities decision making and determines "next steps" and development of agreed work plans.













#### 7.4 KPI's

7.4.1 The KPI's (See Schedule 8) shall inform the effectiveness of the framework agreement between the supplier a, end users and the Authority and from part of the monthly management reports required to be submitted to the Authority.

# 7.5 Contract Management

- 7.5.1 The contract review meeting shall be undertaken quarterly, this may increase to monthly as may be the requirement dependent on the nature of the contract/Call off/Access agreement in place.
- 7.5.2 The focus of contract management meetings will be the review of KPI's the management of contracts established under the framework, opportunity's new products, issues, training, debt management and LSAS compliance where applicable.
- 7.5.3 The Authority reserves the right to request updated copies of all documents and materials prepared and in use by the Supplier in the course of Modern Slavery Assessment Tool and Labour Standards Assessment compliance and to review and require change to comply with UK Guidance and Law concerning Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking.
- 7.5.4 MDA reports / alerts relation to products supplied under the framework update on actions taken, or action plans to facilitate resolution.
- 7.5.5 Future technological advantages or additional service provisions.
- 7.5.6 Representatives from the individual participating Authority's may also require similar meetings on a quarterly basis as part of their own contract with the supplier. The Participating Authority will agree these requirements with the supplier on a case by case basis.













### Schedule 9

# Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking Remedial Proposal

Nothing in this Schedule is intended to limit the rights of the Authority under any other provision of the Framework Agreement.

This Schedule sets out the actions which must be taken and which must be included in any Remedial Proposal agreed under clause 15.3 of Schedule 2 when such a plan is required in relation to a Matter of Concern under the Key Provisions of Schedule 1 and/or other allegation or substantiated instance of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking occurring within the Supplier's supply chain in relation to the Goods. Nothing in this Schedule is intended to limit the ability of the Authority to make additional requirements of the Supplier when agreeing to any Remedial Proposal.

The timescales for the provision of the Remedial Proposal in such instances is as amended by this Schedule.

When the Authority is made aware of any actual, suspected and/or allegation of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking incident(s) in the Supplier's supply chain which relates to this Framework Agreement:

- The Supplier will take immediate, decisive action on any actual, suspected and/or allegation(s) which shows or indicates that incidents of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking is taking place in their supply chain.
- The Supplier will investigate fully any actual, suspected and/or allegation(s) of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking and promptly and regularly report to the Authority the details of the investigation in full and transparent manner and in reporting progress of the investigation it shall including the conclusions (including provisional conclusions) of the investigation and any final conclusions. Notwithstanding any ongoing civil or criminal proceedings in any jurisdiction, the investigation must continue and all relevant parties including the Authority shall be informed of the findings of any investigation.
- Work in good faith with the Authority, and with the statutory processes and authorities in the country concerned to address incidents of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking.
- Share information with the Authority that will help stop, or prevent, the abuse or exploitation of workers, including where either party has been made aware of risks specific to the supply chain.
- Treat any Confidential Information provided by the Authority sensitively and appropriately and not disseminate it without prior agreement of the Authority.
- The Supplier will appoint dedicated lead to implement any agreed Remedial Proposal, to coordinate the response and liaise with all necessary agencies the Authority and law enforcement agencies in the UK and overseas if required by the Authority. The lead appointed by the Supplier must have sufficient seniority to be









Registered in England Number: 10881715. VAT Number: 290 8858 54 Registered Office: Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London SE1 8UG



- responsible for the exchange of information and an understanding of how sensitive information should be handled.
- When the steps and investigation under any agreed Remedial Proposal identify to the satisfaction of the Authority that the allegations of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking which led to the investigation are not substantiated, the Remedial Proposal will be concluded.

When either an agreed Remedial Proposal or the Authority acting reasonably identifies that Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking, allegations or breaches (potential or actual) has (or has on the balance of probabilities) taken place or been identified:

- Where incidents of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking are identified or established (including on the balance of probabilities) to the reasonable satisfaction of the Authority, the Authority may, without prejudice to the rights of termination and suspension of the Authority under the Framework Agreement, require a Remedial Proposal is put forward for agreement by the Authority with such Remedial Proposal detailing how the Supplier will work with victims, victims' representatives and, where relevant, statutory authorities to tackle root causes and support identified victims of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking.
- Where incidents of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking are identified or in a Remedial Proposal such Remedial Proposal shall detail how the Supplier will work with victims, victims' representatives and, where relevant, statutory authorities to tackle root causes and support identified victims of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking.
- Remedial Proposals concerning where incidents of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking must comply with the following timescales. It shall be for the Authority in its sole discretion to determine whether it consider any incident of Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking identified to be of Low, Moderate, High Risk or a Critical Risk.

Incident	Timescale for Proposing Remedial Proposal	Timescale to Implement Remedial Proposals
Low risk	Within 10 Business Days of incident being confirmed or identified	Implemented before the next third party audit is due, or sooner if required by the Authority.
Moderate risk	Within 10 Business Days of incident being confirmed or identified	Implemented within 60 Business Days of the issue or confirmed incident being identified, or sooner if required by the Authority.





High risk	Within 10 Business Days of risk being confirmed or identified	Implemented within 30 Business Days of the issue or confirmed incident being identified, or sooner if required by the Authority.
Critical risk	Within 10 Business Days of risk being confirmed or identified	With Implemented within in 20 Business Days of the issue or confirmed incident being identified and updates every 5 Business Days on progress.

- The Supplier shall monitor the delivery of the Remedial Proposal, in conjunction with the Authority
- The Supplier shall, without prejudice to the rights of the Authority to suspend or terminate this Agreement, prepare further Remedial Proposals for agreement with the Authority detailing further actions where Remedial Proposal are not delivered, or where delivery is not effective or timely

# All Remedial Proposals shall put the victim's welfare first, specifically the dedicated lead shall: -

- 1. Prioritise the safety and security of the victims of and potential victims of Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking, particularly children
- 2. Work and consult with victims and potential victims of Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking to identify remedial solutions that work for them and improves their situation
- 3. Address child labour and potential victims of Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking as part of a wider approach to improve working conditions, aiming for continuous improvement
- 4. Phase out child labour in a responsible fashion

# **Enforcement of the Remedial Proposal:**

# If the Supplier:

- (a) Does not cooperate with investigations, including concealing information or unreasonably delay sharing information
- (b) Does not put the victims first
- (c) Continues to employ child labour illegally, or in what the Authority in its sole discretion determines are hazardous conditions
- (d) Does not implement the phasing out child labour
- (e) Continues to employ people who are victims of Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking
- (f) Does not implement a Remedial Proposal to the satisfaction of the Authority and/or third parties and/or third parties operating on behalf of the Authority
- (g) Refuses to improve their practice

#### The Authority will:

- (h) Consider additional steps, including:
  - a. Suspension
  - b. termination, and











Registered in England Number: 10881715. VAT Number: 290 8858 54 Registered Office: Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London SE1 8UG



c. sharing past performance information with other public sector contracting authorities

The Authority will where it considers it to be appropriate, in its sole discretion:

- (a) work with the Supplier to remedy any identified instances of and potential victims of Modern Slavery and/or Human Trafficking and/or child labour abuses.
- (b) work with the Supplier and our other suppliers to share lessons learnt, raise awareness within the supply chain and protect workers from exploitation and abuse.









# Schedule 10

# **Social Value Reporting Metrics**

- 1 The Supplier agrees to conform to the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) during the Term of this Framework Agreement:
- The following provides details regarding KPI measures to support the management of the framework and call off arrangements.
- The Authority reserves the right to add KPIs as circumstances dictate during the period of the Framework Agreement.
- 4 Compliance with the KPIs will be monitored quarterly and form part of the review meeting process.
- 5 The Supplier will be required to submit a scorecard every quarter from the Commencement Date of the Framework Agreement, as follows:

Contractual Year X		Metric Tonnes / Hrs.		%			
Reported	SV KPI	Definition	Target	Actual	Target	Actual	Rating for Quarter
Quarters							
1, 2, 3 &4	Landfill & Recycling	Reduction in waste to					
		landfill arising from the					
		performance of the					
		contract, measured in					
		metric tonnes.					
1, 2, 3 &4	Supply Chain	Reduction in					
	Network Design	emissions of					
	(Logistics from	greenhouse gases					
	Manufacture to NHS	arising from the					
	SC RDC)	performance of the					
		contract, measured in					
		metric tonnes carbon					
		dioxide equivalents					
		(MTCDE).					
1, 2, 3 &4	Educational	Number of people-					
	attainment relevant to	hours of learning					
	the contract,	interventions delivered					
	including training	under the contract, by					
	schemes that	UK region.					
	address skills gaps	-					
	and result in						
	recognised						
	qualifications						









**6** The targets and corresponding ratings are set out as follows:

		Rating (% of target achieved)			
KPI	Target per quarter	Good	Approaching Target	Requires Improvement	Inadequate
Landfill		98%+	75.01% - 97.99%	50.00% -75.00%	0% -49.99%
Supply Chain Network Design (Logistics from Manufacture to NHS SC RDC)		98%+	75.01% - 97.99%	50.00% -75.00%	0% -49.99%
Educational attainment relevant to the contract, including training schemes that address skills gaps and result in recognised qualifications		98%+	75.01% - 97.99%	50.00% -75.00%	0% -49.99%

- Within ten (10) Business Days of the contract Commencement Date, the Supplier will be required to provide their baseline, using their current actual position, for each KPI. This will be used as the baseline for the year 1 reporting.
- For each subsequent year, the actuals as at the anniversary of each year will be used to reset the baseline for the forthcoming contractual year. For example, at the start of the contract, there were 200,000 MTCDE which reduced by 10% in year one, concluding contract year one at 180,00MTCDE. The baseline used to measure progress as of the beginning of year two will therefore be 180,000 MTCDE.
- **9** Should the Supplier receive any of the following:
  - 9.1 on two (2) or more occasions in any quarter (three (3) month period) relating to a rating of requires improvement;
  - 9.2 on one (1) or more occasion in any quarter (three (3) month period) period relating to a rating of inadequate;

The Authority may serve a performance notice on the Supplier. The Supplier shall present to the Authority within thirty (30) days of receipt of such performance notice an action plan to improve the Supplier's Monthly Service Level ("Action Plan"). The Parties shall, within ten (10) Business Days of the Authority receiving the Action Plan meet to discuss and agree the Action Plan. The Authority may make reasonable amendments to the Action Plan to improve the Supplier's performance. The Action Plan must include a timetable for improvement of the Supplier's performance to, as a minimum, the level required in relation to the relevant KPI. Such timetable shall be agreed by the Parties but shall in any event be no longer than six (6) months.

- 10 In the event that the Supplier:
  - **10.1** fails to produce an Action Plan in accordance with Clause 9 of this Schedule 10; or











fails to improve its Service Level to the minimum level required of this Schedule 9 within the timetable set out in the Action Plan in accordance with Clause 9.1 of this Schedule 10,

the Supplier shall be considered to have committed a material breach capable of remedy for the purpose of Clause 16.4 of Schedule 2 of the NHS Terms and Conditions.

- If the Supplier disputes the Authority Service Level as applicable to the Supplier, the Supplier shall provide evidence to the Authority that the Service Level is incorrect within seven (7) days of disputing such Service Level and the Parties shall meet to discuss any necessary amendment to the Monthly Service Level. If the Parties cannot agree the Monthly Service Level the matter shall be referred to the dispute resolution procedure set out in Clause 23 of Schedule 22 of the Framework Terms and Conditions.
- For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Schedule 10 shall limit in any way either Party's rights and remedies, including the right to claim damages and or termination rights which may arise, under this Framework Agreement or any Contract.

### 13 Management information

13.1.1 The supplier shall provide information to enabled performance and ongoing monitoring of the framework to the Authority as detailed in Schedule 8 of this Framework Agreement.









# Appendix A

# **Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods**

Where an Order Form is issued by the Authority that refers to the Framework Agreement, the Contract is made between the Authority and the Supplier on the date of that Order Form. The Contract is subject to the terms set out in the schedules of these Call-off Terms and Conditions listed below ("Schedules").

The Authority and the Supplier undertake to comply with the provisions of the Schedules in the performance of the Contract.

The Supplier shall supply to the Authority, and the Authority shall receive and pay for, the Goods on the terms of the Contract.

For the avoidance of doubt, any actions or work undertaken by the Supplier prior to the receipt of an Order Form covering the relevant Goods shall be undertaken at the Supplier's risk and expense and the Supplier shall only be entitled to invoice for Goods covered by a valid Order Form.

The Definitions in Schedule 4 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions apply to the use of all capitalised terms in the Contract.

### **Schedules**

Schedule 1 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions	Key Provisions
Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions	General Terms and Conditions
Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions	Information and Data Provisions
Schedule 4 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions	Definitions and Interpretations











# Schedule 1 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions

# **Key Provisions**

# 1 Application of the Key Provisions

- **1.1** The standard Key Provisions at Clauses 0 to 0 of this Schedule 1 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall apply to this Contract.
- **1.2** Extra Key Provisions shall only apply to this Contract where such provisions are set out as part of the Order Form.

#### 2 Term

- **2.1** This Contract commences on the Commencement Date.
- 2.2 The Term of this Contract shall be as set out in the Order Form.
- 2.3 The Term may be extended in accordance with Clause 15.2 of Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions provided that the duration of this Contract shall be no longer than any maximum duration applicable to the Contract if such maximum duration is set out in the Framework Agreement (including any options to extend).

# 3 Contract Managers

3.1 The Contract Managers at the commencement of this Contract shall be as set out in the Order Form or as otherwise agreed between the Parties in writing.

# 4 Names and addresses for notices

**4.1** Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, notices served under this Contract are to be delivered to such persons at such addresses as referred to in the Order Form.

# 5 Management levels for escalation and dispute resolution

**5.1** Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the management levels at which a Dispute will be dealt with are as follows:

Level	Authority representative	Supplier representative		
1	Contract Manager	Contract Manager		
2	Assistant Director or equivalent	Assistant Director or equivalent		
3	Director or equivalent	Director or equivalent		













### 6 Order of precedence

- **6.1** Subject always to Clause 1.10 of Schedule 4 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, should there be a conflict between any other parts of this Contract the order of priority for construction purposes shall be:
  - 6.1.1 the Order Form;
  - 6.1.2 the applicable provisions of the Framework Agreement other than the Specification and Tender Response Document;
  - 6.1.3 the provisions on the front page of these Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;
  - 6.1.4 Schedule 1 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions: Key Provisions;
  - 6.1.5 the Specification and Tender Response Document (but only in respect of the requirements);
  - 6.1.6 Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions : General Terms and Conditions;
  - 6.1.7 Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions: Information Governance Provisions;
  - 6.1.8 Schedule 4 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions: Definitions and Interpretations; and
  - 6.1.9 any other documentation forming part of the Contract in the date order in which such documentation was created with the more recent documentation taking precedence over older documentation to the extent only of any conflict.











# Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions

#### **General Terms and Conditions**

#### **Contents**

- 1. Supply of Goods
- 2. Delivery
- 3. Passing of risk and ownership
- 4. Inspection, rejection, return and recall
- 5. Staff and Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register
- 6. Business continuity
- 7. The Authority's obligations
- 8. Contract management
- 9. Price and payment
- 10. Warranties
- 11. Intellectual property
- 12. Indemnity
- 13. Limitation of liability
- 14. Insurance
- 15. Term and termination
- 16. Consequences of expiry or early termination of this Contract
- 17. Packaging, identification and end of use
- 18. Coding requirements
- 19. Sustainable development
- 20. Electronic product information
- 21. Change management
- 22. Dispute resolution
- 23. Force majeure
- 24. Records retention and right of audit
- 25. Conflicts of interest and the prevention of fraud
- 26. Equality and human rights
- 27. Notice
- 28. Assignment, novation and Sub-contracting
- 29. Prohibited Acts
- 30. General













# 1 Supply of Goods

- **1.1** The Supplier shall supply the Goods ordered by the Authority under this Contract:
  - 1.1.1 promptly and in any event within any time limits as may be set out in this Contract:
  - 1.1.2 in accordance with all other provisions of this Contract;
  - 1.1.3 using reasonable skill and care in their delivery;
  - 1.1.4 using reasonable skill and care in their installation, associated works and training to the extent that such installation, works or training is a requirement of this Contract:
  - 1.1.5 in accordance with the provisions of the Framework Agreement as applicable and/or the provisions of the Order Form:
  - 1.1.6 in accordance with the Law and with Guidance;
  - 1.1.7 in accordance with Good Industry Practice;
  - 1.1.8 in accordance with the Policies; and
  - 1.1.9 in a professional and courteous manner.

In complying with its obligations under this Contract, the Supplier shall, and shall procure that all Staff shall, act in accordance with the NHS values as set out in the NHS Constitution from time to time.

- 1.2 The Supplier shall comply fully with its obligations set out in the Framework Agreement, the Specification and Tender Response Document and/or the Order Form (to include, without limitation, the KPIs and all obligations in relation to the quality, performance characteristics, supply, delivery and installation and training in relation to use of the Goods).
- 1.3 Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the Goods shall be new, consistent with any sample, and shall comply with any applicable specification set out in this Contract (to include, without limitation, the requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document and the Supplier's response to such requirements) and any applicable manufacturers' specifications.
- **1.4** The Supplier shall ensure that all relevant consents, authorisations, licences and accreditations required to supply the Goods are in place prior to the delivery of any Goods to the Authority.
- 1.5 If there are any incidents that in any way relate to or involve the use of the Goods by the Authority, the Supplier shall cooperate fully with the Authority in relation to the Authority's application of the Policies on reporting and responding to all incidents, including serious incidents requiring investigation, and shall respond promptly to any reasonable and proportionate queries, questions and/or requests for information that the Authority may have in this context in relation to the Goods.













- 1.6 If there are any quality, performance and/or safety related reports, notices, alerts or other communications issued by the Supplier or any regulatory or other body in relation to the Goods, the Supplier shall promptly provide the Authority with a copy of any such reports, notices, alerts or other communications.
- 1.7 Upon receipt of any such reports, notices, alerts or other communications pursuant to Clause 1.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Authority shall be entitled to request further information from the Supplier and/or a meeting with the Supplier, and the Supplier shall cooperate fully with any such request.
- 1.8 The Authority may be notified of the suspension or the termination of the Supplier from the Framework Agreement for reasons relating to Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking (as defined in the Framework agreement) including under clauses 15.4, 15.8.4 15.10 or 15.11 of Schedule 2 of the Framework Agreement. In the event of such notification the Authority may:
  - 1.8.1 terminate this Contract and any order placed under an Oder Form without further liability for the Authority; and / or
  - 1.8.2 without any additional liability to itself, give notice to the Supplier suspending the operation of this Contract and any order placed on any Order Form. The Authority shall without penalty or costs to itself be permitted to decline to accept delivery of any Goods for the duration of any suspension or until the Authority determines to terminate this Contract and any order placed on any Order Form.
  - 1.8.3 Where the Authority exercises right to suspend the Contract and any order placed on any Order Form all timescales and dates for the delivery of Goods shall be extended as reasonably required by the Authority until:
    - (i) the Supplier elects, at its sole discretion, to end the suspension with or without the Supplier being restored to the Framework Agreement whereupon the parties shall in good faith rearrange for delivery of the Goods in accordance with the terms of this Contract and the Order Form; or
    - (ii) the Supplier elects to terminate the Contract and any order placed under an Oder Form without further liability for the Authority, such notice being with immediate effect under this clause.

#### 2 Delivery

- 2.1 Subject to clause 1.8. the Supplier shall deliver the Goods in accordance with any delivery timescales, delivery dates and delivery instructions (to include, without limitation, as to delivery location and delivery times) set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Order Form or as otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing.
- 2.2 Delivery shall be completed when the Goods have been unloaded at the location specified by the Authority and such delivery has been received by a duly authorised













agent, employee or location representative of the Authority. The Authority shall procure that such duly authorised agent, employee or location representative of the Authority is at the delivery location at the agreed delivery date and times in order to accept such delivery. Any arrangement by which the Goods are collected by the Authority in return for a discount on the Contract Price shall be agreed by the Parties in writing (where due to an emergency such arrangements cannot be committed to writing prior to collection, the Parties shall confirm such arrangements in writing as soon as possible following collection). Where the Authority collects the Goods, collection is deemed delivery for the purposes of the Contract.

- 2.3 The Supplier shall ensure that a delivery note shall accompany each delivery of the Goods. Such delivery note shall contain the information specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document or as otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing. Where such information requirements as to the content of delivery notes are not specified or separately agreed, such delivery notes shall, as a minimum, contain the Authority's order number, the name and address of the Authority, a description and quantity of the Goods, and shall show separately any extra agreed charges for containers and/or any other item not included in the Contract Price or, where no charge is made, whether the containers are required to be returned.
- 2.4 Part deliveries and/or deliveries outside of the agreed delivery times/dates may be refused unless the Authority has previously agreed in writing to accept such deliveries. Where delivery of the Goods is refused by the Authority in accordance with this Clause 2.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall be responsible for all risks, costs and expenses associated with the re-delivery of the Goods in accordance with the agreed delivery times/dates. Where the Authority accepts delivery more than five (5) days before the agreed delivery date, the Authority shall be entitled to charge the Supplier for the costs of insurance and storage of the Goods until the agreed date for delivery.
- Unless otherwise set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document or 2.5 agreed with the Authority in writing, the Supplier shall be responsible for carriage, insurance, transport, all relevant licences, all related costs, and all other costs associated with the delivery of the Goods to the delivery location and unloading of the Goods at that location. Without limitation to the foregoing provision of this Clause 2.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, unless otherwise stated in the Specification and Tender Response Document or agreed with the Authority in writing, the Supplier shall be responsible for obtaining all export and import licences for the Goods and shall be responsible for any delays to the delivery time due to such licences not being available when required. In the case of any Goods supplied from outside the United Kingdom, the Supplier shall ensure that accurate information is provided to the Authority as to the country of origin of the Goods and shall be liable to the Authority for any extra duties or taxes for which the Authority may be accountable should the country of origin prove to be different from that set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document.
- 2.6 All third party carriers engaged to deliver the Goods shall at no time be an agent of the Authority and accordingly the Supplier shall be liable to the Authority for the acts and omissions of all third party carriers engaged to deliver the Goods to the Authority.













### 3 Passing of risk and ownership

- **3.1** Risk in the Goods shall pass to the Authority when the Goods are delivered as specified in this Contract or, in the case of Goods which require installation by the Supplier, when that installation process is complete.
- **3.2** Ownership of the Goods shall pass to the Authority on the earlier of:
- 3.2.1 full payment for such Goods; or
- 3.2.2 where the goods are consumables or are non-recoverable (e.g., used in clinical procedures), at the point such Goods are taken into use. For the avoidance of doubt, where ownership passes in accordance with this Clause 3.2.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, then the full Contract Price for such Goods shall be recoverable by the Supplier from the Authority as a debt if there is non-payment of a valid undisputed invoice issued by the Supplier to the Authority in relation to such Goods.
- **3.3** All tools, equipment and materials of the Supplier required in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under this Contract shall be and remain at the sole risk of the Supplier, whether or not they are situated at a delivery location.

# 4 <u>Inspection, rejection, return and recall</u>

- 4.1 As relevant and proportionate to the Goods in question and subject to reasonable written notice, the Supplier shall permit any person authorised by the Authority, to inspect work being undertaken in relation to the Goods and/or the storage facilities used in the storage of the Goods at all reasonable times at the Supplier's premises or at the premises of any Sub-contractor or agent of the Supplier in order to confirm that the Goods are being manufactured and/or stored in accordance with Good Industry Practice and in compliance the requirements of this Contract and/or that stock holding and quality assurance processes are in accordance with the requirements of this Contract.
- 4.2 Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and subject to Clause 4.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Authority shall visually inspect the Goods within a reasonable time following delivery (or such other period as may be set out as part of the requirements in the Specification and Tender Response Document, if any) and may by written notice reject any Goods found to be damaged or otherwise not in accordance with the requirements of this Contract ("Rejected Goods"). The whole of any delivery may be rejected if a reasonable sample of the Goods taken indiscriminately from that delivery is found not to conform in all material respects to the requirements of the Contract.
- 4.3 Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, upon the rejection of any Goods in accordance with Clauses 4.2 and/or 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall at the Authority's written request:
  - 4.3.1 collect the Rejected Goods at the Supplier's risk and expense within ten (10)
    Business Days of issue of written notice from the Authority rejecting the
    Goods; and













4.3.2 without extra charge, promptly (and in any event within twenty (20) Business Days or such other time agreed by the Parties in writing acting reasonably) supply replacements for the Rejected Goods to the Authority subject to the Authority not cancelling its purchase obligations in accordance with Clause 4.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

If the Supplier requests and the Authority accepts that the Rejected Goods should be disposed of by the Authority rather than returned to the Supplier, the Authority reserves the right to charge the Supplier for the costs associated with the disposal of the Rejected Goods and the Supplier shall promptly pay any such costs.

- 4.4 Risk and title in respect of any Rejected Goods shall pass to the Supplier on the earlier of: (a) collection by the Supplier in accordance with Clause 4.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions; or (b) immediately following the expiry of ten (10) Business Days from the Authority issuing written notification rejecting the Goods. If Rejected Goods are not collected within ten (10) Business Days of the Authority issuing written notification rejecting the Goods, the Authority may return the Rejected Goods at the Supplier's risk and expense and charge the Supplier for the cost of storage from the expiry of ten (10) Business Days from the date of notification of rejection.
- 4.5 Where the Authority rejects any Goods in accordance with Clauses 4.2 and/or 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and the Authority no longer requires replacement Goods, the Authority may by written notice cancel its purchase obligations in relation to such quantity of Rejected Goods. Should the Authority have paid for such Rejected Goods the Supplier shall refund such payment to the Authority within thirty (30) days of the Authority cancelling such purchase obligations and informing the Supplier that the Authority does not require replacements for such Rejected Goods.
- 4.6 Without prejudice to any other provisions of this Contract or any other warranties or guarantees applicable to the Goods supplied and subject to Clause 4.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, if at any time following the date of the delivery of any Goods, all or any part of such Goods are found to be defective or otherwise not in accordance with the requirements of this Contract ("Defective Goods"), the Supplier shall, at the Authority's discretion:
  - 4.6.1 upon written request and without charge, promptly (and in any event within twenty (20) Business Days or such other time agreed by the Parties in writing acting reasonably) remedy the deficiency by repairing such Defective Goods; or
  - 4.6.2 upon written notice of rejection from the Authority, treat such Defective Goods as Rejected Goods in accordance with Clauses 4.2 to 4.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- 4.7 The Supplier shall be relieved of its liabilities under Clauses 4.2 to 4.5 (inclusive) and/or Clause 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions to the extent only that the Goods are damaged, there are defects in the Goods and/or the Goods fail to comply with the requirements of this Contract due, in each case, to any acts or omissions of the Authority.
- **4.8** The Authority's rights and remedies under Clause 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Calloff Terms and Conditions shall cease within a reasonable period of time from the date on which the Authority discovers or might reasonably be expected to discover that the













Goods are Defective Goods or within such other period as may be set out as part of the requirements in the Specification and Tender Response Document, if any. For the avoidance of doubt, goods not used before their expiry date shall in no event be considered Defective Goods following the date of expiry provided that at the point such Goods were delivered to the Authority they met any shelf life requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document.

- **4.9** Where the Supplier is required by Law, Guidance, and/or Good Industry Practice to order a product recall ("**Requirement to Recall**") in respect of the Goods, the Supplier shall:
  - 4.9.1 promptly (taking into consideration the potential impact of the continued use of the Goods on patients, service users and the Authority as well as compliance by the Supplier with any regulatory requirements) notify the Authority in writing of the recall together with the circumstances giving rise to the recall;
  - 4.9.2 from the date of the Requirement to Recall treat the Goods the subject of such recall as Defective Goods in accordance with Clause 4.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
  - 4.9.3 consult with the Authority as to the most efficient method of executing the recall of the Goods and use its reasonable endeavors to minimise the impact on the Authority of the recall; and
  - 4.9.4 indemnify and keep the Authority indemnified against, any loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings suffered or incurred by the Authority as a result of such Requirement to Recall.

#### 5 Staff and Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register

- 5.1 The Supplier will employ sufficient Staff to ensure that it complies with its obligations under this Contract. This will include, but not be limited to, the Supplier providing a sufficient reserve of trained and competent Staff during Staff holidays or absence.
- **5.2** The Supplier shall ensure that all Staff are aware of, and at all times comply with, the Policies.
- 5.3 The Supplier shall employ only such persons as are careful, skilled and experienced in the duties required of them, and will ensure that every such person is properly and sufficiently trained and instructed and shall maintain throughout the Term all appropriate licences and registrations with any relevant bodies (at the Supplier's expense) and has the qualifications to carry out their duties.
- **5.4** The Supplier shall comply with the Authority's staff vetting procedures and other staff protocols, as may be relevant to this Contract and which are notified to the Supplier by the Authority in writing.
- 5.5 Unless otherwise confirmed by the Authority in writing, the Supplier shall ensure full compliance (to include with any implementation timelines) with any Guidance issued by the Department of Health and Social Care and/or any requirements and/or Policies issued by the Authority (to include as may be set out as part of any procurement documents leading to the award of this Contract) in relation to the adoption of, and compliance with, any scheme or schemes to verify the credentials of Supplier













representatives that visit NHS premises (to include use of the Lifescience Industry Accredited Credentialing Register). Once compliance with any notified implementation timelines has been achieved by the Supplier, the Supplier shall, during the Term, maintain the required level of compliance in accordance with any such Guidance, requirements and Polices.

# 6 Business continuity

- 6.1 Throughout the Term, the Supplier will ensure its Business Continuity Plan provides for continuity during a Business Continuity Event. The Supplier confirms and agrees such Business Continuity Plan details and will continue to detail robust arrangements that are reasonable and proportionate to:
  - 6.1.1 the criticality of this Contract to the Authority; and
  - 6.1.2 the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations,

regarding continuity of the supply of Goods during and following a Business Continuity Event.

- 6.2 The Supplier shall test its Business Continuity Plan at reasonable intervals, and in any event no less than once every twelve (12) months or such other period as may be agreed between the Parties taking into account the criticality of this Contract to the Authority and the size and scope of the Supplier's business operations. The Supplier shall promptly provide to the Authority, at the Authority's written request, copies of its Business Continuity Plan, reasonable and proportionate documentary evidence that the Supplier tests its Business Continuity Plan in accordance with the requirements of this Clause 6.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and reasonable and proportionate information regarding the outcome of such tests. The Supplier shall provide to the Authority a copy of any updated or revised Business Continuity Plan within fourteen (14) Business Days of any material update or revision to the Business Continuity Plan.
- **6.3** Should a Business Continuity Event occur at any time, the Supplier shall implement and comply with its Business Continuity Plan and provide regular written reports to the Authority on such implementation.
- 6.4 During and following a Business Continuity Event, the Supplier shall use reasonable endeavours to continue to supply the Goods in accordance with this Contract.

# 7 The Authority's obligations

- **7.1** Subject to the Supplier supplying the Goods in accordance with this Contract, the Authority will pay the Supplier for the Goods in accordance with Clause 9 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- **7.2** The Authority shall, as appropriate, provide copies of or give the Supplier access to such of the Policies that are relevant to the supply and delivery of the Goods.
- **7.3** The Authority shall comply with the Authority's Obligations.
- 7.4 The Authority shall provide the Supplier with any reasonable and proportionate cooperation necessary to enable the Supplier to comply with its obligations under this Contract. The Supplier shall at all times provide reasonable advance written notification to Authority of any such cooperation necessary in circumstances where













such cooperation will require the Authority to plan for and/or allocate specific resources in order to provide such cooperation.

# 8 Contract management

- 8.1 Each Party shall appoint and retain a Contract Manager who shall be the primary point of contact for the other Party in relation to matters arising from this Contract. Should the Contract Manager be replaced, the Party replacing the Contract Manager shall promptly inform the other Party in writing of the name and contact details for the new Contract Manager. Any Contract Manager appointed shall be of sufficient seniority and experience to be able to make decisions on the day to day operation of the Contract. The Supplier confirms and agrees that it will be expected to work closely and cooperate fully with the Authority's Contract Manager.
- 8.2 Each Party shall ensure that its representatives (to include, without limitation, its Contract Manager) shall attend review meetings on a regular basis to review the performance of the Supplier under this Contract and to discuss matters arising generally under this Contract. Each Party shall ensure that those attending such meetings have the authority to make decisions regarding the day to day operation of the Contract. Review meetings shall take place at the frequency specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document. Should the Specification and Tender Response Document not state the frequency, then the first such meeting shall take place on a date to be agreed on or around the end of the first month after the Commencement Date. Subsequent meetings shall take place at monthly intervals or as may otherwise be agreed in writing between the Parties.
- **8.3** Two weeks prior to each review meeting (or at such time and frequency as may be specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document) the Supplier shall provide a written contract management report to the Authority regarding the supply of the Goods and the operation of this Contract. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, such contract management report shall contain:
  - 8.3.1 details of the performance of the Supplier when assessed in accordance with the KPIs since the last such performance report;
  - 8.3.2 details of any complaints by the Authority in relation to the supply of Goods, their nature and the way in which the Supplier has responded to such complaints since the last review meeting written report;
  - 8.3.3 the information specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document;
  - 8.3.4 a status report in relation to the implementation of any current Remedial Proposals by either Party; and
  - 8.3.5 such other information as reasonably required by the Authority.
- 8.4 Unless specified otherwise in the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Authority shall take minutes of each review meeting and shall circulate draft minutes to the Supplier within a reasonable time following such review meeting. The Supplier shall inform the Authority in writing of any suggested amendments to the minutes within five (5) Business Days of receipt of the draft minutes. If the Supplier does not respond to the Authority within such five (5) Business Days, the minutes will be deemed to be approved. Where there are any differences in interpretation of the minutes, the Parties will use their reasonable endeavors to reach agreement. If













agreement cannot be reached the matter shall be referred to, and resolved in accordance with, the dispute resolution process set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions and Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

- 8.5 The Supplier shall provide such management information as the Authority may request from time to time within seven (7) Business Days of the date of the request. The Supplier shall supply the management information to the Authority in such form as may be specified by the Authority and, where requested to do so, the Supplier shall also provide such management information to another Contracting Authority, whose role it is to: (a) analyse such management information in accordance with UK government policy (to include, without limitation, for the purposes of analysing public sector expenditure and planning future procurement activities); or (b) manage the Framework Agreement with the Supplier ("Third Party Body"). The Supplier confirms and agrees that the Authority may itself provide the Third Party Body with management information relating to the Goods purchased, any payments made under this Contract and any other information relevant to the operation of this Contract.
- **8.6** Upon receipt of management information supplied by the Supplier to the Authority and/or the Third Party Body, or by the Authority to the Third Party Body, the Parties hereby consent to the Third Party Body and the Authority:
  - 8.6.1 storing and analysing the management information and producing statistics; and
  - 8.6.2 sharing the management information, or any statistics produced using the management information with any other Contracting Authority.
- 8.7 If the Third Party Body and/or the Authority shares the management information or any other information provided under Clause 8.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, any Contracting Authority receiving the management information shall, where such management information is subject to obligations of confidence under this Contract and such management information is provided direct by the Authority to such Contracting Authority, be informed of the confidential nature of that information by the Authority and shall be requested by the Authority not to disclose it to anybody that is not a Contracting Authority (unless required to do so by Law).
- **8.8** The Authority may make changes to the type of management information which the Supplier is required to supply and shall give the Supplier at least one (1) month's written notice of any changes.

#### 9 Price and payment

- **9.1** The Contract Price shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Framework Agreement, as confirmed in the Order Form.
- **9.2** Unless otherwise stated in the Framework Agreement and/or the Order Form, the Contract Price:
  - 9.2.1 shall remain fixed during the Term; and
  - 9.2.2 is the entire price payable by the Authority to the Supplier in respect of the provision of the Goods and includes, without limitation:













- (i) packaging, packing materials, addressing, labelling, loading, delivery to and unloading at the delivery location, the cost of any import or export licences, all appropriate taxes (excluding VAT), duties and tariffs, any expenses arising from import and export administration, any installation costs and associated works, the costs of all associated documentation and information supplied or made accessible to the Authority in any media, and any training in relation to the use, storage, handling or operation of the Goods;
- (ii) any royalties, licence fees or similar expenses in respect of the making, use or exercise by the Supplier of any Intellectual Property Rights for the purposes of performing this Contract, and any licence rights granted to the Authority in accordance with Clause 11 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions; and
- (iii) costs and expenses in relation to supplies and materials used by the Supplier or any third party in the manufacture of the Goods, and any other costs incurred by the Supplier in association with the manufacture, supply or installation of the Goods.
- **9.3** Unless stated otherwise in the Framework Agreement and/or the Order Form:
  - 9.3.1 where the Framework Agreement and/or the Order Form confirms that the payment profile for this Contract is monthly in arrears, the Supplier shall invoice the Authority, within fourteen (14) days of the end of each calendar month, the Contract Price in respect of the Goods supplied in compliance with this Contract in the preceding calendar month; or
  - 9.3.2 where Clause 9.3.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions does not apply, the Supplier shall invoice the Authority for Goods at any time following completion of the supply of the Goods in compliance with this Contract.

Each invoice shall contain such information and be addressed to such individual as the Authority may inform the Supplier from time to time.

- **9.4** The Contract Price is exclusive of VAT, which, if properly chargeable, the Authority shall pay at the prevailing rate subject to receipt from the Supplier of a valid and accurate VAT invoice. Such VAT invoices shall show the VAT calculations as a separate line item.
- 9.5 Where the Contract Price is or may become subject to any pricing requirements of any voluntary and/or statutory pricing regulation schemes, the Parties shall comply with such pricing requirements as required by Law from time to time and specifically as required by the statutory pricing regulation scheme (and any future regulation) or to the extent applicable to the Supplier from time to time as an industry member of a voluntary scheme, including any reductions in price by reason of the application of such schemes.
- 9.6 The Authority shall verify and pay each valid and undisputed invoice received in accordance with Clause 9.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call off Terms and Conditions within thirty (30) days of receipt of such invoice at the latest. However, the Authority shall use its reasonable endeavours to pay such undisputed invoices sooner in accordance with any applicable government prompt payment targets. If there is undue delay in verifying the invoice in accordance with this Clause 9.6 of this Schedule 2, the invoice shall be regarded as valid and undisputed for the purposes this Clause 9.6 after a reasonable time has passed.













- 9.7 Where the Authority raises a query with respect to an invoice the Parties shall liaise with each other and agree a resolution to such query within thirty (30) days of the query being raised. If the Parties are unable to agree a resolution within thirty (30) days the query shall be referred to dispute resolution in accordance with Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 these Call off Terms and Conditions. For the avoidance of doubt, the Authority shall not be in breach of any of any of its payment obligations under this Contract in relation to any queried or disputed invoice sums unless the process referred to in this Clause 9.7 of this Schedule 2 has been followed and it has been determined that the queried or disputed invoice amount is properly due to the Supplier and the Authority has then failed to pay such sum within a reasonable period following such determination.
- **9.8** The Authority reserves the right to set-off:
  - 9.8.1 any monies due to the Supplier from the Authority as against any monies due to the Authority from the Supplier under this Contract; and
  - 9.8.2 any monies due to the Authority from the Supplier as against any monies due to the Supplier from the Authority under this Contract.
- **9.9** Where the Authority is entitled to receive any sums (including, without limitation, any costs, charges or expenses) from the Supplier under this Contract, the Authority may invoice the Supplier for such sums. Such invoices shall be paid by the Supplier within 30 days of the date of such invoice.
- 9.10 If a Party fails to pay any undisputed sum properly due to the other Party under this Contract, the Party due such sum shall have the right to charge interest on the overdue amount at the applicable rate under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, accruing on a daily basis from the due date up to the date of actual payment, whether before or after judgment.

#### 10 Warranties

- **10.1** The Supplier warrants and undertakes that:
  - 10.1.1 it shall comply with the Framework Agreement;
  - 10.1.2 the Goods shall be suitable for the purposes and/or treatments as referred to in the Specification and Tender Response Document, be of satisfactory quality, fit for their intended purpose and shall comply with the standards and requirements set out in this Contract;
  - 10.1.3 unless otherwise confirmed by the Authority in writing (to include, without limitation, as part of the Specification and Tender Response Document), it will ensure that the Goods comply with requirements five (5) to eight (8), as set out in Annex 1 of the Cabinet Office Procurement Policy Note Implementing Article 6 of the Energy Efficiency Directive (Action Note 07/14 3rd June 2014), to the extent such requirements apply to the relevant Goods;
  - 10.1.4 it shall ensure that prior to actual delivery to the Authority the Goods are manufactured, stored and/or distributed using reasonable skill and care and in accordance with Good Industry Practice;
  - 10.1.5 without prejudice to the generality of the warranty at 10.1.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, it shall ensure that, the Goods are













manufactured, stored and/or distributed in accordance with good manufacturing practice and/or good warehousing practice and/or good distribution practice, as may be defined under any Law, Guidance and/or Good Industry Practice relevant to the Goods, and in accordance with any specific instructions of the manufacturer of the Goods;

- 10.1.6 it shall ensure that all facilities used in the manufacture, storage and distribution of the Goods are kept in a state and condition necessary to enable the Supplier to comply with its obligations in accordance with this Contract:
- 10.1.7 it has, or the manufacturer of the Goods has, manufacturing and warehousing capacity sufficient to comply with its obligations under this Contract:
- 10.1.8 it will ensure sufficient stock levels to comply with its obligations under this Contract;
- 10.1.9 it shall ensure that the transport and delivery of the Goods mean that they are delivered in good and useable condition;
- 10.1.10 where the Goods are required to be stored at a certain temperature, it shall provide, or shall procure the provision of, complete and accurate temperature records for each delivery of the Goods during the period of transport and/or storage of the Goods from the point of manufacture to the point of delivery to the Authority;
- 10.1.11 where there is any instruction information, including without limitation patient information leaflets, that accompany the Goods, it shall provide a sufficient number of copies to the Authority and provide updated copies should the instruction information change at any time during the Term:
- 10.1.12 all Goods delivered to the Authority shall comply with any shelf life requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document;
- 10.1.13 it has and shall maintain a properly documented system of quality controls and processes covering all aspects of its obligations under this Contract and/or under Law and/or Guidance and shall at all times comply with such quality controls and processes;
- 10.1.14 it shall not make any significant changes to its system of quality controls and processes in relation to the Goods without notifying the Authority in writing at least twenty one (21) days in advance of such change (such notice to include the details of the consequences which follow such change being implemented);
- 10.1.15 it shall not make any significant changes to the Goods without the prior written consent of the Authority, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed;
- 10.1.16 any equipment it uses in the manufacture, delivery, or installation of the Goods shall comply with all relevant Law and Guidance, be fit for its intended purpose and maintained fully in accordance with the manufacturer's specification;













- 10.1.17 where any act of the Supplier requires the notification to and/or approval by any regulatory or other competent body in accordance with any Law and Guidance, the Supplier shall comply fully with such notification and/or approval requirements;
- 10.1.18 it has and shall as relevant maintain all rights, consents, authorisations, licences, and accreditations required to supply the Goods;
- 10.1.19 receipt of the Goods by or on behalf of the Authority and use of the Goods or of any other item or information supplied, or made available, to the Authority will not infringe any third party rights, to include without limitation any Intellectual Property Rights;
- 10.1.20 it will comply with all Law, Guidance, Policies and the Supplier Code of Conduct in so far as is relevant to the supply of the Goods;
- 10.1.21 it will promptly notify the Authority of any health and safety hazard which has arisen, or the Supplier is aware may arise, in connection with the Goods and take such steps as are reasonably necessary to ensure the health and safety of persons likely to be affected by such hazards;
- 10.1.22 it shall: (i) comply with all relevant Law and Guidance and shall use Good Industry Practice to ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains including comply with all Audit requirements under the Framework Agreement; and (ii) notify the Authority immediately if it becomes aware of any actual or suspected incidents of slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains;
- 10.1.23 it shall at all times conduct its business in a manner that is consistent with any anti-slavery Policy of the Authority and shall provide to the Authority any reports or other information that the Authority may request as evidence of the Supplier's compliance with this Clause 10.1.23 and/or as may be requested or otherwise required by the Authority in accordance with its antislavery Policy;
- 10.1.24 it will fully and promptly respond to all requests for information and/or requests for answers to questions regarding this Contract, the Goods, any complaints and any Disputes at the frequency, in the timeframes and in the format as requested by the Authority from time to time (acting reasonably);
- 10.1.25 all information included within the Supplier's responses to any documents issued by the Authority as part of the procurement relating to the award of this Contract (to include, without limitation, as referred to in the Specification and Tender Response Document and/or Order Form) and all accompanying materials is accurate;
- 10.1.26 it has the right and authority to enter into this Contract and that it has the capability and capacity to fulfil its obligations under this Contract;
- 10.1.27 it is a properly constituted entity and it is fully empowered by the terms of its constitutional documents to enter into and to carry out its obligations under this Contract and the documents referred to in this Contract:
- 10.1.28 all necessary actions to authorise the execution of and performance of its obligations under this Contract have been taken before such execution;













- 10.1.29 there are no pending or threatened actions or proceedings before any court or administrative agency which would materially adversely affect the financial condition, business or operations of the Supplier;
- 10.1.30 there are no material agreements existing to which the Supplier is a party which prevent the Supplier from entering into or complying with this Contract;
- 10.1.31 it has and will continue to have the capacity, funding and cash flow to meet all its obligations under this Contract; and
- 10.1.32 it has satisfied itself as to the nature and extent of the risks assumed by it under this Contract and has gathered all information necessary to perform its obligations under this Contract and all other obligations assumed by it.
- 10.2 Where the sale, manufacture, assembly, importation, storage, distribution, supply, delivery, or installation of the Goods under this Contract relates to medical devices and/or medicinal products (both as defined under any relevant Law and Guidance), the Supplier warrants and undertakes that it will comply with any such Law and Guidance relating to such activities in relation to such medical devices and/or medicinal products. In particular, but without limitation, the Supplier warrants that:
  - at the point such Goods are supplied to the Authority, all such Goods which are medical devices shall have valid CE marking as required by Law and Guidance and that all relevant marking, authorisation, registration, approval and documentation requirements as required under Law and Guidance relating to the sale, manufacture, assembly, importation, storage, distribution, supply, delivery, or installation of such Goods shall have been complied with. Without limitation to the foregoing provisions of this Clause 10.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall, upon written request from the Authority, make available to the Authority evidence of the grant of such valid CE marking, and evidence of any other authorisations, registrations, approvals or documentation required;
  - at the point such Goods are supplied to the Authority, all such Goods which are medicinal products shall have a valid marketing authorisation as required by Law and Guidance in order to supply the Goods to the Authority and that all relevant authorisation, labelling, registration, approval and documentation requirements as required under Law and Guidance relating to the sale, manufacture, assembly, importation, storage, distribution, supply or delivery of such Goods shall have been complied with. Without limitation to the foregoing provisions of this Clause 10.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall, upon written request from the Authority, make available to the Authority evidence of the grant of any required valid marketing authorisation, and evidence of any other authorisations, labelling, registrations, approvals or documentation required; and
  - it shall maintain, and no later than any due date when it would otherwise expire, obtain a renewal of, any authorisation, registration or approval (including without limitation CE marking and/or marketing authorisation) required in relation to the Goods in accordance with Law and Guidance until such time as the Goods expire or the Authority notifies the Supplier in writing that it has used or disposed of all units of the Goods supplied under this Contract.













- 10.3 If the Supplier is in breach of Clause 10.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, then, without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Authority, the Authority shall be entitled to reject and/or return the Goods and the Supplier shall, subject to Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, indemnify and keep the Authority indemnified against, any loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings suffered or incurred by the Authority as a result of such breach.
- **10.4** The Supplier agrees to use reasonable endeavours to assign to the Authority upon request the benefit of any warranty, guarantee or similar right which it has against any third party manufacturer or supplier of the Goods in full or part.
- **10.5** The Supplier warrants that all information, data and other records and documents required by the Authority as set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document shall be submitted to the Authority in the format and in accordance with any timescales set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document.
- **10.6** The Supplier warrants and undertakes to the Authority that it shall comply with any eProcurement Guidance as it may apply to the Supplier and shall carry out all reasonable acts required of the Supplier to enable the Authority to comply with such eProcurement Guidance.
- 10.7 The Supplier warrants and undertakes to the Authority that, as at the Commencement Date, it has notified the Authority in writing of any Occasions of Tax Non-Compliance or any litigation that it is involved in that is in connection with any Occasions of Tax Non-Compliance. If, at any point during the Term, an Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance occurs, the Supplier shall:
  - 10.7.1 notify the Authority in writing of such fact within five (5) Business Days of its occurrence; and
  - 10.7.2 promptly provide to the Authority:
- (i) details of the steps which the Supplier is taking to address the Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance and to prevent the same from recurring, together with any mitigating factors that it considers relevant; and
- (ii) such other information in relation to the Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance as the Authority may reasonably require.
- **10.8** The Supplier further warrants and undertakes to the Authority that it will inform the Authority in writing immediately upon becoming aware that any of the warranties set out in Clause 10 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions have been breached or there is a risk that any warranties may be breached.
- **10.9** Any warranties provided under this Contract are both independent and cumulative and may be enforced independently or collectively at the sole discretion of the enforcing Party.

#### 11 Intellectual property

11.1 Unless specified otherwise in the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Supplier hereby grants to the Authority, for the life of the use of Goods by the Authority, an irrevocable, royalty-free, non-exclusive licence of any Intellectual Property Rights required for the purposes of receiving and using, and to the extent













necessary to receive and use, the Goods (to include any associated technical or other documentation and information supplied or made accessible to the Authority in any media) in accordance with this Contract.

#### 12 Indemnity

- 12.1 The Supplier shall be liable to the Authority for, and shall indemnify and keep the Authority indemnified against, any loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings in respect of:
  - 12.1.1 any injury or allegation of injury to any person, including injury resulting in death:
  - 12.1.2 any loss of or damage to property (whether real or personal); and/or
  - 12.1.3 any breach of Clause 10.1.19 and/or Clause 11 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions:

that arise or result from the Supplier's negligent acts or omissions or breach of contract in connection with the performance of this Contract including the supply of the Goods, except to the extent that such loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings have been caused by any act or omission by, or on behalf of, or in accordance with the instructions of, the Authority.

- 12.2 Liability under Clauses 12.1.1 and 12.1.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and Clause 2.5 of Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be unlimited. Liability under Clauses 4.9.4, 10.3 and 12.1.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be subject to the limitation of liability set out in Clause 13 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- 12.3 In relation to all third party claims against the Authority, which are the subject of any indemnity given by the Supplier under this Contract, the Authority shall use its reasonable endeavours, upon a written request from the Supplier, to transfer the conduct of such claims to the Supplier unless restricted from doing so. Such restrictions may include, without limitation, any restrictions:
  - relating to any legal, regulatory, governance, information governance, or 12.3.1 confidentiality obligations on the Authority; and/or
  - relating to the Authority's membership of any indemnity and/or risk pooling 12.3.2 arrangements.

Such transfer shall be subject to the Parties agreeing appropriate terms for such conduct of the third party claim by the Supplier (to include, without limitation, the right of the Authority to be informed and consulted on the ongoing conduct of the claim following such transfer and any reasonable cooperation required by the Supplier from the Authority).

#### 13 **Limitation of liability**

- **13.1** Nothing in this Contract shall exclude or restrict the liability of either Party:
  - 13.1.1 for death or personal injury resulting from its negligence:













- 13.1.2 for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation; or
- 13.1.3 in any other circumstances where liability may not be limited or excluded under any applicable law.
- 13.2 Subject to Clauses 12.2, 13.1, 13.3 and 13.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the total liability of each Party to the other under or in connection with this Contract whether arising in contract, tort, negligence, breach of statutory duty or otherwise shall be limited in aggregate to the greater of: (a) five million GBP (£5,000,000); or (b) one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) of the total Contract Price paid or payable by the Authority to the Supplier for the Goods.
- 13.3 There shall be no right to claim losses, damages and/or other costs and expenses under or in connection with this Contract whether arising in contract (to include, without limitation, under any relevant indemnity), tort, negligence, breach of statutory duty or otherwise to the extent that any losses, damages and/or other costs and expenses claimed are in respect of loss of production, loss of business opportunity or are in respect of indirect loss of any nature suffered or alleged. For the avoidance of doubt, without limitation, the Parties agree that for the purposes of this Contract the following costs, expenses and/or loss of income shall be direct recoverable losses (to include under any relevant indemnity) provided such costs, expenses and/or loss of income are properly evidenced by the claiming Party:
  - 13.3.1 extra costs incurred purchasing replacement or alternative goods;
  - 13.3.2 costs incurred in relation to any product recall;
  - 13.3.3 costs associated with advising, screening, testing, treating, retreating or otherwise providing healthcare to patients;
  - 13.3.4 the costs of extra management time; and/or
  - 13.3.5 loss of income due to an inability to provide health care services,

in each case to the extent to which such costs, expenses and/or loss of income arise or result from the other Party's breach of contract, negligent act or omission, breach of statutory duty, and/or other liability under or in connection with this Contract.

- **13.4** Each Party shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any loss for which that Party is entitled to bring a claim against the other pursuant to this Contract.
- **13.5** If the total Contract Price paid or payable by the Authority to the Supplier over the Term:
  - 13.5.1 is less than or equal to one million pounds (£1,000,000), then the figure of five million pounds (£5,000,000) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be replaced with one million pounds (£1,000,000);
  - is less than or equal to three million pounds (£3,000,000) but greater than one million pounds (£1,000,000), then the figure of five million pounds (£5,000,000) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be replaced with three million pounds (£3,000,000);













- is equal to, exceeds or will exceed ten million pounds (£10,000,000), but is less than fifty million pounds (£50,000,000), then the figure of five million pounds (£5,000,000) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be replaced with ten million pounds (£10,000,000) and the figure of one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be deemed to have been deleted and replaced with one hundred and fifteen percent (115%); and
- is equal to, exceeds or will exceed fifty million pounds (£50,000,000), then the figure of five million pounds (£5,000,000) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be replaced with fifty million pounds (£50,000,000) and the figure of one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) at Clause 13.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be deemed to have been deleted and replaced with one hundred and five percent (105%).
- **13.6** Clause 13 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall survive the expiry of or earlier termination of this Contract for any reason.

#### 14 Insurance

- 14.1 Subject to Clauses 14.2 and 14.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and unless otherwise confirmed in writing by the Authority, as a minimum level of protection, the Supplier shall put in place and/or maintain in force at its own cost with a reputable commercial insurer, insurance arrangements in respect of employer's liability, public liability and product liability in accordance with Good Industry Practice with the minimum cover per claim of the greater of five million pounds (£5,000,000) or any sum as required by Law unless otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing. These requirements shall not apply to the extent that the Supplier is a member and maintains membership of each of the indemnity schemes run by the NHS Litigation Authority.
- **14.2** Without limitation to any insurance arrangements as required by Law, the Supplier shall put in place and/or maintain the different types and/or levels of indemnity arrangements specified in the Framework Agreement, if any.
- 14.3 Provided that the Supplier maintains all indemnity arrangements required by Law, the Supplier may self insure in order to meet other relevant requirements referred to at Clauses 14.1 and 14.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions on condition that such self insurance arrangements offer the appropriate levels of protection and are approved by the Authority in writing prior to the Commencement Date.
- 14.4 The amount of any indemnity cover and/or self insurance arrangements shall not relieve the Supplier of any liabilities under this Contract. It shall be the responsibility of the Supplier to determine the amount of indemnity and/or self insurance cover that will be adequate to enable it to satisfy its potential liabilities under this Contract. Accordingly, the Supplier shall be liable to make good any deficiency if the proceeds of any indemnity cover and/or self insurance arrangement is insufficient to cover the settlement of any claim.
- **14.5** The Supplier warrants that it shall not take any action or fail to take any reasonable action or (in so far as it is reasonable and within its power) permit or allow others to take or fail to take any action, as a result of which its insurance cover may be rendered













void, voidable, unenforceable, or be suspended or impaired in whole or in part, or which may otherwise render any sum paid out under such insurances repayable in whole or in part.

- 14.6 The Supplier shall from time to time and in any event within five (5) Business Days of written demand provide documentary evidence to the Authority that insurance arrangements taken out by the Supplier pursuant to Clause 14 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and/or the provisions of the Framework Agreement are fully maintained and that any premiums on them and/or contributions in respect of them (if any) are fully paid.
- 14.7 Upon the expiry or earlier termination of this Contract, the Supplier shall ensure that any ongoing liability it has or may have arising out of this Contract shall continue to be the subject of appropriate indemnity arrangements for the period of twenty one (21) years from termination or expiry of this Contract or until such earlier date as that liability may reasonably be considered to have ceased to exist.

### 15 Term and termination

**15.1** This Contract shall commence on the Commencement Date and unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Contract or the general law, shall continue until the end of the Term.

# **15.2** The Authority:

- 15.2.1 subject to Clause 15.2.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, shall be entitled to extend the Term on one or more occasions by giving the Supplier written notice no less than three (3) months prior to the date on which this Contract would otherwise have expired, provided that the duration of this Contract shall be no longer than the total term referred to in the Key Provisions; or
- 15.2.2 where the Term or any extension of the Term expires at a date the same as or after expiry of the Framework Agreement (including any extensions of the Framework Agreement in accordance with its terms), shall only be entitled to extend the Term with the prior written agreement of the Supplier, such agreement not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
- 15.3 In the case of a breach of any of the terms of this Contract by either Party that is capable of remedy (including, without limitation any breach of any KPI and, subject to Clause 9.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-Off Terms and Conditions, any breach of any payment obligations under this Contract), the non-breaching Party may, without prejudice to its other rights and remedies under this Contract, issue a Breach Notice and shall allow the Party in breach the opportunity to remedy such breach in the first instance via a remedial proposal put forward by the Party in breach ("Remedial Proposal") before exercising any right to terminate this Contract in accordance with Clause 15.4(ii) of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions. Such Remedial Proposal must be agreed with the non-breaching Party (such agreement not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) and must be implemented by the Party in breach in accordance with the timescales referred to in the agreed Remedial Proposal. Once agreed, any changes to a Remedial Proposal must be approved by the Parties in writing. Any failure by the Party in breach to:
  - 15.3.1 put forward and agree a Remedial Proposal with the non-breaching Party in relation to the relevant default or breach within a period of ten (10) Business













Days (or such other period as the non-breaching Party may agree in writing) from written notification of the relevant default or breach from the non-breaching Party;

- 15.3.2 comply with such Remedial Proposal (including, without limitation, as to its timescales for implementation, which shall be thirty (30) days unless otherwise agreed between the Parties); and/or
- 15.3.3 remedy the default or breach notwithstanding the implementation of such Remedial Proposal in accordance with the agreed timescales for implementation,
- shall be deemed, for the purposes of Clause 15.4(ii) of this Schedule 2 of these Calloff Terms and Conditions, a material breach of this Contract by the Party in breach not remedied in accordance with an agreed Remedial Proposal.
- **15.4** Either Party may terminate this Contract by issuing a Termination Notice to the other Party if such other Party commits a material breach of any of the terms of this Contract which is:
- (i) not capable of remedy; or
- (ii) in the case of a breach capable of remedy, which is not remedied in accordance with a Remedial Proposal.
- **15.5** The Authority may terminate this Contract by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier if:
  - 15.5.1 the Supplier, or any third party guaranteeing the obligations of the Supplier under this Contract, ceases or threatens to cease carrying on its business: suspends making payments on any of its debts or announces an intention to do so; is, or is deemed for the purposes of any Law to be, unable to pay its debts as they fall due or insolvent; enters into or proposes any composition. assignment or arrangement with its creditors generally; takes any step or suffers any step to be taken in relation to its winding-up, dissolution, administration (whether out of court or otherwise) or reorganisation (by way of voluntary arrangement, scheme of arrangement or otherwise) otherwise than as part of, and exclusively for the purpose of, a bona fide reconstruction or amalgamation; has a liquidator, trustee in bankruptcy, judicial custodian, compulsory manager, receiver, administrative receiver, administrator or similar officer appointed (in each case, whether out of court or otherwise) in respect of it or any of its assets; has any security over any of its assets enforced; or any analogous procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction;
  - the Supplier undergoes a change of control within the meaning of sections 450 and 451 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 (other than for an intra-group change of control) without the prior written consent of the Authority and the Authority shall be entitled to withhold such consent if, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, the proposed change of control will have a material impact on the performance of this Contract or the reputation of the Authority;
  - 15.5.3 the Supplier purports to assign, Sub-contract, novate, create a trust in or otherwise transfer or dispose of this Contract in breach of Clause 28.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions:













- 15.5.4 pursuant to and in accordance with any termination rights set out in any Key Provisions and Clauses 15.6, 23.8; 25.2; 25.4 and 29.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions; or
- 15.5.5 the warranty given by the Supplier pursuant to Clause 10.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions is materially untrue, the Supplier commits a material breach of its obligation to notify the Authority of any Occasion of Tax Non-Compliance as required by Clause 10.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, or the Supplier fails to provide details of proposed mitigating factors as required by Clause 10.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions that in the reasonable opinion of the Authority are acceptable.
- 15.6 If the Authority, acting reasonably, has good cause to believe that there has been a material deterioration in the financial circumstances of the Supplier and/or any third party guaranteeing the obligations of the Supplier under this Contract and/or any material Sub-contractor of the Supplier when compared to any information provided to and/or assessed by the Authority as part of any procurement process or other due diligence leading to the award of this Contract to the Supplier or the entering into a Sub-contract by the Supplier, the following process shall apply:
  - 15.6.1 the Authority may (but shall not be obliged to) give notice to the Supplier requesting adequate financial or other security and/or assurances for due performance of its material obligations under this Contract on such reasonable and proportionate terms as the Authority may require within a reasonable time period as specified in such notice;
  - 15.6.2 a failure or refusal by the Supplier to provide the financial or other security and/or assurances requested in accordance with Clause 15.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions in accordance with any reasonable timescales specified in any such notice issued by the Authority shall be deemed a breach of this Contract by the Supplier and shall be referred to and resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure; and
  - 15.6.3 a failure to resolve such breach in accordance with such Dispute Resolution Procedure by the end of the escalation stage of such process (as set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions) shall entitle, but shall not compel, the Authority to terminate this Contract in accordance with Clause 15.4(i) of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
  - 15.6.4 In order that the Authority may act reasonably in exercising its discretion in accordance with Clause 15.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall provide the Authority with such reasonable and proportionate up-to-date financial or other information relating to the Supplier or any relevant third party entity upon request.
- **15.7** The Authority may terminate this Contract by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier where:
  - 15.7.1 the Contract has been substantially amended to the extent that the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 require a new procurement procedure;













- 15.7.2 the Authority has become aware that the Supplier should have been excluded under Regulation 57(1) or (2) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 from the procurement procedure leading to the award of this Contract;
- 15.7.3 the Contract should not have been awarded to the Supplier in view of a serious infringement of obligations under European law declared by the Court of Justice of the European Union under Article 258 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the EU; or
- 15.7.4 there has been a failure by the Supplier and/or one its Sub-contractors to comply with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour Law. Where the failure to comply with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour Law is a failure by one of the Supplier's Sub-contractors, the Authority may request the replacement of such Sub-contractor and the Supplier shall comply with such request as an alternative to the Authority terminating this Contract under this Clause 15.7.4.
- 15.8 If the Authority novates this Contract to any body that is not a Contracting Authority, from the effective date of such novation, the rights of the Authority to terminate this Contract in accordance with Clause 15.5.1 to Clause 15.5.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be deemed mutual termination rights and the Supplier may terminate this Contract by issuing a Termination Notice to the entity assuming the position of the Authority if any of the circumstances referred to in such Clauses apply to the entity assuming the position of the Authority.

# 16 Consequences of expiry or early termination of this Contract

- **16.1** Upon expiry or earlier termination of this Contract, the Authority agrees to pay the Supplier for the Goods which have been supplied by the Supplier and not rejected by the Authority in accordance with this Contract prior to expiry or earlier termination of this Contract.
- 16.2 The Supplier shall cooperate fully with the Authority or, as the case may be, any replacement supplier during any re-procurement and handover period prior to and following the expiry or earlier termination of this Contract. This cooperation shall extend to providing access to all information relevant to the operation of this Contract, as reasonably required by the Authority to achieve a fair and transparent reprocurement and/or an effective transition without disruption to routine operational requirements. Any Personal Data Processed by the Supplier on behalf of the Authority shall be returned to the Authority or destroyed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Data Protection Protocol.
- **16.3** The expiry or earlier termination of this Contract for whatever reason shall not affect any rights or obligations of either Party which accrued prior to such expiry or earlier termination.
- **16.4** The expiry or earlier termination of this Contract shall not affect any obligations which expressly or by implication are intended to come into or continue in force on or after such expiry or earlier termination.
- **16.5** Save as provided for in this Contract, the expiry or earlier termination of the Framework Agreement shall not affect this Contract. For the avoidance of doubt, any obligations set out in the Framework Agreement that form part of this Contract shall













continue to apply for the purposes of this Contract notwithstanding any termination of the Framework Agreement.

# 17 Packaging, identification and end of use

- **17.1** The Supplier shall comply with all obligations imposed on it by Law relevant to the Goods in relation to packaging, identification, and obligations following end of use by the Authority.
- 17.2 Unless otherwise specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document or otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing, the Goods shall be securely packed in trade packages of a type normally used by the Supplier for deliveries of the same or similar goods in the same quantities within the United Kingdom.
- 17.3 The Supplier shall comply with any labelling requirements in respect of the Goods: (a) specified in the Specification and Tender Response Document; (b) agreed with the Authority in writing; and/or (c) required to comply with Law or Guidance.
- 17.4 The Supplier shall ensure that all Goods that are required by Law or Guidance to bear any safety information, environmental information, any mark, tab, brand, label, serial numbers or other device indicating place of origin, inspection by any government or other body or standard of quality at the point such Goods are delivered shall comply with such requirements at the point of delivery.
- 17.5 Unless otherwise set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document or agreed with the Authority in writing, the Supplier shall collect without charge any returnable containers and/or packages (including pallets) within twenty one (21) days of the date of the relevant delivery. Empty containers and/or packages not so removed may be returned by the Authority at the Supplier's expense or otherwise disposed of at the Authority's discretion. The Supplier shall credit the Authority in full for any containers for which the Authority has been charged upon their collection, return and/or disposal by the Authority in accordance with Clause 17.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

#### 18 Coding requirements

- 18.1 Unless otherwise confirmed and/or agreed by the Authority in writing and subject to Clause 18.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall ensure full compliance with any Guidance issued by the Department of Health in relation to the adoption of GS1 and PEPPOL standards (to include, without limitation, any supplier compliance timeline and other policy requirements published by the Department of Health in relation to the adoption of GS1 and PEPPOL standards for master data provision and exchange, barcode labelling, and purchase-to-pay transacting).
- 18.2 Once compliance with any published timelines has been achieved by the Supplier pursuant to Clause 18.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall, during the Term, maintain the required level of compliance relating to the Goods in accordance with any such requirements and Guidance referred to as part of this Contract.
- **18.3** Once product information relating to Goods is placed by the Supplier into a GS1 certified data pool, the Supplier shall, during the Term, keep such information updated with any changes to the product data relating to the Goods.













# 19 Sustainable development

- 19.1 The Supplier shall comply in all material respects with applicable environmental and social and labour Law requirements in force from time to time in relation to the Goods. Where the provisions of any such Law are implemented by the use of voluntary agreements, the Supplier shall comply with such agreements as if they were incorporated into English law subject to those voluntary agreements being cited in the Specification and Tender Response Document. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the Supplier shall:
  - 19.1.1 comply with all Policies and/or procedures and requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document in relation to any stated environmental and social and labour requirements, characteristics and impacts of the Goods and the Supplier's supply chain;
  - 19.1.2 maintain relevant policy statements documenting the Supplier's significant labour, social and environmental aspects as relevant to the Goods being supplied and as proportionate to the nature and scale of the Supplier's business operations; and
  - 19.1.3 maintain plans and procedures that support the commitments made as part of the Supplier's significant labour, social and environmental policies, as referred to at Clause 19.1.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- **19.2** The Supplier shall meet reasonable requests by the Authority for information evidencing the Supplier's compliance with the provisions of Clause 19 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

### 20 Electronic product information

- **20.1** Where requested by the Authority, the Supplier shall provide the Authority the Product Information in such manner and upon such media as agreed between the Supplier and the Authority from time to time for the sole use by the Authority.
- 20.2 The Supplier warrants that the Product Information is complete and accurate as at the date upon which it is delivered to the Authority and that the Product Information shall not contain any data or statement which gives rise to any liability on the part of the Authority following publication of the same in accordance with Clause 20 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- **20.3** If the Product Information ceases to be complete and accurate, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Authority in writing of any modification or addition to or any inaccuracy or omission in the Product Information.
- 20.4 The Supplier grants the Authority a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty free licence to use and exploit the Product Information and any Intellectual Property Rights in the Product Information for the purpose of illustrating the range of goods and services (including, without limitation, the Goods) available pursuant to the Authority's contracts from time to time. Subject to Clause 20.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Calloff Terms and Conditions, no obligation to illustrate or advertise the Product Information is imposed on the Authority, as a consequence of the licence conferred by this Clause 20.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.













- 20.5 The Authority may reproduce for its sole use the Product Information provided by the Supplier in the Authority's product catalogue from time to time which may be made available on any NHS communications networks in electronic format and/or made available on the Authority's external website and/or made available on other digital media from time to time.
- 20.6 Before any publication of the Product Information (electronic or otherwise) is made by the Authority, the Authority will submit a copy of the relevant sections of the Authority's product catalogue to the Supplier for approval, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. For the avoidance of doubt the Supplier shall have no right to compel the Authority to exhibit the Product Information in any product catalogue as a result of the approval given by it pursuant to this Clause 20.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions or otherwise under the terms of this Contract.
- **20.7** If requested in writing by the Authority, and to the extent not already agreed as part of the Specification and Tender Response Document, the Supplier and the Authority shall discuss and seek to agree in good faith arrangements to use any Electronic Trading System.

#### 21 Change management

- **21.1** The Supplier acknowledges to the Authority that the Authority's requirements for the Goods may change during the Term and the Supplier shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any reasonable variation or addition to the Specification and Tender Response Document, as may be requested by the Authority from time to time.
- **21.2** Subject to Clause 21.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, any change to the Goods or other variation to this Contract shall only be binding once it has been agreed in writing and signed by an authorised representative of both Parties.
- **21.3** Any change to the Data Protection Protocol shall be made in accordance with the relevant provisions of that protocol.

#### 22 Dispute resolution

- **22.1** During any Dispute, including a Dispute as to the validity of this Contract, it is agreed that the Supplier shall continue its performance of the provisions of the Contract (unless the Authority requests in writing that the Supplier does not do so).
- **22.2** In the case of a Dispute arising out of or in connection with this Contract the Supplier and the Authority shall make every reasonable effort to communicate and cooperate with each other with a view to resolving the Dispute and follow the procedure set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions as the first stage in the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- 22.3 If any Dispute arises out of the Contract either Party may serve a notice on the other Party to commence formal resolution of the Dispute. The Parties shall first seek to resolve the Dispute by escalation in accordance with the management levels as set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions. Respective representatives at each level, as set out in Clause 5 of the Key Provisions, shall have five (5) Business Days at each level during which they will use their reasonable endeavours to resolve the Dispute before escalating the matter to the next level until all levels have been exhausted. Level 1 will commence on the date of service of the Dispute Notice. The final level of the escalation process shall be deemed exhausted on the expiry of five (5) Business













Days following escalation to that level unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing.

- 22.4 If the procedure set out in Clause 22.3 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions above has been exhausted and fails to resolve such Dispute, as part of the Dispute Resolution Procedure, the Parties will attempt to settle it by mediation. The Parties shall, acting reasonably, attempt to agree upon a mediator. In the event that the Parties fail to agree a mediator within five (5) Business Days following the exhaustion of all levels of the escalation procedure at Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the mediator shall be nominated and confirmed by the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution, London.
- 22.5 The mediation shall commence within twenty eight (28) days of the confirmation of the mediator in accordance with Clause 22.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions or at such other time as may be agreed by the Parties in writing. Neither Party will terminate such mediation process until each Party has made its opening presentation and the mediator has met each Party separately for at least one hour or one Party has failed to participate in the mediation process. After this time, either Party may terminate the mediation process by notification to the other party (such notification may be verbal provided that it is followed up by written confirmation). The Authority and the Supplier will cooperate with any person appointed as mediator providing them with such information and other assistance as they shall require and will pay their costs, as they shall determine or in the absence of such determination such costs will be shared equally.
- **22.6** Nothing in this Contract shall prevent:
  - 22.6.1 the Authority taking action in any court in relation to any death or personal injury arising or allegedly arising in connection with the supply of the Goods; or
  - 22.6.2 either Party seeking from any court any interim or provisional relief that may be necessary to protect the rights or property of that Party or that relates to the safety of patients or the security of Confidential Information, pending resolution of the relevant Dispute in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- **22.7** Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall survive the expiry of or earlier termination of this Contract for any reason.

#### 23 Force majeure

- 23.1 Subject to Clause 23.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions neither Party shall be liable to the other for any failure to perform all or any of its obligations under this Contract nor liable to the other Party for any loss or damage arising out of the failure to perform its obligations to the extent only that such performance is rendered impossible by a Force Majeure Event.
- 23.2 The Supplier shall only be entitled to rely on a Force Majeure Event and the relief set out in Clause 23 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and will not be considered to be in default or liable for breach of any obligations under this Contract if:
  - 23.2.1 the Supplier has fulfilled its obligations pursuant to Clause 6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;













- 23.2.2 the Force Majeure Event does not arise directly or indirectly as a result of any wilful or negligent act or default of the Supplier; and
- 23.2.3 the Supplier has complied with the procedural requirements set out in Clause 23 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- 23.3 Where a Party is (or claims to be) affected by a Force Majeure Event it shall use reasonable endeavours to mitigate the consequences of such a Force Majeure Event upon the performance of its obligations under this Contract and to resume the performance of its obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event as soon as practicable.
- **23.4** Where the Force Majeure Event affects the Supplier's ability to perform part of its obligations under the Contract the Supplier shall fulfil all such contractual obligations that are not so affected and shall not be relieved from its liability to do so.
- 23.5 If either Party is prevented or delayed in the performance of its obligations under this Contract by a Force Majeure Event, that Party shall as soon as reasonably practicable serve notice in writing on the other Party specifying the nature and extent of the circumstances giving rise to its failure to perform or any anticipated delay in performance of its obligations.
- 23.6 Subject to service of such notice, the Party affected by such circumstances shall have no liability for its failure to perform or for any delay in performance of its obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event only for so long as such circumstances continue and for such time after they cease as is necessary for that Party, using its best endeavours, to recommence its affected operations in order for it to perform its obligations.
- **23.7** The Party claiming relief shall notify the other in writing as soon as the consequences of the Force Majeure Event have ceased and of when performance of its affected obligations can be resumed.
- 23.8 If the Supplier is prevented from performance of its obligations as a result of a Force Majeure Event, the Authority may at any time, if the Force Majeure Event subsists for thirty (30) days or more, terminate this Contract by issuing a Termination Notice to the Supplier.
- **23.9** Following such termination in accordance with Clause 23.8 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and subject to Clause 23.10 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, neither Party shall have any liability to the other.
- **23.10** Any rights and liabilities of either Party which have accrued prior to such termination in accordance with Clause 23.8 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall continue in full force and effect unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

## 24 Records retention and right of audit

**24.1** Subject to any statutory requirement and Clause 24.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Calloff Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall keep secure and maintain for the Term and six (6) years afterwards, or such longer period as may be agreed between the Parties, full and accurate records of all matters relating to this Contract.













- 24.2 Where any records could be relevant to a claim for personal injury such records shall be kept secure and maintained for a period of twenty one (21) years from the date of expiry or earlier termination of this Contract.
- 24.3 The Authority shall have the right to audit the Supplier's compliance with this Contract. The Supplier shall permit or procure permission for the Authority or its authorised representative during normal business hours having given advance written notice of no less than five (5) Business Days, access to any person, premises and facilities, books and records reasonably required to audit the Supplier's compliance with its obligations under this Contract.
- 24.4 Should the Supplier Sub-contract any of its obligations under this Contract, the Authority shall have the right to audit and inspect such third party. The Supplier shall procure permission for the Authority or its authorised representative during normal business hours, having given advance written notice of no less than five (5) Business Days, access to any person, premises and facilities, books and records used in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under this Contract that are Sub-contracted to such third party. The Supplier shall cooperate with such audit and inspection and accompany the Authority or its authorised representative if requested.
- **24.5** The Supplier shall grant to the Authority or its authorised representative, such access to those records as they may reasonably require in order to check the Supplier's compliance with this Contract for the purposes of:
  - 24.5.1 the examination and certification of the Authority's accounts; or
  - 24.5.2 any examination pursuant to section 6(1) of the National Audit Act 1983 of the economic efficiency and effectiveness with which the Authority has used its resources.
- 24.6 The Comptroller and Auditor General may examine such documents as they may reasonably require which are owned, held or otherwise within the control of the Supplier and may require the Supplier to provide such oral and/or written explanations as they consider necessary. Clause 24 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions does not constitute a requirement or agreement for the examination, certification or inspection of the accounts of the Supplier under sections 6(3)(d) and 6(5) of the National Audit Act 1983.
- **24.7** The Supplier shall provide reasonable cooperation to the Authority, its representatives and any regulatory body in relation to any audit, review, investigation or enquiry carried out in relation to the subject matter of this Contract.
- **24.8** The Supplier shall provide all reasonable information as may be reasonably requested by the Authority to evidence the Supplier's compliance with the requirements of this Contract.

### 25 Conflicts of interest and the prevention of fraud

25.1 The Supplier shall take appropriate steps to ensure that neither the Supplier nor any Staff are placed in a position where, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Supplier and the duties owed to the Authority under the provisions of this Contract. The Supplier will disclose to the Authority full particulars of any such conflict of interest which may arise.













- 25.2 The Authority reserves the right to terminate this Contract immediately by notice in writing and/or to take such other steps it deems necessary where, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, there is or may be an actual conflict, or a potential conflict, between the pecuniary or personal interests of the Supplier and the duties owed to the Authority under the provisions of this Contract. The actions of the Authority pursuant to this Clause 25.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy which shall have accrued or shall subsequently accrue to the Authority.
- **25.3** The Supplier shall take all reasonable steps to prevent Fraud by Staff and the Supplier (including its owners, members and directors). The Supplier shall notify the Authority immediately if it has reason to suspect that any Fraud has occurred or is occurring or is likely to occur.
- **25.4** If the Supplier or its Staff commits Fraud the Authority may terminate this Contract and recover from the Supplier the amount of any direct loss suffered by the Authority resulting from the termination.

### 26 Equality and human rights

- **26.1** The Supplier shall:
  - 26.1.1 ensure that (a) it does not, whether as employer or as supplier of the Goods, and any associated services engage in any act or omission that would contravene the Equality Legislation, and (b) it complies with all its obligations as an employer or supplier of the Goods and any associated services as set out in the Equality Legislation and take reasonable endeavours to ensure its Staff do not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning of the Equality Legislation;
  - 26.1.2 in the management of its affairs and the development of its equality and diversity policies, cooperate with the Authority in light of the Authority's obligations to comply with its statutory equality duties whether under the Equality Act 2010 or otherwise. The Supplier shall take such reasonable and proportionate steps as the Authority considers appropriate to promote equality and diversity, including race equality, equality of opportunity for disabled people, gender equality, and equality relating to religion and belief, sexual orientation and age; and
  - 26.1.3 the Supplier shall impose on all its Sub-contractors and suppliers, obligations substantially similar to those imposed on the Supplier by Clause 26 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.
- **26.2** The Supplier shall meet reasonable requests by the Authority for information evidencing the Supplier's compliance with the provisions of Clause 26 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

### 27 Notice

27.1 Subject to Clause 22.5 of Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, any notice required to be given by either Party under this Contract shall be in writing quoting the date of the Contract and shall be delivered by hand or sent by prepaid first class recorded delivery or by email to the person referred to in the Order Form or such other person as one Party may inform the other Party in writing from time to time













or to a director of the relevant Party at the head office, main UK office or registered office of such Party.

- 27.2 A notice shall be treated as having been received:
  - 27.2.1 if delivered by hand within normal business hours when so delivered or, if delivered by hand outside normal business hours, at the next start of normal business hours; or
  - 27.2.2 if sent by first class recorded delivery mail on a normal Business Day, at 9.00 am on the second Business Day subsequent to the day of posting, or, if the notice was not posted on a Business Day, at 9.00 am on the third Business Day subsequent to the day of posting; or
  - 27.2.3 if sent by email, if sent within normal business hours when so sent or, if sent outside normal business hours, at the next start of normal business hours provided the sender has either received an electronic confirmation of delivery or has telephoned the recipient to inform the recipient that the email has been sent

#### 28 Assignment, novation and Sub-contracting

- 28.1 The Supplier shall not, except where Clause 28.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions applies, assign, Sub-contract, novate, create a trust in, or in any other way dispose of the whole or any part of this Contract without the prior consent in writing of the Authority, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If the Supplier Sub-contracts any of its obligations under this Contract, every act or omission of the Sub-contractor shall for the purposes of this Contract be deemed to be the act or omission of the Supplier and the Supplier shall be liable to the Authority as if such act or omission had been committed or omitted by the Supplier itself.
- 28.2 Notwithstanding Clause 28.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier may assign to a third party ("Assignee") the right to receive payment of any sums due and owing to the Supplier under this Contract for which an invoice has been issued. Any assignment under this Clause 28.2 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be subject to:
  - 28.2.1 the deduction of any sums in respect of which the Authority exercises its right of recovery under Clause 9.6 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
  - 28.2.2 all related rights of the Authority in relation to the recovery of sums due but unpaid;
  - 28.2.3 the Authority receiving notification of the assignment and the date upon which the assignment becomes effective together with the Assignee's contact information and bank account details to which the Authority shall make payment;
  - 28.2.4 the provisions of Clause 9 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions continuing to apply in all other respects after the assignment which shall not be amended without the prior written approval of the Authority; and













- 28.2.5 payment to the Assignee being full and complete satisfaction of the Authority's obligation to pay the relevant sums in accordance with this Contract.
- 28.3 Any authority given by the Authority for the Supplier to Sub-contract any of its obligations under this Contract shall not impose any duty on the Authority to enquire as to the competency of any authorised Sub-contractor. The Supplier shall ensure that any authorised Sub-contractor has the appropriate capability and capacity to perform the relevant obligations and that the obligations carried out by such Sub-contractor are fully in accordance with this Contract.
- 28.4 Where the Supplier enters into a Sub-contract in respect of any of its obligations under this Contract relating to the manufacture, supply, delivery or installation of or training in relation to the Goods, the Supplier shall include provisions in each such Sub-contract, unless otherwise agreed with the Authority in writing, which:
  - 28.4.1 contain at least equivalent obligations as set out in this Contract in relation to such manufacture, supply, delivery or installation of or training in relation to the Goods to the extent relevant to such Sub-contracting;
  - 28.4.2 contain at least equivalent obligations as set out in this Contract in respect of confidentiality, information security, data protection, Intellectual Property Rights, compliance with Law and Guidance and record keeping;
  - 28.4.3 contain a prohibition on the Sub-contractor Sub-contracting, assigning or novating any of its rights or obligations under such Sub-contract without the prior written approval of the Authority (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);
  - 28.4.4 contain a right for the Authority to take an assignment or novation of the Subcontract (or part of it) upon expiry or earlier termination of this Contract;
  - 28.4.5 requires the Supplier or other party receiving goods under the contract to consider and verify invoices under that contract in a timely fashion;
  - 28.4.6 provides that if the Supplier or other party fails to consider and verify an invoice in accordance with Clause 28.4.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the invoice shall be regarded as valid and undisputed for the purpose of Clause 28.4.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-Off Terms and Conditions after a reasonable time has passed;
  - 28.4.7 requires the Supplier or other party to pay any undisputed sums which are due from it to the Sub-contractor within a specified period not exceeding thirty (30) days of verifying that the invoice is valid and undisputed;
  - 28.4.8 permitting the Supplier to terminate, or procure the termination of, the relevant Sub-contract in the event the Sub-contractor fails to comply in the performance of its Sub-contract with legal obligations in the fields of environmental, social or labour Law where the Supplier is required to replace such Sub-contractor in accordance with Clause 15.7.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
  - 28.4.9 permitting the Supplier to terminate, or to procure the termination of, the relevant Sub-contract where the Supplier is required to replace such Sub-













- contractor in accordance with Clause 28.5 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-Off Terms and Conditions;
- 28.4.10 requires the Sub-contractor to include a clause to the same effect as this Clause 28.4 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions in any Sub-contract which it awards.
- **28.5** Where the Authority considers that the grounds for exclusion under Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 apply to any Sub-contractor, then:
  - 28.5.1 if the Authority finds there are compulsory grounds for exclusion, the Supplier shall ensure, or shall procure, that such Sub-contractor is replaced or not appointed; or
  - 28.5.2 if the Authority finds there are non-compulsory grounds for exclusion, the Authority may require the Supplier to ensure, or to procure, that such Subcontractor is replaced or not appointed and the Supplier shall comply with such a requirement.
- 28.6 The Supplier shall pay any undisputed sums which are due from it to a Sub-contractor within thirty (30) days of verifying that the invoice is valid and undisputed. Where the Authority pays the Supplier's valid and undisputed invoices earlier than thirty (30) days from verification in accordance with any applicable government prompt payment targets, the Supplier shall use its reasonable endeavours to pay its relevant Sub-contractors within a comparable timeframe from verifying that an invoice is valid and undisputed.
- 28.7 The Authority shall upon written request have the right to review any Sub-contract entered into by the Supplier in respect of the provision of the Goods and the Supplier shall provide a certified copy of any Sub-contract within five (5) Business Days of the date of a written request from the Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, the Supplier shall have the right to redact any confidential pricing information in relation to such copies of Sub-contracts.
- 28.8 The Authority may at any time transfer, assign, novate, sub-contract or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under this Contract or any part of this Contract and the Supplier warrants that it will carry out all such reasonable further acts required to effect such transfer, assignment, novation, sub-contracting or disposal. If the Authority novates this Contract to anybody that is not a Contracting Authority, from the effective date of such novation, the party assuming the position of the Authority shall not further transfer, assign, novate, sub-contract or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under this Contract or any part of this Contract without the prior written consent of the Supplier, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed by the Supplier.

#### 29 Prohibited Acts

- **29.1** The Supplier warrants and represents that:
  - 29.1.1 it has not committed any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 or done any of the following ("**Prohibited Acts**"):
- (i) offered, given or agreed to give any officer or employee of the Authority any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing or not doing or for having done or not having done any act in relation to the obtaining or performance of













this or any other agreement with the Authority or for showing or not showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to this or any other agreement with the Authority; or

- (ii) in connection with this Contract paid or agreed to pay any commission other than a payment, particulars of which (including the terms and conditions of the agreement for its payment) have been disclosed in writing to the Authority; and
  - 29.1.2 it has in place adequate procedures to prevent bribery and corruption, as contemplated by section 7 of the Bribery Act 2010.
- **29.2** If the Supplier or its Staff (or anyone acting on its or their behalf) has done or does any of the Prohibited Acts or has committed or commits any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 with or without the knowledge of the Supplier in relation to this or any other agreement with the Authority:
  - 29.2.1 the Authority shall be entitled:
- (i) to terminate this Contract and recover from the Supplier the amount of any loss resulting from the termination;
- (ii) to recover from the Supplier the amount or value of any gift, consideration or commission concerned; and
- (iii) to recover from the Supplier any other loss or expense sustained in consequence of the carrying out of the Prohibited Act or the commission of the offence under the Bribery Act 2010;
  - 29.2.2 any termination under Clause 29.2.1 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall be without prejudice to any right or remedy that has already accrued, or subsequently accrues, to the Authority; and
  - 29.2.3 notwithstanding Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, any Dispute relating to:
- (i) the interpretation of Clause 29 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions: or
- (ii) the amount or value of any gift, consideration or commission,

shall be determined by the Authority, acting reasonably, and the decision shall be final and conclusive.

#### 30 General

- 30.1 Each of the Parties is independent of the other and nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed to imply that there is any relationship between the Parties of partnership or of principal/agent or of employer/employee nor are the Parties hereby engaging in a joint venture and accordingly neither of the Parties shall have any right or authority to act on behalf of the other nor to bind the other by agreement or otherwise, unless expressly permitted by the terms of this Contract.
- **30.2** Failure or delay by either Party to exercise an option or right conferred by this Contract shall not of itself constitute a waiver of such option or right.













- **30.3** The delay or failure by either Party to insist upon the strict performance of any provision, term or condition of this Contract or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon such breach shall not constitute a waiver of any such breach or any subsequent breach of such provision, term or condition.
- **30.4** Any provision of this Contract which is held to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining provisions of this Contract and any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provisions in any other jurisdiction.
- 30.5 Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it has not relied on any representation, warranty or undertaking (whether written or oral) in relation to the subject matter of this Contract and therefore irrevocably and unconditionally waives any rights it may have to claim damages against the other Party for any misrepresentation or undertaking (whether made carelessly or not) or for breach of any warranty unless the representation, undertaking or warranty relied upon is set out in this Contract or unless such representation, undertaking or warranty was made fraudulently.
- **30.6** Each Party shall bear its own expenses in relation to the preparation and execution of this Contract including all costs, legal fees and other expenses so incurred.
- 30.7 The rights and remedies provided in this Contract are independent, cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by general law, any rights or remedies provided elsewhere under this Contract or by any other contract or document. In this Clause 30.7 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, right includes any power, privilege, remedy, or proprietary or security interest.
- **30.8** A person who is not a party to this Contract shall have no right to enforce any terms of it which confer a benefit on such person. No such person shall be entitled to object to or be required to consent to any amendment to the provisions of this Contract.
- 30.9 This Contract, any variation in writing signed by an authorised representative of each Party and any document referred to (explicitly or by implication) in this Contract or any variation to this Contract, contain the entire understanding between the Supplier and the Authority relating to the supply of the Goods to the exclusion of all previous agreements, confirmations and understandings and there are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations whether oral or written, express or implied other than those contained or referred to in this Contract. Nothing in this Contract seeks to exclude either Party's liability for Fraud. Any tender conditions and/or disclaimers set out in the Authority's procurement documentation leading to the award of this Contract shall form part of this Contract.
- **30.10**This Contract, and any Dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter (including any non-contractual claims), shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England and Wales.
- **30.11** Subject to Clause 22 of this Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction to settle any Dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this Contract or its subject matter.
- **30.12**All written and oral communications and all written material referred to under this Contract shall be in English.













### Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions

#### **Information and Data Provisions**

### 1 Confidentiality

- 1.2 In respect of any Confidential Information it may receive directly or indirectly from the other Party ("Discloser") and subject always to the remainder of Clause 1 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, each Party ("Recipient") undertakes to keep secret and strictly confidential and shall not disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party without the Discloser's prior written consent provided that:
  - 1.2.1 the Recipient shall not be prevented from using any general knowledge, experience or skills which were in its possession prior to the Commencement Date;
  - 1.2.2 the provisions of Clause 1 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall not apply to any Confidential Information:
- (i) which is in or enters the public domain other than by breach of this Contract or other act or omissions of the Recipient;
- (ii) which is obtained from a third party who is lawfully authorised to disclose such information without any obligation of confidentiality;
- (iii) which is authorised for disclosure by the prior written consent of the Discloser;
- (iv) which the Recipient can demonstrate was in its possession without any obligation of confidentiality prior to receipt of the Confidential Information from the Discloser; or
- (v) which the Recipient is required to disclose purely to the extent to comply with the requirements of any relevant stock exchange.
- 1.3 Nothing in Clause 1 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall prevent the Recipient from disclosing Confidential Information where it is required to do so by judicial, administrative, governmental or regulatory process in connection with any action, suit, proceedings or claim or otherwise by applicable Law, including the Freedom of Information Act 2000 ("FOIA"), Codes of Practice on Access to Government Information, on the Discharge of Public Authorities' Functions or on the Management of Records ("Codes of Practice") or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("Environmental Regulations").
- **1.4** The Authority may disclose the Supplier's Confidential Information:
  - 1.4.1 on a confidential basis, to any Contracting Authority (the Parties agree that all Contracting Authorities receiving such Confidential Information shall be entitled to further disclose the Confidential Information to other Contracting Authorities on the basis that the information is confidential and is not to be disclosed to a third party which is not part of any Contracting Authority);
  - 1.4.2 on a confidential basis, to any consultant, contractor or other person engaged by the Authority and/or the Contracting Authority receiving such information:













- 1.4.3 to any relevant party for the purpose of the examination and certification of the Authority's accounts;
- 1.4.4 to any relevant party for any examination pursuant to section 6(1) of the National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the Authority has used its resources;
- 1.4.5 to Parliament and Parliamentary Committees or if required by any Parliamentary reporting requirements; or
- 1.4.6 on a confidential basis, to a proposed successor body in connection with any proposed or actual, assignment, novation or other disposal of rights, obligations, liabilities or property in connection with this Contract;

and for the purposes of this Contract, references to disclosure "on a confidential basis" shall mean the Authority making clear the confidential nature of such information and that it must not be further disclosed except in accordance with Law or this Clause 1.4 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions.

- 1.5 The Supplier may only disclose the Authority's Confidential Information, and any other information provided to the Supplier by the Authority in relation to this Contract, to the Supplier's Staff or professional advisors who are directly involved in the performance of or advising on the Supplier's obligations under this Contract. The Supplier shall ensure that such Staff or professional advisors are aware of and shall comply with the obligations in Clause 1 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions as to confidentiality and that all information, including Confidential Information, is held securely, protected against unauthorised use or loss and, at the Authority's written discretion, destroyed securely or returned to the Authority when it is no longer required. The Supplier shall not, and shall ensure that the Staff do not, use any of the Authority's Confidential Information received otherwise than for the purposes of performing the Supplier's obligations in this Contract.
- 1.6 For the avoidance of doubt, save as required by Law or as otherwise set out in this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall not, without the prior written consent of the Authority (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), announce that it has entered into this Contract and/or that it has been appointed as a Supplier to the Authority and/or make any other announcements about this Contract.
- **1.7** Clause 1 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions shall remain in force:
  - 1.7.1 without limit in time in respect of Confidential Information which comprises Personal Data or which relates to national security; and
  - 1.7.2 for all other Confidential Information for a period of three (3) years after the expiry or earlier termination of this Contract unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties.

#### 2 Data protection

2.1 The Parties acknowledge their respective duties under Data Protection Legislation and shall give each other all reasonable assistance as appropriate or necessary to enable each other to comply with those duties. For the avoidance of doubt, the Supplier shall take reasonable steps to ensure it is familiar with the Data Protection













- Legislation and any obligations it may have under such Data Protection Legislation and shall comply with such obligations.
- **2.2** Where the Supplier is Processing Personal Data under or in connection with this Contract, the Parties shall comply with the Data Protection Protocol.
- 2.3 The Supplier and the Authority shall ensure that Personal Data is safeguarded at all times in accordance with the Law, and this obligation will include (if transferred electronically) only transferring Personal Data (a) if essential, having regard to the purpose for which the transfer is conducted; and (b) that is encrypted in accordance with any international data encryption standards for healthcare, and as otherwise required by those standards applicable to the Authority under any Law and Guidance (this includes, data transferred over wireless or wired networks, held on laptops, CDs, memory sticks and tapes).
- 2.4 Where any Personal Data is Processed by any Sub-contractor of the Supplier in connection with this Contract, the Supplier shall procure that such Sub-contractor shall comply with the relevant obligations set out in Clause 2 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, as if such Sub-contractor were the Supplier.
- 2.5 The Supplier shall indemnify and keep the Authority indemnified against, any loss, damages, costs, expenses (including without limitation legal costs and expenses), claims or proceedings whatsoever or howsoever arising from the Supplier's unlawful or unauthorised Processing, destruction and/or damage to Personal Data in connection with this Contract.

## Freedom of Information and Transparency

- 2.6 The Parties acknowledge the duties of Contracting Authorities under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and shall give each other all reasonable assistance as appropriate or necessary to enable compliance with those duties.
- 2.7 The Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Authority to enable it to comply with its disclosure obligations under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations. The Supplier agrees:
  - 2.7.1 that this Contract and any recorded information held by the Supplier on the Authority's behalf for the purposes of this Contract are subject to the obligations and commitments of the Authority under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations;
  - 2.7.2 that the decision on whether any exemption to the general obligations of public access to information applies to any request for information received under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations is a decision solely for the Authority;
  - 2.7.3 that where the Supplier receives a request for information under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and the Supplier itself is subject to the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations it will liaise with the Authority as to the contents of any response before a response to a request is issued and will promptly (and in any event within two (2) Business Days) provide a copy of the request and any response to the Authority;













- 2.7.4 that where the Supplier receives a request for information under the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations and the Supplier is not itself subject to the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations, it will not respond to that request (unless directed to do so by the Authority) and will promptly (and in any event within two (2) Business Days) transfer the request to the Authority;
- 2.7.5 that the Authority, acting in accordance with the Codes of Practice issued and revised from time to time under both section 45 of FOIA, and regulation 16 of the Environmental Regulations, may disclose information concerning the Supplier and this Contract; and
- 2.7.6 to assist the Authority in responding to a request for information, by processing information or environmental information (as the same are defined in FOIA and the Environmental Regulations) in accordance with a records management system that complies with all applicable records management recommendations and codes of conduct issued under section 46 of FOIA, and providing copies of all information requested by the Authority within five (5) Business Days of that request and without charge.
- 2.8 The Parties acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations, the content of this Contract is not Confidential Information.
- **2.9** Notwithstanding any other term of this Contract, the Supplier consents to the publication of this Contract in its entirety (including variations), subject only to the redaction of information that is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA, Codes of Practice and Environmental Regulations.
- 2.10 In preparing a copy of this Contract for publication under Clause 2.9 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Authority may consult with the Supplier to inform decision making regarding any redactions but the final decision in relation to the redaction of information will be at the Authority's absolute discretion.
- **2.11** The Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Authority to enable the Authority to publish this Contract.
- **2.12** Where any information is held by any Sub-contractor of the Supplier in connection with this Contract, the Supplier shall procure that such Sub-contractor shall comply with the relevant obligations set out in Clause 0 of this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, as if such Sub-contractor were the Supplier.

#### Information Security

- **2.13** Without limitation to any other information governance requirements set out in this Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall:
  - 2.13.1 notify the Authority forthwith of any information security breaches or near misses (including without limitation any potential or actual breaches of confidentiality or actual information security breaches) in line with the Authority's information governance Policies; and
  - 2.13.2 fully cooperate with any audits or investigations relating to information security and any privacy impact assessments undertaken by the Authority













and shall provide full information as may be reasonably requested by the Authority in relation to such audits, investigations and assessments.











# **Schedule 4 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions**

## **Definitions and Interpretations**

## 1 <u>Definitions</u>

**1.1** In this Contract the following words shall have the following meanings unless the context requires otherwise:

"Award Letter"	means the letter confirming to the Supplier that they are being admitted to the Framework Agreement;;
"Authority"	means the authority named on the Order Form;
"Authority's Obligations"	means the Authority's further obligations, if any, referred to in the Specification and Tender Response Document and/or the Order Form;
"Breach Notice"	means a written notice of breach given by one Party to the other, notifying the Party receiving the notice of its breach of this Contract;
"Business Continuity Event"	means any event or issue that could impact on the operations of the Supplier and its ability to supply the Goods including an influenza pandemic and any Force Majeure Event;
"Business Continuity Plan"	means the Supplier's business continuity plan which includes its plans for continuity of the supply of the Goods during a Business Continuity Event;
"Business Day"	means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, Christmas Day, Good Friday or a statutory bank holiday in England and Wales;
"Call-off Terms and Conditions"	means these Call-off Terms and Conditions for the Supply of Goods;
"Codes of Practice"	shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.3 of Schedule 3 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Conditions"	means any conditions set out in the Award Letter which must be completed before any suspension from the Framework Agreement shall occur and any call off or orders may be placed with the Supplier through this Framework Agreement;
"Commencement Date"	means the date of the Order Form;













	and his
"Confidential Information"	means information, data and material of any nature, which either Party may receive or obtain in connection with the conclusion and/or operation of the Contract including any procurement process which is:
	<ol> <li>Personal Data including without limitation which relates to any patient or other service user or his or her treatment or clinical or care history;</li> </ol>
	<ul> <li>(h) designated as confidential by either party or that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (however it is conveyed or on whatever media it is stored); and/or</li> </ul>
	(i) Policies and such other documents which the Supplier may obtain or have access to through the Authority's intranet;
"Contract"	means the Order Form, the provisions on the front page and all Schedules of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Specification and Tender Response Document and the applicable provisions of the Framework Agreement;
"Contracting Authority"	means any contracting authority as defined in Regulation 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (SI 2015/102) (as amended), other than the Authority;
"Contract Manager"	means for the Authority and for the Supplier the individuals specified in the Order Form or as otherwise agreed between the Parties in writing or such other person notified by a Party to the other Party from time to time in accordance with Clause 8.1 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Contract Price"	means the price exclusive of VAT that is payable to the Supplier by the Authority under the Contract for the full and proper performance by the Supplier of its obligations under the Contract calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Framework Agreement and as confirmed in the Order Form;
"Controller"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;
"Data Protection Legislation"	means (i) the Data Protection Act 1998 or, from the date it comes into force, the Data Protection Act 2018 to the extent that it relates to processing of personal data and privacy; (ii) the GDPR, the Law Enforcement Directive (Directive (EU) 2016/680) and any applicable national implementing Law as amended from time to time; and (iii) all applicable Law about the processing of personal data and privacy;











"Data Protection Protocol"	means any document of that name as provided to the Supplier by the Authority (as amended from time to time in accordance with its terms) which shall include, without limitation, any such document appended to the Order Form;
"Defective Goods"	has the meaning given under Clause 4.6 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Dispute(s)"	means any dispute, difference or question of interpretation or construction arising out of or in connection with this Contract, including any dispute, difference or question of interpretation relating to the Goods, any matters of contractual construction and interpretation relating to the Contract, or any matter where this Contract directs the Parties to resolve an issue by reference to the Dispute Resolution Procedure;
"Dispute Notice"	means a written notice served by one Party to the other stating that the Party serving the notice believes there is a Dispute;
"Dispute Resolution Procedure"	means the process for resolving Disputes as set out in Clause 22 of Schedule 2 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"DOTAS"	means the Disclosure of Tax Avoidance Schemes rules which require a promoter of tax schemes to tell HM Revenue and Customs of any specified notifiable arrangements or proposals and to provide prescribed information on those arrangements or proposals within set time limits as contained in Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004 and in secondary legislation made under vires contained in Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004 and as extended to National Insurance Contributions by the National Insurance Contributions (Application of Part 7 of the Finance Act 2004) Regulations 2012, SI 2012/1868 made under s.132A Social Security Administration Act 1992;
"Electronic Trading System(s)"	means such electronic data interchange system and/or world wide web application and/or other application with such message standards and protocols as the Authority may specify from time to time;
"Environment"	Means the air, water, and land in or on which people, animals and plants live;
"Environmental Regulations"	shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.3 of Schedule 33 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;













"eProcurement		means the NHS eProcurement Strategy available via:
Guidance"		http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/nhs- procurement
		together with any further Guidance issued by the Department of Health in connection with it;
"Equality Legislation"		means any and all legislation, applicable guidance and statutory codes of practice relating to equality, diversity, non-discrimination and human rights as may be in force in England and Wales from time to time including, but not limited to, the Equality Act 2010, the Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000 and the Fixed-term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002 (SI 2002/2034) and the Human Rights Act 1998;
"FOIA"		shall have the meaning given to the term in Clause 1.3 of Schedule 33 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Force Majeure Event"		means any event beyond the reasonable control of the Party in question to include, without limitation:
	(a)	war including civil war (whether declared or undeclared), riot, civil commotion or armed conflict materially affecting either Party's ability to perform its obligations under this Contract;
	(j)	acts of terrorism;
	(k)	flood, storm or other natural disasters;
	(I)	fire;
	(m)	unavailability of public utilities and/or access to transport networks to the extent no diligent supplier could reasonably have planned for such unavailability as part of its business continuity planning;
	(n)	government requisition or impoundment to the extent such requisition or impoundment does not result from any failure by the Supplier to comply with any relevant regulations, laws or procedures (including such laws or regulations relating to the payment of any duties or taxes) and subject to the Supplier having used all reasonable legal means to resist such requisition or impoundment;
	(o)	compliance with any local law or governmental order, rule, regulation or direction applicable outside of England and Wales that could not have been reasonably foreseen;
	(p)	industrial action which affects the ability of the Supplier to supply the Goods, but which is not













		Supply Ci
		confined to the workforce of the Supplier or the workforce of any Sub-contractor of the Supplier; and
	(q)	a failure in the Supplier's and/or Authority's supply chain to the extent that such failure is due to any event suffered by a member of such supply chain, which would also qualify as a Force Majeure Event in accordance with this definition had it been suffered by one of the Parties;
		but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union and any related circumstances, events, changes or requirements;
"Framework Agreement"		means the Framework Agreement referred to in the Order Form;
"Fraud"		means any offence under any law in respect of fraud in relation to this Contract or defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the government, parliament or any Contracting Authority;
"GDPR"		means the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679);
"General Anti-Abuse Rule"	(a) (b)	means the legislation in Part 5 of the Finance Act 2013; and any future legislation introduced into parliament to counteract tax advantages arising from abusive arrangements to avoid national insurance contributions;
"Good Industry Practice"		means the exercise of that degree of skill, diligence, prudence, risk management, quality management and foresight which would reasonably and ordinarily be expected from a skilled and experienced supplier engaged in the manufacture and/or supply of goods similar to the Goods under the same or similar circumstances as those applicable to this Contract, including in accordance with any codes of practice published by relevant trade associations;
"Goods"		means all goods, materials or items that the Supplier is required to supply to the Authority under this Contract;
"Guidance"		means any applicable guidance, direction or determination and any policies, advice or industry alerts which apply to the Goods, to the extent that the same are published and publicly available or the existence or contents of them have been notified to the Supplier by the Authority and/or have been published and/or notified to the Supplier by the













	Supply Ci
	Department of Health, Monitor, NHS England, the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency, the European Medicine Agency the European Commission, the Care Quality Commission and/or any other regulator or competent body;
"Halifax Abuse Principle"	means the principle explained in the CJEU Case C-255/02 Halifax and others;
"Human Trafficking"	Means the recruitment or movement of people for exploitation by the use of threat, force, fraud, or the abuse of vulnerability;
"Indicators"	means the 11 International Labour Organisation's forced labour indicators, or such other indicators or standards as may be notified to the Supplier by the Authority from time to time and which shall in any Third Party Audit be subject to a Risk Assessment as to the occurrence or prevalence and severity of any non-conformity against such standards;
"Intellectual Property Rights"	means all patents, copyright, design rights, registered designs, trademarks, know-how, database rights, confidential formulae and any other intellectual property rights and the rights to apply for patents and trademarks and registered designs;
"Key Provisions"	means the key provisions set out in Schedule 11 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions and/or as part of the Order Form;
"KPI"	means the key performance indicators as set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document and/or the Order Form, if any;
"Law"	means any applicable legal requirements including, without limitation,:
	(a) any applicable statute or proclamation, delegated or subordinate legislation, bye-law, order, regulation or instrument as applicable in England and Wales;
	(b) any applicable European Union obligation, directive, regulation, decision, law or right (including any such obligations, directives, regulations, decisions, laws or rights that are incorporated into the law of England and Wales or given effect in England and Wales by any applicable statute, proclamation, delegated or subordinate legislation, bye-law, order, regulation or instrument);
	(c) any enforceable community right within the meaning of section 2(1) European Communities Act 1972;
	(d) any applicable judgment of a relevant court of law which is a binding precedent in England and Wales;













	246.7
	<ul><li>requirements set by any regulatory body as applicable in England and Wales;</li></ul>
	(f) any relevant code of practice as applicable in England and Wales; and
	<ul><li>(g) any relevant collective agreement and/or international law provisions (to include, without limitation, as referred to in (a) to (f) above);</li></ul>
"Modern Slavery"	means the recruitment, movement, harbouring or receiving of children, women or men through the use of force, coercion, abuse of vulnerability, deception or other means for the purpose of exploitation. It is a crime under the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and includes holding a person in a position of slavery, servitude forced or compulsory labour, or facilitating their travel with the intention of exploiting them soon after;
"NHS"	means the National Health Service;
"Occasion of Tax	means:
Non- Compliance"	(a) any tax return of the Supplier submitted to a Relevant Tax Authority on or after 1 October 2012 is found on or after 1 April 2013 to be incorrect as a result of:
	<ul> <li>(i) a Relevant Tax Authority successfully challenging the Supplier under the General Anti-Abuse Rule or the Halifax Abuse Principle or under any tax rules or legislation that have an effect equivalent or similar to the General Anti-Abuse Rule or the Halifax Abuse Principle;</li> </ul>
	(ii) the failure of an avoidance scheme which the Supplier was involved in, and which was, or should have been, notified to a Relevant Tax Authority under the DOTAS or any equivalent or similar regime; and/or
	(b) any tax return of the Supplier submitted to a Relevant Tax Authority on or after 1 October 2012 gives rise, on or after 1 April 2013, to a criminal conviction in any jurisdiction for tax related offences which is not spent at the Effective Date or to a civil penalty for fraud or evasion;
"Order Form"	means the order form for the Goods issued by the Authority in accordance with the Framework Agreement;
"Party"	means the Authority or the Supplier as appropriate and Parties means both the Authority and the Supplier;
"Personal Data"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;













"Policies"	means the policies, rules and procedures of the Authority as notified to the Supplier from time to time;
"Process"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR. Processing and Processed shall be construed accordingly;
"Processor"	shall have the same meaning as set out in the GDPR;
"Product Information"	means information concerning the Goods as may be reasonably requested by the Authority and supplied by the Supplier to the Authority in accordance with Clause 20 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions for inclusion in the Authority's product catalogue from time to time;
"Rejected Goods"	has the meaning given under Clause 4.2 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Relevant Tax Authority"	means HM Revenue and Customs, or, if applicable, a tax authority in the jurisdiction in which the Supplier is established;
"Remedial Proposal"	has the meaning given under Clause 15.3 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Remedial Action Plan"	Means the agreed remedial plan of action developed by the Supplier and agreed by the Authority to remedy a Default, Breach or issue.
"Requirement to Recall"	has the meaning given under 4.9 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions;
"Risk Assessment"	means an assessment of the risks of Modern Slavery undertaken as part of any Third Party Audit of the Supplier completed in compliance with the instructions set out in the documents issued to the Supplier as part of the procurement process to be admitted to the Framework Agreement and such assessments in further Third Party Audits carried out over the duration of the Framework Agreement;
"Specification and Tender Response Document"	means the Specification and Tender Response Document set out in the Framework Agreement as supplemented by any further information set out and/or referred to in the Order Form and as amended and/or updated in accordance with this Contract;
"Staff"	means all persons employed or engaged by the Supplier to perform its obligations under this Contract including any Sub-contractors and person employed or engaged by such Sub-contractors;











"Sub-contract"	means a contract between two or more suppliers, at any stage of remoteness from the Supplier in a sub-contracting chain, made wholly or substantially for the purpose of performing (or contributing to the performance of the whole or any part of this Contract;
"Sub-contractor"	means a party to a Sub-contract other than the Supplier;
"Supplier"	means the supplier named on the Order Form;
"Supplier Code of Conduct"	means the code of that name published by the Government Commercial Function originally dated September 2017, as may be amended, restated, updated, re-issued or re-named from time to time;
"Term"	means the term as referred to in the Key Provisions;
"Termination Notice"	means a written notice of termination given by one Party to the other notifying the Party receiving the notice of the intention of the Party giving the notice to terminate this Contract on a specified date and setting out the grounds for termination;
"Third Party Body"	has the meaning given under Clause 8.5 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions; and
"VAT"	means value added tax chargeable under the Value Added Tax Act 1994 or any similar, replacement or extra tax.

- **1.2** References to any Law shall be deemed to include a reference to that Law as amended, extended, consolidated, re-enacted, restated, implemented or transposed from time to time.
- **1.3** References to any legal entity shall include any body that takes over responsibility for the functions of such entity.
- **1.4** References in this Contract to a "Schedule", "Appendix", "Paragraph" or to a "Clause" are to schedules, appendices, paragraphs and clauses of this Contract.
- **1.5** References in this Contract to a day or to the calculation of time frames are references to a calendar day unless expressly specified as a Business Day.
- **1.6** Unless set out in the Contract as a chargeable item and subject to Clause 30.6 of Schedule 22 of these Call-off Terms and Conditions, the Supplier shall bear the cost of complying with its obligations under this Contract.













- **1.7** The headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the interpretation of this Contract.
- **1.8** Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.
- 1.9 Where a term of this Contract provides for a list of one or more items following the word "including" or "includes" then such list is not to be interpreted as an exhaustive list. Any such list shall not be treated as excluding any item that might have been included in such list having regard to the context of the contractual term in question. General words are not to be given a restrictive meaning where they are followed by examples intended to be included within the general words.
- **1.10** Where there is a conflict between the Supplier's responses to the requirements set out in the Specification and Tender Response Document and any other part of this Contract, such other part of this Contract shall prevail.
- **1.11** Where a document is required under this Contract, the Parties may agree in writing that this shall be in electronic format only.
- 1.12 Any Breach Notice issued by a Party in connection with this Contract shall not be invalid due to it containing insufficient information. A Party receiving a Breach Notice ("Receiving Party") may ask the Party that issued the Breach Notice ("Issuing Party") to provide any further information in relation to the subject matter of the Breach Notice that it may reasonably require to enable it to understand the Breach Notice and/or to remedy the breach. The Issuing Party shall not unreasonably withhold or delay the provision of such further information as referred to above as may be requested by the Receiving Party but no such withholding or delay shall invalidate the Breach Notice.
- **1.13** Any terms defined as part of a Schedule or other document forming part of this Contract shall have the meaning as defined in such Schedule or document.









